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No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise. M “J %W /(

This prospectus constitutes a public offering of these securities only in those jurisdictions where they may be lawfully offered for sale and therein only by
persons permitted 1o sell such securities. These securities have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “1933 Act™), or any state securities laws and accordingly will not be offered, sold or delivered, directly or indirectly, within the United States
of America, its possessions and other areas subject 1o its jurisdiction or to, or for the account or for the benefit of, a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S

under the 1933 Act) unless registered under the 1933 Act and applicable state securities laws or an exemption from such registration is available.
This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any of the securities offered hereby within the United States. See “‘Plan
of Distribution”.
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This prospectus qualifies the distribution of 6,106,000 trust units (“Units”) of XS Cargo Income Fund (the “Fund”).
The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust established under the laws of the Province of Alberta created to
invest in the broadline closeout retailing business. The Fund will indirectly hold limited partnership units representing
a 51% interest in XS Cargo Limited Partnership (“XS Cargo LP” and, together with its general partner, XS Cargo

GP Inc. (the “GP”), collectively, the “Company”). The Vendor (as defined herein) will hold the remaining 49%
. interest in the Company. See “Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions” and “Use of Proceeds”. Distributions

in respect of a portion of the Vendor’s interest in the Company, representing a 20% interest in the Company, will be
subordinated to distributions in respect of the Fund’s indirect interest in the Company until certain performance and
distribution targets are met. See “Retained Interest and Exchange Rights — Subordination”.

On closing of the offering, the Company will acquire the Vendor’s broadline closeout retailing business and will be
one of the largest broadline closeout retailers in Canada. See “Business of the Company”.

The Fund intends to make monthly distributions of its distributable cash to holders (“Unitholders”) of Units to the
extent determined prudent by the trustees (the “Trustees”) of the Fund. The initial cash distribution, for the period
from the closing of the offering to June 30, 2005, is expected to be $0.1387 per Unit (assuming closing occurs on
May 17, 2005) and is expected to be paid on or about July 15, 2005 to Unitholders of record on June 30, 2005.
Subsequent regular distributions in the amount of $0.09375 per Unit are expected to be made in each month

thereafter on the 15th day of the month to Unitholders of record on the last business day of the preceding month,
commencing on or about August 15, 2005. See “XS Cargo Income Fund — Cash Distributions”.

Price: $10.00 per Unit

Price to Underwriters’ Net Proceeds
the Public Fee to the Fund®
25 G0 )+ 1 A $10.00 $0.60 $9.40
Total Offering . . .. ..o v vttt e e i i i e $61,060,000 $3,663,600
Note:

$57,396,400
(1) Before deducting expenses of this offering estimated to be $1,000,000.

(continued on next page)
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(continued from cover)

The pricing of the Units has been determined, in part, based on the estimate of distributable cash of the Fund
for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005 of $1.125 per fully diluted Unit (assuming the exchange for Units of
all Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units). See “Summary of Distributable Cash of the Fund” and
“Non-GAAP Measures”. A return on an investment in the Fund is not comparable to the return on an
investment in a fixed-income security. The recovery of an initial investment in the Fund is at risk, and the
anticipated return on such investment is based on many performance assumptions. Although the Fund intends to
make distributions of its available cash to holders of Units, these cash distributions are not assured. The actual
amount distributed will depend on numerous factors, including financial performance, debt covenants and
obligations, working capital requirements and future capital requirements of the Fund and its subsidiaries. See
“Risk Factors”. The market value of the Units may deteriorate if the Fund is unable to meet its cash distribution
targets in the future and that deterioration may be material. The Units are not “deposits” within the meaning of
the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (Canada) and are not insured under the provisions of that Act or
any other legislation.

An investment in Units is subject to certain risk factors that prospective investors should carefully consider. Cash
distributions are not guaranteed. See “Risk Factors”. No stability rating for the Units has been applied for from
any ratings agency.

The after-tax return from an investment in Units to Unitholders subject to Canadian federal income tax will
depend, in part, on the composition for tax purposes of distributions paid by the Fund, portions of which may be
fully or partially taxable or may constitute non-taxable returns of capital, which are not included in a
Unitholder’s income but which reduce the adjusted cost base of the Units to Unitholders. The composition for
tax purposes of distributions may change over time, thus affecting the after-tax return to Unitholders. See
“Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations” and “Risk Factors”.

This prospectus also qualifies the issuance by the Fund of the Special Voting Units and the Exchange Rights in
respect of the Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units to the Vendor. See “Retained Interest and
Exchange Rights” and “XS Cargo Income Fund — Units and Special Voting Units”.

There is currently no market through which the Units may be sold, and purchasers may not be able to resell
the Units. The Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSX”) has conditionally approved the listing of the Units. Listing is
subject to the Fund fulfilling all of the requirements of the TSX on or before August 3, 2005, including the
distribution of Units to a minimum number of public Unitholders.

CIBC World Markets Inc., RBC Dominion Securities Inc., National Bank Financial Inc., Canaccord Capital
Corporation and Sprott Securities Inc. (the “Underwriters™), as principals, conditionally offer the Units subject
to prior sale, if, as and when sold and delivered by the Fund and accepted by the Underwriters in accordance
with the conditions contained in the Underwriting Agreement referred to under “Plan of Distribution” and
subject to the approval of certain legal matters on behalf of the Fund by Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP and
on behalf of the Underwriters by Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP.

In connection with this offering, the Underwriters may effect transactions that stabilize or maintain the market
price of the Units in accordance with applicable market stabilization rules. See “Plan of Distribution”.

CIBC World Markets Inc. is a subsidiary of a Canadian chartered bank that will be a lender to the Company on
closing of the offering. Consequently, the Fund may be considered a “connected issuer” of CIBC World
Markets Inc. within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation. See “Relationship Between the
Fund and an Underwriter”.

Subscriptions for the Units will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the right is
reserved to close the subscription books at any time without notice. A book entry only certificate representing
the Units will be issued in registered form to The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited (“CDS”) or its
nominee and will be deposited with CDS on the date of the closing which is expected to occur on or about
May 17, 2005 or such later date as the Fund and the Underwriters may agree, but in any event not later than
May 30, 2005. A purchaser of Units will receive only a customer confirmation from the registered dealer thatisa
CDS participant and from or through which the Units are purchased.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURE MATTERS

Prospective investors should rely only on information contained in this prospectus. Neither the Fund nor
the Underwriters have authorized any other person to provide prospective investors with different information.
If a prospective investor is provided with different or inconsistent information, the investor should not rely on
such information. Neither the Fund nor the Underwriters are making an offer to sell in any jurisdiction where
the offer or sale is not permitted.

Although the Vendor currently operates the business to be acquired by the Company, unless otherwise
indicated, the disclosure in this prospectus assumes that the steps ountlined under the heading “Funding,
Acquisition and Related Transactions” have been completed and the Company operates the broadline closeout
retailing business currently operated by the Vendor.

Certain terms used in this prospectus are defined under “Glossary of Terms”.

All dollar amounts in this prospectus are expressed in Canadian dollars, except where stated otherwise.

NON-GAAP MEASURES
References in this prospectus to:
“EBITDA” are to historical earnings before provision for interest, income taxes and amortization;

“Normalized EBITDA” are to EBITDA adjusted for certain items that Company Management believes facilitate
the comparison of historical periods. As described under “Reconciliation of Net Income to Normalized
EBITDA”, Normalized EBITDA adjusts for the following items, which will not recur: (i) employee profit sharing
plan contributions; and (ii) charitable donations. All of such adjustments are based upon historical information
or contractual commitments; and

«distributable cash” are to cash available for distribution to Unitholders in accordance with the distribution
policies of the Fund described in this prospectus.

Distributable cash of the Fund is a measure generally used by Canadian open-ended trusts as an indicator of
financial performance. As one of the factors that may be considered relevant by prospective investors is the cash
distributed by the Fund relative to the price of the Units, Company Management believes that distributable cash
of the Fund is a useful supplemental measure that may assist prospective investors in assessing an investment
in Units. See “Summary of Distributable Cash of the Fund”.

As the Fund will distribute substantially all of its cash on an ongoing basis (after providing for certain
amounts described elsewhere in this prospectus), Company Management believes that EBITDA and Normalized
EBITDA are useful measures in evaluating the performance of the Fund and in determining whether to invest in
Units of the Fund. Specifically, Company Management believes that Normalized EBITDA is the appropriate
measure from which to make adjustments to estimate the distributable cash of the Fund.

EBITDA, Normalized EBITDA and distributable cash are measures that are not recognized by generally
accepted accounting principles in Canada (“GAAP”) and do not have standardized meanings prescribed by
GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA, Normalized EBITDA and distributable cash may not be comparable to similar
measures presented by other issuers. Investors are cautioned that EBITDA, Normalized EBITDA and
distributable cash should not be construed as alternatives to net income or loss determined in accordance with
GAAP as indicators of the Company’s performance or to cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities as measures of liquidity and cash flows. For a reconciliation of EBITDA, Normalized EBITDA and
distributable cash to net income from operations, based on the historical financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP contained elsewhere in this prospectus, sce “Reconciliation of Net Income to
Normalized EBITDA”.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus contains forward looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical fact
contained in this prospectus are forward looking statements, including, without limitation, statements regarding
the future financial position, business strategy, proposed acquisitions, budgets, litigation, projected costs and
plans and objectives of or involving the Fund or the Company. Prospective investors can identify many of these
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statements by looking for words such as “believe”, “expects”, “will”, “intends”, “projects”, “anticipates”,



“estimates”, “continues” or similar words or the negative thereof. These forward looking statements include
statements with respect to the amount and timing of the payment of the distributions of the Fund and the
satisfaction of stock exchange listing conditions. There can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or
expectations upon which these forward looking statements are based will occur. Forward looking statements are
subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including, but not limited to, those discussed elsewhere in this
prospectus. Although Company Management believes that the expectations represented in such forward looking

statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct.

Some of the factors that could affect future results and could cause results to differ materially from those
expressed in the forward looking statements contained herein include: risks relating to the Company’s ability to
maintain profitability and manage growth; the Company’s ability to expand through new store openings; the
Company’s ability to source products in quantities and on terms acceptable to the Company; changes in trends
and consumer tastes; economic conditions and levels of consumer spending; marketing expenditures;
competition; the Company’s reliance on centralized distribution centers; freight costs; the Company’s ability to
maintain comparable store sales; seasonality and fluctuations in quarterly results; the Company’s reliance on
management information systems; increases in the cost of, or disruption in the flow of, imported products;
successful management of the Company’s exposure to merchandise returns; foreign exchange fluctuations; costs
and availability of insurance coverage; protection and development of the Company’s intellectual property; the
Company’s reliance on key personnel; labour matters; the absence of an operating history as a public company;
the Company’s dependence on external funding sources; the Company’s environmental regulation; uncertainties
arising from world events; the effect of property taxes; the dependence of the Fund on the Company; the
absence of an existing public market for Units; the unpredictability and potential volatility of the market price of
Units; the nature of trust units; the availability of cash to make distributions; the nature of cash-on-cash yield as
a measure of return on the Units; the subordinated nature of the Units to the Fund’s and its subsidiaries’ debt;
the effect of leverage and restrictive covenants in agreements relating to current and future indebtedness of the
Company; restrictions on the potential growth of the Company as a consequence of the payment by the
Company of substantially all of its operating cash flow; income tax related risks; potential dilution of
Unitholders’ interest in the Fund from additional issuances by the Fund or from sales of Units by the Vendor;
the possible inability to recover from the Vendor for breaches of the Acquisition Agreement (as defined herein);
the Vendor’s right to approve certain material transactions; potential conflicts of interest; possible limits on
Unitholder limited liability; the nature of the securities that would be distributed to Unitholders on a dissolution
of the Fund; and the effect of limits on Non-resident ownership of Units.

The information contained in this prospectus, including the information set forth under “Risk Factors”,
identifies additional factors that could affect the operating results and performance of the Fund and
the Company.

The forward looking statements contained herein are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary
statement. The forward looking statements included in this prospectus are made as of the date of this prospectus
and the Fund assumes no obligation to update or revise them to reflect new events or circumstances.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

Unless otherwise indicated, the market and industry data contained in this prospectus is based upon
information from independent industry and other publications and Company Management’s knowledge of and
experience in the markets in which XS Cargo operates. While Company Management believes this data to be
reliable, market and industry data is subject to variations and cannot be verified with complete certainty due to
limits on the availability and reliability of raw data, the voluntary nature of the data gathering process and other
limitations and uncertainties inherent in any statistical survey. None of the Fund, the Company, the Vendor
or the Underwriters has independently verified any of the data from third party sources referred to in
this prospectus.

TRADEMARKS

The “XS Cargo Nothing But Bargains” name and logo is a trademark owned by XS Cargo. All other
trademarks used in this prospectus are the property of their respective owners.



PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the principal features of this offering and should be read together with the more
detailed information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this prospectus. Although the Vendor
currently operates the business to be acquired by the Company, unless in each case otherwise indicated, the disclosure
in this prospectus assumes that the steps outlined under the heading “Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions”
have been complete and the Company operates the broadline closeout retailing business currently operated by the
Vendor. Certain terms used in this prospectus are defined under “Glossary of Terms”.

XS Cargo Income Fund

XS Cargo Income Fund is an unincorporated open-ended investment trust governed by the laws of the
Province of Alberta pursuant to the Declaration of Trust.

The Fund was established for the purposes of investing in the broadline closeout retailing business. The
Fund will hold, through XS Cargo Operating Trust (“XSCOT”), limited partnership units representing a 51%
interest in XS Cargo Limited Partnership (“XS Cargo LP” and, together with its general partner, XS Cargo
GP Inc. (the “GP”), the “Company”). The Vendor, which is owned by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
Michael McKenna, and other members of Company Management, will hold the remaining 49% interest in the
Company. See “XS Cargo Income Fund”, “Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions” and “Retained
Interest and Exchange Rights”.

The Fund intends to make equal monthly distributions of its distributable cash to Unitholders to the extent
determined prudent by the Trustees. See “XS Cargo Income Fund — Cash Distributions”.

Business of XS Cargo'
Overview

XS Cargo is one of the largest broadline closeout retailers in Canada. XS Cargo opened its first store in
Edmonton, Alberta in 1996 and currently operates 21 stores throughout Ontario and the four western provinces,
with an additional three stores scheduled to open by the end of June 2005. During the 12 months ended
January 31, 2005, XS Cargo generated $79.7 million in sales with over 2,000,000 customer purchases and average
sales of $660 per square foot of net retail selling space ($467 per square foot on a gross basis).

The Company sells a broad range of quality brand name products including consumer electronics, small
appliances, housewares, furniture, home décor, personal care, luggage and tools at a significant discount to
regular retail prices. XS Cargo’s merchandising philosophy is to offer “Nothing But Bargains” in its retail stores
and to compete with general retailers on an item-by-item basis solely on price.

The Company’s buyers are in the marketplace virtually every day, enabling them to source and take
advantage of buying opportunities on an almost continuous basis. At the time potential purchases are evaluated,
the Company compares published retail prices for the same or similar items and will generally only make the
purchase if Company Management believes the item can be retailed at the appropriate discount to the published
retail price while still allowing the Company to achieve an acceptable margin.

XS Cargo’s merchandise is generally obtained at a substantial discount to regular wholesale prices. The
primary sources from which XS Cargo derives its merchandise are described below in the order of their
significance (in terms of average purchase volumes) at the present time. The relative significance of each source
changes from time to time depending on numerous economic factors and retail industry conditions.

Closeouts — XS Cargo buys merchandise from manufacturers, distributors and retailers when products are
reaching the end of their life cycles and being replaced by newer models.

Returns — XS Cargo buys returned goods from manufacturers that have been inspected, serviced as
necessary and meet the manufacturer’s original specifications.




Excess Inventory — XS Cargo buys merchandise from manufacturers, distributors and retailers that are in
possession of excess inventory resulting from factory overruns, cancelled orders, shelf pulls, package
changes, buy backs and buying errors.

Business Terminations — XS Cargo buys merchandise from retailers, manufacturers and distributors that are
going out of business.

Since inception in 1996, XS Cargo has not experienced any significant difficulty in obtaining quality, brand
name closeout merchandise in adequate volumes and at attractive prices.

The Company supplements its traditional brand name closeout purchases with products manufactured to its
specifications in China.

Operating Philosophy
Company Management intends to continue to pursue the following operating strategies:

Pricing — Company Management’s strategy is to price every product offered by XS Cargo at a significant
discount to regular retail prices, including prices offered by discounters and wholesale clubs. Company
Management believes that price is the primary consideration for the Company’s customers. Therefore, the most
important factor in the Company’s performance and growth is its ability to sell merchandise at 40% to 80%
below regular retail prices.

Targeted Advertising — XS Cargo advertises primarily in multi-page circulars (“flyers”) distributed in local
subscription daily newspapers and uses a focused price/item approach to highlight its price advantage over
competing retailers and generate brand and location awareness for its stores. The Company produced
35 system-wide flyer promotions in the year ended October 31, 2004, totalling over 50 million flyers. The
Company’s advertising expenditures have been consistent as a percentage of sales since 1998, averaging 5.2%.

Product Selection — XS Cargo focuses on a diverse selection of quality, name brand, high-demand
merchandise to anchor its price and item advertising strategy. The Company’s stores carry many of the same
name brand products as general retailers. Certain core categories of merchandise are carried on a continual
basis, although the specific brand names offered may change frequently. Company Management believes that
the constantly changing product offerings generate repeat visits from its value conscious customers. The
Company also carries more high value items and more brand name merchandise than other closeout retailers,
which Company Management believes provides it with an additional competitive advantage.

Attractive Store Economics — Consistent with XS Cargo’s pricing strategy, overhead costs are minimized. As a
destination retailer, the Company is not dependent on nearby customer traffic to generate traffic for its stores.
Accordingly, the Company’s stores, while conveniently located on or near major roadways with ample parking,
are typically located in less expensive secondary sites, rather than in power centres, enclosed malls or new retail
developments. Leasehold improvements and store fixtures are functional, but are not expensive. The average
cost of equipment and leasehold improvements to open a new store has historically been less than $100,000, an
investment that has been recouped on average in less than two months. The Company’s rapid inventory turnover
contributed to high sales per square foot productivity ($660 per square foot of net retail selling space ($467 per
square foot gross) during the 12 months ended January 31, 2005). A highly centralized operating philosophy
results in a cost-efficient, flat management structure.

Growth in Sales and Normalized EBITDA

From fiscal year 1998 to 2004 sales have grown by 219.8%, a compound annual growth rate of 21.4%, and
Normalized EBITDA has grown by 938.5%, a compound annual growth rate of 47.7%.

XS Cargo has increased its same store sales at an average rate of 3.7% per year over the period from fiscal
1998. Company Management believes that the Company can continue to grow same store sales, in part by
continuing its historical strategy of expanding its selection of closeout merchandise and by adding new product
categories. In addition, Company Management believes the Company can increase its market share in the
existing core product categories such as consumer electronics, housewares, luggage and home décor.




For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2004, XS Cargo generated $73.8 million in sales and $13.5 million in

Normalized EBITDA and for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005 generated $79.7 million in sales and
$14.4 million in Normalized EBITDA. The following charts illustrate XS Cargo’s growth in sales and
Normalized EBITDA for the periods indicated.

Sales®
(millions of dollars)

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2004 12 months ended
January 31, 2005

Note:

M

Except for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005, sales data is for years ended October 31.

Normalized EBITDA®®
(millions of dollars)

144

13.5

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 12 months ended
January 31, 2005

Notes:

)

@
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Normalized EBITDA represents EBITDA adjusted for certain items that Company Management believes facilitate the comparison of
historical periods. EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA are not earnings measures recognized by GAAP and do not have a standardized
meaning prescribed by GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented by
other issuers. See “Non-GAAP Measures” and “Reconciliation of Net Income to Normalized EBITDA”.

Except for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005, Normalized EBITDA data is for years ended October 31.

The year 2003 was a transition year for XS Cargo, as management made the strategic decision to cease off-site sales events. Although
off-site sales events were profitable, they consumed a disproportionate amount of management time and resources and diverted focus
and inventory from corporate stores. Conducting off-site sales also created an opportunity cost for store operations because finite
inventory was being liquidated at lower overall gross margins and with higher operating costs. In the latter half of 2003, management
began to implement the new strategy and opened four new stores in Ontario and British Columbia.




Growth in Gross Margin

From fiscal year 1998 to 2004, XS Cargo’s gross margin percentage has increased from 23.1% to 36.4%, due
in part to the increase in XS Cargo’s product selection and expansion in product categories, particularly products
and product categories with higher margins. The following chart illustrates the growth in gross margin
percentage since 1998.

Gross Margin®

36.2%
27.6% 28.8% -
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004  LTMended
January 31, 2005

Note:
(1) Except for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005, gross margin percentage data is for years ended October 31.

Number of Stores

XS Cargo has expanded steadily throughout Ontario and the four western provinces over the past eight
years, operating a total of 17 stores at October 31, 2004, 19 stores at January 31, 2005 and 21 stores at April 30,
2005. The Company has entered into leases for three new stores that are scheduled to open by the end of
June 2005. The following chart illustrates the growth in number of stores for the periods indicated.

Number of Stores”

24
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 As at Asat Scheduled
January 31,2005 May6,2005 by the end of
June 2005

Note:

(1) Except as otherwise indicated, number of stores data is as of October 31.

10




Diversification

XS Cargo’s sales are geographically diversified. Stores are currently located in five provinces covering key
regional markets, as illustrated in the following charts.

Percentage of Stores by Region® Percentage of Sales by Region®
Saskatchewan Saskatchewan
and Manitoba and Manitoba
18% 15%
Ontario
46%
BC BC
18% 15%
Alberta Alberta
18% 22%
Saskatchewan and Manitoba M BC & Alberta M Ontario Saskatchewan and Manitoba H BC [ Alberta W Ontario

Notes:
(1) Percentage of stores by region as at October 31, 2004.

(2) Percentage of sales by region for the year ended October 31, 2004.

Business Strengths

XS Cargo possesses a number of competitive advantages that Company Management believes set it apart
from other discount retailers and make its operating and financial performance sustainable.

Strong Sourcing Capabilities and Purchasing Power

An integral part of the Company’s success is its ability to source and purchase quality, brand name
merchandise from brokers, manufacturers, distributors, retailers and other vendors at prices substantially below
those paid by traditional retailers.

Purchasing Expertise

The Company has three internal buyers with a combined 71 years of experience in retail merchandising.
The Company’s buying team analyzes purchases on a case-by-case basis as opportunities are sourced. Company
Management uses its expertise to source and select quality brand name merchandise with high consumer
demand. The Company has developed relationships with a large network of independent brokers and others that
either own or locate and procure merchandise for the Company.

Supply Diversification

As at January 31, 2005, the Company had over 200 active vendor accounts. In fiscal year 2004, the
Company’s top ten closeout vendors accounted for approximately 40% of total merchandise purchases, with only
one closeout vendor (10.5%) accounting for more than 10%. The Company has also had an agreement since
November 1, 2003 with a Canadian import company that aggregates supply on the Company’s behalf from a
variety of vendors in China. Purchases from the import company under the agreement represented
approximately 19.2% of the Company’s merchandise purchases in fiscal 2004. No other vendor accounted for
more than 5% of the Company’s merchandise purchases in fiscal 2004. Company Management believes that the
termination of its supply agreement with the import company would not have a material effect on its ability to
obtain products for sale.
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Purchasing Power

The Company purchases most of its merchandise on a cash basis, rather than on credit, and does not
require that manufacturers provide co-operative advertising, rebates, promotional or mark-down allowances,
delayed deliveries or other concessions often demanded by traditional retailers. The Company also typically
arranges for pickup and pays the cost of transportation from the vendor’s warehouse, thereby expediting and
simplifying the sale process and reducing transaction risk for the vendor. Company Management believes that
this strategy provides the Company with a competitive advantage by meeting manufacturers’ and brokers’
objective of liquidating excess inventory on a timely basis. Company Management believes that this strategy
gives the Company the opportunity to source high demand, quality merchandise and continue to expand its
network of brokers and other vendors.

Innovative, Entrepreneurial Culture and Strong Management

The Company was founded by a small group of retail entrepreneurs led by the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, Michael McKenna, which currently has a combined 92 years experience in the retail industry. Since
inception, the Company has maintained a culture of entrepreneurial spirit and a centralized and efficient
management structure. The Company’s senior management team consists of seven members, five of whom have
been with the Company since inception and four of which are the founding shareholders of the Vendor. The
senior management team makes all key decisions with respect to merchandise purchases, product pricing and
promotion.

Company Management’s interest will be aligned with the interests of the Company and Unitholders
through Company Management’s collective ownership, through the Vendor, of approximately 49% of the
outstanding Units (assuming the exchange for Units of all Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units)
and through their participation in XS Cargo’s long term incentive plan (the “LTIP”). In addition, the
distributions on 20% of the LP Units held by the Vendor will be subordinated to distributions on the Fund’s LP
Units until at least December 31, 2006. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Michacl McKenna, is the
controlling shareholder (67.5%) of the Vendor.

Favourable Industry Trends and Characteristics

Company Management believes that the closeout retailing industry has benefited from several trends in the
retailing industry, including the increase in “just-in-time” inventory management techniques, retailer
consolidations and shorter product cycles which have caused inventory risk to shift from retailers to
manufacturers (See “Industry Overview”). While these developments have provided closeout retailers with an
ample supply of merchandise, there remain relatively few closeout retailers in Canada, most of which operate in
niche markets like computers, consumer electronics, hardware or fashion. Company Management believes that
this environment presents a significant opportunity for a broadline closeout retailer such as the Company to
expand in new and existing markets and to grow its network of vendors and brokers.

In addition to favourable trends within the retailing industry, Company Management believes that the
closeout industry as a whole is less susceptible to changes in economic conditions than general retailers.
Company Management believes that during economic downturns there are more retailers, distributors and
manufacturers with excess inventory and more business failures, which collectively create more buying
opportunities for the Company. In addition, Company Management believes that consumers tend to be more
cost conscious during economic downturns, which gives the Company a competitive advantage over conventional
retailers.

Growth Strategy

New Stores

XS Cargo intends to continue its cross-Canada expansion in both new and existing markets. The Company
has opened four new stores so far in fiscal 2005 and has entered into leases for three additional stores scheduled
to open by the end of June 2005. Historically, the Company has funded expansion through operating cash flows
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and shareholder loans. This has been possible because of the low cost of equipment and leasehold improvements
for new stores. The average cost of equipment and leasehold improvements for the last ten stores opened by
XS Cargo is less than $100,000, a cost that historically has been recouped from operating income within two
months. Substantially all of the capital expenditures budgeted to be made for equipment and leasehold
improvements for the three additional stores will be incurred prior to the Closing Date.

Company Management believes there is the potential for approximately 70 XS Cargo stores in Canada
based on the existing store size, format and product mix and currently plans to open new stores at the rate of
approximately four stores per year. Company Management does not currently anticipate any difficulties in
identifying suitable additional store locations in areas within the Company’s target markets.

Same Store Sales

Since 1998, XS Cargo has increased its same store sales at an average rate of 3.7% per year primarily by
expanding its selection of closeout merchandise and by adding new product categories. In addition, Company
Management believes the Company can increase its market share in existing core product categories such as
consumer electronics, housewares, luggage and home décor. Company Management believes that opportunities
to expand product selection and continue to grow same store sales will be further enhanced as the Company
increases its number of stores and expands it supply network.

Distribution and Logistics

The Company opened a warehouse/distribution centre in Mississauga, Ontario in April 2005. Historically,
all merchandise was shipped from suppliers to the Company’s Edmonton warehouse/distribution facilities where
it was distributed to the Company’s stores. Company Management believes that the addition of the Ontario
warehouse and distribution centre will reduce freight costs and facilitate a faster distribution/replenishment
cycle, thereby reducing lead-times and stock-outs and increasing the Company’s cash flows. Company
Management also believes that the Ontario warchouse will facilitate the Company’s planned expansion in
Ontario and eastern Canada. The Ontario warehouse and distribution center is leased and substantially all of the
capital expenditures budgeted to be made for equipment and leasehold improvements have been incurred.

The Company’s Edmonton warehouse/distribution operations are currently conducted through three
separate facilities, one of which is provided by a third party contractor. The Company plans to consolidate its
Edmonton facilities by moving to a new single warehouse/distribution facility in August 2005. The new facility is
being built to the Company’s specifications and is expected to provide certain operational efficiencies and cost
savings. The new Edmonton facility will be leased and substantially all of the significant capital expenditures
budgeted to be made for equipment and leasehold improvements will be incurred prior to the Closing Date.
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Selected Historical Financial and Operating Information

The following selected historical financial and operating information has been derived from the historical
financial statements of the Vendor set out elsewhere in this prospectus. This information should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements of the Vendor, together with the notes thereto, included elsewhere in
this prospectus.

Three Months Ended

January 31, 12 Months Ended Years Ended October 31,
2005® 2004 January 31, 20052 2004V 2003V 20020
(in thousands of dollars except gross margin percentage and number of stores)
T8AlES .t 29,447 23,527 79,673 73,753 59,112 54,791
GrossMargin. ................ 10,592 8,633 28,824 26,865 17,798 16,582
Gross Margin Percentage ........ 36.0% 36.7% 36.2% 36.4% 30.1% 303%
Net Income (loss) ............. (65) (47) (133) (115) (72) (75)
Normalized EBITDA® .. ........ 5,712 4,869 14,354 13,511 6,018 6,359
Stores at Period End ........... 19 15 19 17~ 15 11

Notes:
(1) The amounts are derived from the Vendor’s audited and unaudited historical financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus.

(2) The amounts for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005 have been derived from the Vendor’s audited financial statements for the year
ended October 31, 2004 and the Vendor’s unaudited financial statements for the three month periods ended January 31, 2005 and
January 31, 2004 included in this table and elsewhere in this prospectus. The results of operations for this period are not necessarily
indicative of the results of operations to be expected in any given fiscal year.

(3) Normalized EBITDA represents EBITDA adijusted for certain items that Company Management believes facilitates the comparability
of historical periods. EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA are not measures recognized by GAAP and do not have standardized
meanings prescribed by GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented
by other issuers. See “Non-GAAP Measures” and “Reconciliation of Net Income to Normalized EBITDA".

Summary of Distributable Cash of the Fund

The following analysis has been prepared by Company Management on the basis of the financial and other
information contained in this prospectus and Company Management’s estimate of the amount of expenses and
expenditures to be incurred by the Company and the Fund. This analysis is not a forecast or a projection of
future results. The actual results of operations of the Company for any period, whether before or after the
closing of the offering, will vary from the amounts set forth in the following analysis and such variation may be
material. The following analysis does not take into account the additional EBITDA that Company Management
anticipates will be generated by the two new stores that opened in April 2005 and the three new stores scheduled
to open by the end of June 2005.

Company Management believes that, upon completion of the offering and the transactions described under
“Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions”, the Company will incur capital replacement and renovations
expenditures, incremental general administrative costs and interest expense that will differ from those contained
in the consolidated financial statements that are included elsewhere in this prospectus. Although Company
Management does not have firm commitments for all of the aforementioned items and, accordingly, the
complete financial effects of all of those items are not objectively determinable, Company Management believes
that the following represents a reasonable estimate of what distributable cash would have been for the
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twelve months ended January 31, 2005 had the Fund been in existence during such time and had the Acquisition
taken place at the beginning of such period:

12 Months Ended
January 31, 2005®
(unaudited)

($ thousands except
per unit data)

Normalized EBITDAP®) | L it ittt it ininaeeeees 14,354
Company Management estimates that the following amount will increase

distributable cash:

Vendor volume rebate agreement® . .. ... ...l 478
Company Management estimates that the following amounts will decrease

distributable cash:

Maintenance capital expenditures® ... ... .. ..ol 175
Incremental general and administrative costs® . . ... ..l 400
Interest eXpense(® . . .. ...ttt 788
Distributable cash® . . . oottt i e e 13,469
Distributable cash per Unit® .. ........ ... ..ot e e e 1.125
Notes:
(1) Certain financial information has been derived from the historical consolidated financial statements of the Vendor contained elsewhere

@

©)

O

)

(6)

™

@®

)

in this prospectus. See also “Non-GAAP Measures” and “Selected Historical Financial and Operating Information”.

Normalized EBITDA represents EBITDA adjusted for certain items that Company Management believes facilitates the comparability
of historical periods. EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA are not measures recognized by GAAP and do not have standardized
meanings prescribed by GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented
by other issuers. See “Non-GAAP Measures” and “Reconciliation of Net Income to Normalized EBITDA”.

During the twelve months ended January 31, 2005, the Company entered into a supply and rebate agreement with a supply aggregator
providing for a rebate payable quarterly based on the Company’s purchases through the supply aggregator. For accounting purposes, the
portion of the rebate received that relates to products that are still in the Company’s inventory are recorded as a reduction in inventory
cost. As only a portion of the rebate received has been recognized in income for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005, an adjustment
has been made to the calculation of distributabie cash to reflect the portion of the cash rebate received but not recognized.

Maintenance capital expenditures have been estimated by Company Management based on historical expenditure levels and the current
number and condition of stores.

Company Management estimates that, subsequent to the offering, the Fund and the Company will incur additional general and
administrative costs on an ongoing basis in connection with reporting to Unitholders, investor relations, trustee and director fees and
other related matters.

For purposes of calculating estimated distributable cash, interest at the rate of 5.25% per annum has been applied to an estimated
average amount outstanding under the Credit Facility of $15 million. The Credit Facility provides for interest at the lender’s Canadian
prime rate or U.S. base rate plus 0% to 0.25% on the operating facility and the lender’s Canadian prime rate plus 0.25% to 0.75% or the
lender’s banker’s acceptance rate plus 1.75% to 2.25% on the term facility. The lender’s prime rate is currently 4.25%. See
“Credit Facility”.

Distributable cash is a measure that is not recognized by GAAP and does not have a standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP. See
“Non-GAAP Measures”.

Based on 11,972,450 Units outstanding on a fully diluted basis upon completion of the offering, assuming exchange for Units of all
outstanding Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units.

Only 15 of XS Cargo’s 21 stores were operating for the full twelve month period ended January 31, 2005, and two of XS Cargo's stores
opened subsequent to this period. During the twelve month period ended January 31, 2005, one store opened in June 2004 (8 months of
operations), one store opened in October 2004 (3.5 months of operations), one store opened in November 2004 (2.5 months of
operations) and one store opened in December 2004 (2 months of operations). Two additional stores opened in April 2005. The
estimate of distributable cash set forth above is based on historical Normalized EBITDA and no adjustments have been made to reflect
Company Management’s estimate of Normalized EBITDA if all 19 stores had been operating for the entire twelve month period ended
January 31, 2005. In addition, the estimate of distributable cash does not take into account the additional EBITDA that Company
Management anticipates will be generated by the two new stores that opened in April 2005 and the three new stores scheduled to open
by the end of June 2005. .
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Offered Units:
Price:
Amount:
Units:

Use of Proceeds:

Management Retained
Interest:

THE OFFERING

6,106,000 Units
$10.00 per Unit.
$61,060,000

Each Unit represents an equal undivided beneficial interest in the Fund and
in any distributions payable by the Fund. Each Unit is transferable, entitles
the holder thereof to participate equally in distributions of the Fund, is not
subject to future calls or assessment and entities the holder to rights of
redemption and to one vote at all meetings of Voting Unitholders. See
“XS Cargo Income Fund”.

The gross proceeds of $61,060,000 from the offering will be used by the Fund
to indirectly acquire a 51% interest in the Company. The Fund will use the
gross proceeds of the offering to subscribe for XSCOT Units and XSCOT
Notes. XSCOT will use the proceeds from the issuance to the Fund of the
XSCOT Units and XSCOT Notes to subscribe for 6,106,000 Ordinary
LP Units and GP Common Shares for $61,060,000. XS Cargo LP will use the
proceeds from the issuance to XSCOT of the Ordinary LP Units, and will
draw down approximately $15 million under the Credit Facility, to pay the
expenses of the offering and the Underwriters’ fee and, together with the
issuance to the Vendor of Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated
LP Units, representing in the aggregate 49% of the outstanding LP Units and
GP Common Shares representing 49% of the GP Common Shares, to
purchase the Purchased Assets from the Vendor. The Fund will then hold a
51% indirect interest in the Company. See “Use of Proceeds” and “Funding,
Acquisition and Related Transactions”.

In addition to cash consideration, a portion of the consideration to be
received by the Vendor (all of the shares of which are owned by the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Michael McKenna, and other members
of Company Management) under the Acquisition Agreement will consist of a
49% interest in the Company comprised of 3,471,970 Exchangeable
LP Units, 2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units and 5,866,450 GP Common
Shares. The purpose of issuing Subordinated LP Units to the Vendor rather
than Units is, among other things, to provide Unitholders with priority on
distributions in certain circumstances. See “XS Cargo Income Fund — Cash
Distributions” and “XS Cargo LP — LP Units”. The Exchangeable LP Units
and Subordinated LP Units will be indirectly exchangeable for Units of the
Fund on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances.
In addition, the Vendor will be granted “demand” and “piggy back”
registration rights by the Fund in respect of the Units that it indirectly owns
or may acquire pursuant to the exercise of its Exchange Rights, subject to
certain restrictions. See “Retained Interest and Exchange Rights” and
“XS Cargo LP — LP Units”. Subject to certain exceptions and the escrow
provisions described in “Principal Agreements — Acquisition Agreement”,
the Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units will not be
transferable for 180 days after the Closing Date.
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Distribution Policy:

The Fund intends to make monthly distributions of its available cash to
Unitholders to the extent determined prudent by the Trustees. Monthly
distributions are to be paid to Unitholders of record on the last business day
of each calendar month or such other date as may be determined from time
to time by the Trustees and are to be paid generally on the 15th day of the
following month. The initial cash Distribution for the period from the
Closing Date to June 30, 2005 is expected to be $0.1387 per Unit (assuming
that closing occurs on May 17, 2005) and is expected to be paid on or before
July 15, 2005 to Unitholders of record as of June 30, 2005. Subsequent
regular distributions in the estimated amount of $0.09375 per Unit are
anticipated to be made in each month thereafter commencing on or about
August 15, 2005. Distributable cash of the Fund will be derived from
distributions from XSCOT and interest on the XSCOT Notes. See
“XS Cargo Income Fund — Cash Distributions”.

The distributable cash of XSCOT will be derived primarily from distributions
on or in respect of Ordinary LP Units owned by XSCOT. XSCOT intends to
make monthly distributions to holders of XSCOT Units of its distributable
cash after satisfaction of its interest obligations, if any, including interest on
the XSCOT Notes, less any administrative expenses and other obligations of
XSCOT, including principal repayments in respect of the XSCOT Notes. See
“XS Cargo Operating Trust — Cash Distributions”.

XS Cargo LP will make monthly distributions of distributable cash on the
Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units and, subject to the
subordination provisions described below, quarterly cash distributions on
the Subordinated LP Units. The distributable cash of XS Cargo LP will be
based on available cash from its operations, less amounts required for debt
service obligations, paying awards under the long-term incentive plan and
other incentives, working capital reserves, maintenance capital expenditure
reserves, renewal reserves, upgrade and renovation reserves or other
reserves, expenditures in excess of reserves, and such other amounts as may
be considered appropriate by the board of directors of the GP. Capital and
other expenditures (including amounts to enable XS Cargo LP to pay equal
monthly distributions based on expected annual cash distributions) may be
financed with drawings under one or more credit facilities to be established
on behalf of XS Cargo LP, other borrowings or additional issuances of Units.
See “XS Cargo LP — LP Units”.

The Fund, XSCOT and the Company have considerable discretion in
determining the amount of cash distributions. Cash distributions are not
guaranteed and will fluctuate with, among other things, the Company’s
performance. See “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Structure of the
Fund and the Offering — Cash Distributions”.
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Subordination of
Distributions on
Subordinated LP Units:

Distributions on the Subordinated LP Units will be subordinated in favour of
Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units. Distributions will only be
paid by XS Cargo LP on the Subordinated LP Units at the end of a fiscal
quarter to the extent that: (i) XS Cargo LP has paid average monthly
distributions of at least $0.09375 per Ordinary LP Unit and Exchangeable
LP Unit to holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units during
that quarter, and (ii) any deficiency in such distributions to holders of
Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units during the preceding
12 months has been satisfied, as described below. If these targets are not
satisfied, distributions on Subordinated LP Units will be reduced to the
extent necessary to support the continued payment of distributions on the
Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units and any applicable deficiency
in such distributions.

Distributions on the Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units will be
cumulative, such that the amount of any deficiency will accumulate for a
period of 12 months. Payments of deficiencies in distributions on the
Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units will be made in priority to
distributions on the Subordinated LP Units. Any accumulated deficiency on
Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units not satisfied by a distribution
by XS Cargo LP within 12 months of the date it arose will cease to be payable
(i.e., distributions on the Subordinated LP Units will not be reduced to fund
accumulated deficiency to the extent that some or all of such accumulated
deficiency arose more than 12 months before the date on which such
payment is to be made). As the holder of the Ordinary LP Units, XSCOT will
be entitled to enforce payment of any accumulated deficiency during the
term of the subordination provisions.

The Subordinated LP Units will automatically convert into Exchangeablé
LP Units on a one-for-one basis at (and the subordination provisions will
only apply until) the earlier of:

(i) December 31, 2006 if, for the fiscal year of XS Cargo LP ending on such
date, XS Cargo LP has earned EBITDA (derived from audited financial
statements) of at least $14.432 million (the “EBITDA Target”), and
XS Cargo LP has paid distributions of at least $1.125 per LP Unit (the
“Distribution Target”) for each of the fiscal years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005 (annualized in the case of 2005), and

(i) the end of any fiscal year of the Fund following December 31, 2006 in
respect of which XS Cargo LP has earned EBITDA (derived from
audited financial statements) of at least the EBITDA Target and
XS Cargo LP has paid distributions per LP Unit at least equal to the
Distribution Target for such fiscal year.

The subordination provisions will also cease to apply to the Subordinated
LP Units (and the Subordinated LP Units will automatically convert into
Exchangeable LP Units on a one-for-one basis) in certain other specified
circumstances. See “Retained Interest and Exchange Rights —
Subordination”.

For the purposes of the subordination provisions, EBITDA will be calculated
and adjusted in a manner consistent with the definition of EBITDA set forth
in this prospectus. See “Non-GAAP Measures”.
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Eligibility for Investment:

Risk Factors:

In the opinion of Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLPF, counsel to the Fund,
and Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP, counsel to the Underwriters, provided
the Fund is a mutual fund trust, the Units, at closing of the offering, will be
qualified investments under the Tax Act and the regulations thereunder for
Exempt Plans. In the opinion of such counsel, at closing of the offering, the
Units will not constitute “foreign property” for the purposes of the tax
imposed under Part XI of the Tax Act on Deferred Income Plans, registered
investments and other tax-exempt entities, including most registered pension
funds or plans. RESPs are not subject to the foreign property rules. See
“Eligibility for Investment”. The foregoing opinion assumes that, prior to the
closing of the offering, there will be no change in the applicable legislation
currently in effect.

Pursuant to the 2005 Federal Budget on February 23, 2005, the Minister of
Finance (Canada) announced that the limit in respect of foreign property
that may be held by a taxpayer subject to Part X1 of the Tax Act will be
eliminated for 2005 and subsequent calendar years. There can be no
assurance that such proposal will be enacted.

An investment in Units is subject to certain risk factors that prospective
investors should carefully consider. The risk factors include industry risks
associated with the broadline closeout retailing business including: the
Company’s ability to maintain profitability and manage growth; the
Company’s ability to expand through new store openings; the Company’s
ability to source products in quantities and on terms acceptable to the
Company; changes in trends and consumer tastes; economic conditions and
consumer spending; marketing expenditures; competition; reliance on
centralized distribution centers; freight costs; ability to maintain comparable
store sales; seasonality and fluctuations in quarterly results; reliance on
management information systems; increases in the cost of, or disruption in
the flow of, imported products; successful management of exposure to
merchandise returns; foreign exchange fluctuations; costs and availability of
insurance coverage; intellectual property; reliance on key personnel; labour
matters; absence of an operating history as a public company; dependence on
external funding sources; environmental regulation; uncertainties arising
from world events; and property taxes. The risk factors also include risks
associated with the structure of the Fund and the offering including: the
dependence of the Fund on the Company and Company Management;
absence of a prior public market for the Units; unpredictability and potential
volatility of the trading price of the Units including the effect of market
interest rates on the price of Units; the nature of the Units; cash distributions
are not guaranteed and will fluctuate with the Company’s performance; the
legal attributes of the Units; the possibility that the Company may not be able
to recover from the Vendor for breaches of the Acquisition Agreement;
leverage and restrictive covenants in agreements relating to current and
future indebtedness of the Company; the restrictions on the potential growth
of the Company as a consequence of the payment by the Company of
substantially all of its operating cash flow; income tax related risks; future
sales of Units by the Fund or the Vendor; the Vendor’s right to approve
certain material transactions; investment eligibility and foreign property
status of the Units; the distribution of securities on redemption or
termination of the Fund; and restrictions on non-resident Unitholders and
liquidity of Units. See “Risk Factors”.
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Tax Considerations:

Each Canadian resident Unitholder will be required to include in computing
income for Canadian income tax purposes for a particular taxation year the
Unitholder’s pro rata share of the Fund’s income that was paid or payable in
that year by the Fund to the Unitholder and that was deducted by the Fund in
computing its income. Generally, all other amounts received by Canadian
resident Unitholders will not be included in the Unitholders’ income, but will
reduce the adjusted cost base of the Unitholders’ Units, for Canadian income
tax - purposes. Prospective purchasers should consult their tax advisors
regarding the tax implications of an investment in Units. See “Certain
Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations”.

Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions

The following chart illustrates the structure of the Fund on completion of this offering and the indirect
investment by the Fund in the Company. See “Retained Interest and Exchange Rights”, “Funding, Acquisition
and Related Transactions” and “Use of Proceeds”.

Notes:

Public
Unitholders

XS Cargo
Income Fund
(the “Fund”)

100% (XSCOT Units
and XSCOT Notes)

XS Cargo
Operating Trust
(“XSCOT”)

Vendor®

XS Cargo LP and
XS Cargo GP Inc.
(the “Company”)®

(1) Ordinary LP Units and GP Common Shares, representing 51% of the LP Units and GP Common Shares.

(2) Exchangeable LP Units, Subordinated LP Units and GP Common Shares representing, collectively, 49% of the LP Units and

GP Common Shares.

(3) The GP will hold all of the outstanding GP Units.

(4) The Vendor is owned by four of the existing members of Company Management, including the Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer, Michael McKenna (67.5%).
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

In this prospectus, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:

“ABCA” means the Business Corporations Act (Alberta), as amended, including the regulations promulgated
thereunder;

“Acquisition” means the acquisition by XS Cargo LP from the Vendor of the Purchased Assets and the
assumption by the Company of certain related liabilities as more particularly described under “Principal
Agreements — Acquisition Agreement”;

“Acquisition Agreement”’ means the asset purchase and sale agreement to be entered into between XS Cargo LP
and the Vendor providing for the sale by the Vendor of the Purchased Assets to XS Cargo LP;

“Acquisition Transaction” means an amalgamation, merger or other form of business combination involving the
Fund or XS Cargo LP, any sale, lease, exchange or transfer of a substantial portion of the assets of the Fund or
XS Cargo LP, or any reorganization, recapitalization, liquidation or winding-up or other business combination
involving the Fund or XS Cargo LP;

«“Administration Agreement” means the administration agreement to be entered into between the Fund, XSCOT
and the GP;

“affiliate” means “affiliated entity” within the nieaning of Section 1.2 of Ontario Securities Commission
Rule 45-501 — Exempt Distributions promulgated under the Securities Act (Ontario);

“associate” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Securities Act (Alberta);

“Business” means the broadline closeout retailing business of the Vendor;

“Closing Date” means the date of completion of the offering;

“Company” means collectively, XS Cargo LP and the GE, the general partner of XS Cargo LP;
“Company Management” means senior management of the GP;

“Credit Facility” means the credit facility to be entered into by XS Cargo LP with a Canadian chartered bank on
or before the closing of the offering. See “Credit Facility”;

“Declaration of Trust” means the declaration of trust dated April 6, 2005 pursuant to which the Fund was
established, as the same may be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time. See “XS Cargo
Income Fund”;

“Deferred Income Plans” means, collectively, trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered
retirement income funds and deferred profit sharing plans, each as defined in the Tax Act;

“diluted basis” means, for purposes of the Securityholders Agreement, the number of Units outstanding assuming
the exchange of all Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units;

“distributable cash” has the meaning given to it under “Non-GAAP Measures™;
“Distribution Target” means distributions of at least $1.125 per LP Unit in a fiscal year;
“EBITDA” has the meaning given to it under “Non-GAAP Measures”;

“EBITDA Target” means annual EBITDA of XS Cargo LP (derived from audited financial statements) of at least
$14.432 million; ’

“Exchange Agreement” means the exchange agreement to be entered into among the Fund, XSCOT, the
Company, and the Vendor providing for, among other things, the Exchange Rights, and demand and piggyback
registration rights. See “Retained Interest and Exchange Rights”;
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“Exchange Rights” means the right of a holder of Exchangeable LP Units to exchange one Exchangeable LP Unit
for one Unit by delivering such Exchangeable LP Unit in exchange for a Unit. See “Retained Interest and
Exchange Rights”;

“Exchangeable LP Units” means the exchangeable units of XS Cargo LP held by the Vendor on the Closing Date;

“Exchangeable Securities” means the Exchangeable LP Units, the Subordinated LP Units and any other
securities that are exchangeable, directly or indirectly, for Units;

“Exempt Plans” means, collectively, Deferred Income Plans and RESPs;

“Fund” means XS Cargo Income Fund, a trust established under the laws of the Province of Alberta pursuant to
the Declaration of Trust;

“GP” means XS Cargo GP Inc., a corporation incorporated under the ABCA;
“GP Common Shares” means the common shares in the capital of the GP;
“GP Units” means the ordinary general partner units of XS Cafgo LP held by the GP;

“gross margin percentage”’ means the result obtained by deducting cost of sales from sales and dividing the
remainder by sales;

“TTLA” means the Income Trusts Liability Act (Alberta);

“Limited Partnership Agreement” means the limited partnership agreement, as amended, supplemented or
restated from time to time, between the Vendor, the GP and XSCOT, by which XS Cargo LP will be governed,;

“LP Units” means, collectively, the Ordinary LP Units, the Exchangeable LP Units and the Subordinated
LP Units;

“LTIP” means the long-term incentive plan of XS Cargo LP;
“1933 Act” means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended;

“Non-Competition Agreements” means the non-competition agreements to be entered into between the
Company and Michael McKenna and the other shareholders of the Vendor as more particularly described under
“Principal Agreements — Non-Competition Agreements”;

“Non-resident” means a non-resident of Canada within the meaning of the Tax Act;
“Normalized EBITDA” has the meaning given to it under “Non-GAAP Measures”;

“Note Indenture” means the note indenture to be made between XSCOT and the Note Trustee, providing for the
issuance of the XSCOT Notes;

“Note Trustee” means the trustee under the Note Indenture;
“QOrdinary LP Units” means the ordinary limited partnership units of XS Cargo LP;

“Partnership Special Resolution” means a resolution of the partners of XS Cargo LP passed with the consent of
the holders of at least 66%:% of the LP Units and GP Units, in the aggregate, voted on such resolution at a duly
constituted meeting or by a written resolution of partners holding more than 66%% of the LP Units and
GP Units, in the aggregate, entitled to vote at a duly constituted meeting;

“Permitted Investments” means: (i) obligations issued or guaranteed by the Government of Canada or any
province of Canada or any agency or instrumentality thereof; (ii) term deposits, guaranteed investment
certificates, certificates of deposit or bankers’ acceptances of or guaranteed by any Canadian chartered bank or
other financial institution, the short-term debt or deposits of which have been rated at least “A” or the equivalent
by Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Company Inc., Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. or
Dominion Bond Rating Services Limited; and (iii) commercial paper rated at least “R-1” or the equivalent by
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Dominion Bond Rating Services Limited, in each case maturing not more than 180 days after the date
of acquisition;

“Person” means any individual, partnership, association, body corporate, trustee, executor, administrator, legal
representative, government, regulatory authority or other entity;

“Proposed Amendments” has the meaning given to it under “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax
Considerations”;

“purchased Assets” means the assets used in the Business to be acquired by XS Cargo LP from the Vendor
pursuant to the Acquisition upon the closing of the offering as more particularly described under “Principal
Agreements — Acquisition Agreement — Purchased Assets and Associated Liabilities™;

“Redemption Date” means a date on which Units are surrendered for redemption;
“Redemption Price” has the meaning given to that term under “XS Cargo Income Fund — Redemption Right”’;
“RESP” means a registered education savings plan as defined in the Tax Act;

“Securityholders Agreement” means the agreement to be entered into among XSCOT, the GP and the Vendor
providing for, among other things, the governance of the GP;

“Series 1 XSCOT Notes” means the series 1 notes of XSCOT issued under the Note Indenture;
“Series 2 XSCOT Notes” means the series 2 notes of XSCOT issued under the Note Indenture;

“Special Resolution” means a resolution of the Voting Unitholders passed by not less than 66%3% of the votes cast,
either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Voting Unitholders called for the purpose of approving such
resolution, or approved in writing by the holders of not less than 66%% of the Voting Units entitled to vote on
such resolution;

“Special Voting Units” means the special voting units of the Fund, issued to or for the benefit of holders of
Exchangeable Securities and certified under the Declaration of Trust for the time being outstanding and entitled
to the benefits and subject to the limitations set forth therein;

“Subordinated LP Units” means the subordinated exchangeable limited partnership units of XS Cargo LP held by
the Vendor on the Closing Date; :

“subsidiary” has the meaning set out in the Securities Act (Alberta) and includes a partnership or other entity;
“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada), as amended, including the regulations promulgated thereunder;
“Trustees”” mean the trustees of the Fund from time to time;

“TSX” means the Toronto Stock Exchange;

«“Underwriters” means CIBC World Markets Inc., RBC Dominion Securities Inc., National Bank Financial Inc.,
Canaccord Capital Corporation and Sprott Securities Inc.;

“Underwriting Agreement” means the underwriting agreement among the Fund, the Company and the
Underwriters;

“Unit” means a trust unit of the Fund other than a Special Voting Unit;
“United States” or “U.S.” means the United States, as defined in Rule 902(1) under Regulation S;
“Unitholders” means the holders of Units from time to time;

“Vendor” means Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc., a corporation incorporated under the ABCA and owned by
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Michael McKenna (67.5%), and certain other members of Company
Management;
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“Vendor Group” means, collectively, the Vendor and any shareholder, associate or affiliate of the Vendor,
including any family member of a shareholder of the Vendor or any company, trust or other entity owned by or
maintained for the benefit of any of such Persons;

“Voting Units”” means the Units and the Special Voting Units;
“Voting Unitholders” means the Unitholders and the holders of Special Voting Units;

“XS Cargo” means the Vendor when referring to events or transactions relating to the Business that occurred or
will occur prior to completion of the Acquisition and means XS Cargo LP when referring to events or
transaction that occurred or will occur after completion of the Acquisition;

“XS Cargo Entities” means, a}ld includes XSCOT, the GP, XS Cargo LP, any of their affiliates and any other direct
or indirect subsidiary of the Fund;

“XS Cargo LP” means XS Cargo Limited Partnership, a limited partnership formed under the laws of the
Province of Alberta;

“XSCOT” means XS Cargo Operating Trust, a trust established under the laws of the Province of Alberta
pursuant to the XSCOT Declaration of Trust; ’

“XSCOT Declaration of Trust” means the declaration of trust dated April 6, 2005 pursuant to which XSCOT was
established, as the same may be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time. See “XS Cargo
Operating Trust”;

“XSCOT Notes” means, collectively, the Series 1 XSCOT Notes and Series 2 XSCOT Notes of XSCOT issued
under the Note Indenture;

“XSCOT Unitholders” means, at the relevant time, the holders of the XSCOT Units; and
“XSCOT Units” means the trust units of XSCOT.
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THE FUND, XSCOT AND XS CARGO LP

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust established under the laws of the Province of Alberta by
the Declaration of Trust. On the closing of the offering, the Fund will own all of the XSCOT Notes and XSCOT
Units, and will hold, indirectly through XSCOT, a 51% interest in the Company. The Fund will receive, indirectly
through XSCOT, distributions of distributable cash of the Company. See “XS Cargo Income Fund”.

XSCOT is an unincorporated trust established under the laws of the Province of Alberta pursuant to the
XSCOT Declaration of Trust. XSCOT was created to initially acquire and hold 51% of the LP Units and
GP Common Shares. See “XS Cargo Operating Trust”.

XS Cargo LP is a limited partnership formed under the laws of the Province of Alberta, with the GP as its
general partner. XS Cargo LP carries on business and is governed under the Limited Partnership Agreement.
The Company, with 21 stores currently open in Ontario and Western Canada, is one of the largest broadline
closeout retailers in Canada. See “XS Cargo LP”. The principal and head office of each of the Fund, XSCOT,
the GP and XS Cargo LP is located at 11730 - 163 Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5M 3W3.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Retail Industry

The Canadian retail industry serves a large market with sales that neared $347 billion in 2004. According to
Statistics Canada, aggregate retail sales of electronics, furniture, appliances, housewares and sporting goods
totalled approximately $37.4 billion in 2003. During the period from 1998 to 2003, total Canadian retail sales of
electronics, furniture, appliances, housewares and sporting goods grew at a compound annual growth rate of
approximately 6.4%.

Canadian Retail Sales of Electronics, Furniture, Appliances, Housewares and Sporting Goods
(billions of dollars)

CAGR 6.4% $374

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

1 Electronics B Furniture 7% Appliances B Housewares B Sporting Goods

The Company has identified the following retail industry trends, which Company Management believes are
favourable to its business prospects.

Canadian Retail Market Forecast to Sustain Growth

According to Euromonitor International, a provider of global consumer market intelligence, a robust
Canadian economy will result in growth in retail sales. The continued strength of the Canadian economy and
steady interest rate environment are expected to continue to drive consumer confidence levels, resulting in
sustained growth in consumer expenditures and retail sales. Euromonitor forecasts that consumer expenditures
on household goods and services will increase by a compound annual growth rate of approximately 4.4% from
2004 to 2008.
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Forecast Canadian Consumer Expenditures on Household Goods and Services
(C$ billions, constant 2003 prices)

CAGR: 4.4%

2004 2005 2006 2008

Increase in After-Tax Income and Access to Credit

Company Management believes that low interest rates, increasing after-tax income, and broader access to
credit have resulted in an increased willingness among consumers to purchase goods on credit.

According to the AKTRIN Research Institute, a writer and publisher of industrial and economic reports,
after-tax income in Canada is expected to grow by 18.1% between 2002 and 2012 due to: - '

* output per worker growth supporting real wage gains;

¢ an increased ratio of employed individuals per household due to the aging of the Canadian
population; and

* further slight declines in personal tax at both the federal and provincial levels.

Closeout Retailing

Company Management believes that closeout retailing is a growing segment of the retail sector. Closeout
retailers carry the same brand name products found at other retailers, but at substantially lower prices. Closeout
retailers purchase excess product at significant discounts from manufacturers and others who want or need to
reduce inventory as a result of production overruns, package changes, discontinued products or returns from
merchandisers. Closeout retailers also take advantage of generally lower prices in the off-season by buying and
warehousing seasonal and general merchandise for future sales. As a result of this lower cost of goods, closeout
retailers can offer the same merchandise at significantly lower prices than those offered by traditional retailers.

The Company has identified the following trends, which Company Management believes are favourable to
the closeout retailing industry.

Shortened Product Lifecycles and Increased Product Turnover

Company Management believes that in recent years there has been a growing trend towards shortened
product life cycles and increased product turnover. Company Management believes that manufacturers are
increasingly shortening product life cycles by introducing new generations of products more rapidly than in the
past. Advertising and marketing campaigns are focusing consumers on the attributes of new products, thereby
encouraging the replacement of older products although they are still functional. As a result, manufacturers are
introducing new products and new packaging on a more frequent basis to maintain their market share in an
increasingly competitive environment. Manufacturers also face pressures to forecast product demand early, so
that they do not disappoint their largest customers. As a result, manufacturers often estimate demand
incorrectly and produce more of a product than their customers require, which increases the supply of first-run
goods available to closeout retailers. Company Management believes that these trends have contributed to
making closeout retailers an integral part of manufacturers’ overall capacity planning and production processes.
As a result, Company Management believes that manufacturers are increasingly relying on closeout retailers,
such as the Company, that can purchase large quantities of merchandise and can control the distribution and
advertising of specific products.
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Industry Consolidation and Emphasis on Just-In-Time Inventory Process

Other favourable trends include consolidations within the retail industry and an emphasis on just-in-time
inventory processes. In 2002, the top six retailers accounted for nearly one-third of total retail industry sales in
Canada, according to Euromonitor. As well, many retailers have just-in-time inventory requirements of
manufacturers. Company Management believes that these trends have resulted in a shift of inventory risk from
retailers to manufacturers, creating an increased amount of cancelled orders resulting from late deliveries and
other events that result in excess inventory accumulating at the manufacturer and distributor level. As a result,
there are better and more frequent opportunities for closeout merchandisers such as the Company to purchase
increasing amounts of excess inventory.

Increased Supply of Product from China

China’s low cost labour force allows Chinese manufacturers to produce quality goods at a fraction of the
cost of those in most other countries. Significant foreign and domestic investment has been made in the Chinese
manufacturing industry in recent years, creating tremendous expansion in productive capacity, which has
contributed to making China one of the world’s largest producers of a number of consumer products. These and
other factors, including enhanced access to international trade channels, have resulted in a fast growing supply
of high quality, low cost goods available for purchase by retailers around the world.

Increase in the Value-Conscioué Consumer Segment

Company Management believes that closeout retailing is gaining market share in the North American retail
market as a result of a growing emphasis by consumers on value. With improved availability of, and access to,
information, due in part to the Internet, consumers are better able to comparison shop. The closeout retailing
sector has gained in popularity as an increasing number of consumers recognize the significant gap that exists in
the prices offered by low cost, low-price retailers, including closeout stores, relative to those offered by
traditional retailers for the same or similar products.

BUSINESS OF XS CARGO

Overview

XS Cargo is one of the largest broadline closeout retailers in Canada. XS Cargo opened its first store in
Edmonton, Alberta in 1996 and currently operates 21 stores throughout Ontario and the four western provinces,
with an additional three stores scheduled to open by the end of June 2005. During the 12 months ended
January 31, 2005, XS Cargo generated $79.7 million in sales with over 2,000,000 customer purchases and average
sales of $660 per square foot of net retail selling space (3467 per square foot on a gross basis).

The Company sells a broad range of quality brand name products including consumer electronics, small
appliances, housewares, furniture, home décor, personal care, luggage and tools at a significant discount to
regular retail prices. XS Cargo’s merchandising philosophy is to offer “Nothing But Bargains” in its retail stores
and to compete with general retailers on an jitem-by-item basis solely on price.

The Company’s buyers are in the marketplace virtually every day, enabling them to source and take
advantage of buying opportunities on an almost continuous basis. At the time potential purchases are evaluated,
the Company compares published retail prices for the same or similar items and will generally only make the
purchase if Company Management believes the item can be retailed at the appropriate discount to the published
retail price while still allowing the Company to achieve an acceptable margin.

XS Cargo’s merchandise is generally obtained at a substantial discount to regular wholesale prices. The
primary sources from which XS Cargo derives its merchandise are described below in the order of their
significance (in terms of average purchase volumes) at the present time. The relative significance of each source
changes from time to time depending on numerous economic factors and retail industry conditions.

Closeouts — XS Cargo buys merchandise from manufacturers, distributors and retailers when products are
reaching the end of their life cycles and being replaced by newer models.
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Returns — XS Cargo buys returned goods from manufacturers that have been inspected, serviced as
necessary and meet the manufacturer’s original specifications.

Excess Inventory — XS Cargo buys merchandise from manufacturers, distributors and retailers that are in
possession of excess inventory resulting from factory overruns, cancelled orders, shelf pulls, package
changes, buy backs and buying errors.

Business Terminations — XS Cargo buys merchandise from retailers, manufacturers and distributors that are
going out of business.

Since inception in 1996, XS Cargo has not experienced any significant difficulty in obtaining quality, brand
name closeout merchandise in adequate volumes and at attractive prices.

The Company supplements its traditional brand name closeout purchases with products manufactured to its
specifications in China.

Operating Philosophy
Company Management intends to continue to pursue the following operating strategies:

Pricing — Company Management’s strategy is to price every product offered by XS Cargo at a significant
discount to regular retail prices, including prices offered by discounters and wholesale clubs. Company
Management believes that price is the primary consideration for the Company’s customers. Therefore, the most
important factor in the Company’s performance and growth is its ability to sell merchandise at 40% to 80%
below regular retail prices. '

Targeted Advertising — XS Cargo advertises primarily in multi-page circulars (“flyers™) distributed in local
subscription daily newspapers and uses a focused price/item approach to highlight its price advantage over
competing retailers and generate brand and location awareness for its stores. The Company produced
35 system-wide flyer promotions in the year ended October 31, 2004, totalling over 50 million flyers. The
Company’s advertising expenditures have been consistent as a percentage of sales since 1998, averaging 5.2%.

Product Selection — XS Cargo focuses on a diverse selection of quality, name brand, high-demand
merchandise to anchor its price and item advertising strategy. The Company’s stores carry many of the same
name brand products as general retailers. Certain core categories of merchandise are carried on a continual
basis, although the specific brand names offered may change frequently. Company Management believes that
the constantly changing product offerings generate repeat visits from its value conscious customers. The
Company also carries more high value items and more brand name merchandise than other closeout retailers,
which Company Management believes provides it with an additional competitive advantage.

Attractive Store Economics — Consistent with XS Cargo’s pricing strategy, overhead costs are minimized. As a
destination retailer, the Company is not dependent on nearby customer traffic to generate traffic for its stores.
Accordingly, the Company’s stores, while conveniently located on or near major roadways with ample parking,
are typically located in less expensive secondary sites, rather than in power centres, enclosed malls or new retail
developments. Leasehold improvements and store fixtures are functional, but are not expensive. The average
cost of equipment and leasehold improvements to open a new store has historically been less than $100,000, an
investment that has been recouped on average in less than two months. The Company’s rapid inventory turnover
contributed to high sales per square foot productivity ($660 per square foot of net retail selling space (8467 per
square foot gross) during the 12 months ended January 31, 2005). A highly centralized operating philosophy
results in a cost-efficient, flat management structure.

Growth in Sales and Normalized EBITDA

From fiscal year 1998 to 2004 sales have grown by 219.8%, a compound annual growth rate of 21.4%, and
Normalized EBITDA has grown by 938.5%, a compound annual growth rate of 47.7%.

XS Cargo has increased its same store sales at an average rate of 3.7% per year over the period from fiscal
1998. Company Management believes that the Company can continue to grow same store sales, in part by
continuing its historical strategy of expanding its selection of closeout merchandise and by adding new product
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categories. In addition, Company Management believes the Company can increase its market share in the
existing core product categories such as consumer electronics, housewares, luggage and home décor.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2004, XS Cargo generated $73.8 million in sales and $13.5 million in
Normalized EBITDA and for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005 generated $79.7 million in sales and
$14.4 million in Normalized EBITDA. The following charts illustrate XS Cargo’s growth in sales and
Normalized EBITDA for the periods indicated.

Sales®
(millions of dollars)

79.7
54.8 ;9'1 '
321
26.7. —
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 12 months ended
January 31, 2005
Note:
(1) Except for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005, sales data is for years ended October 31.
Normalized EBITDA®®
(millions of dollars)
14.4
135 ,
13
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 20034 2004 12 months ended
. January 31, 2005

Notes:

(1) Normalized EBITDA represents EBITDA adjusted for certain items that Company Management believes facilitate the comparison of
historical periods. EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA are not earnings measures recognized by GAAP and do not have a standardized
meaning prescribed by GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented by
other issuers. See “Non-GAAP Measures” and “Reconciliation of Net Income to Normalized EBITDA".

(2) Except for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005, Normatized EBITDA data is for years ended October 31.

(3) The year 2003 was a transition year for XS Cargo, as management made the strategic decision to cease off-site sales events. Although
off-site sales events were profitable, they consumed a disproportionate amount of management time and resources and diverted focus
and inventory from corporate stores. Conducting off-site sales also created an opportunity cost for store operations because finite
inventory was being liquidated at lower overall gross margins and with higher operating costs. In the latter half of 2003, management
began to implement the new strategy and opened four new stores in Ontario and British Columbia.
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Growth in Gross Margin

From fiscal year 1998 to 2004, XS Cargo’s gross margin percentage has increased from 23.1% to 36.4%, due
in part to the increase in XS Cargo’s product selection and expansion in product categories, particularly products

and product categories with higher margins. The following chart illustrates the growth in gross margin
percentage since 1998.

Gross Margin‘V

36.4% 36.2%

25.5%

1998 1999 2000 2001 2003 2004 LTM ended

January 31, 2005

Note:
(1) Except for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005, gross margin percentage data is for years ended October 31.

Number of Stores

XS Cargo has expanded steadily throughout Ontario and the four western provinces over the past eight
years, operating a total of 17 stores at October 31, 2004, 19 stores at January 31, 2005 and 21 stores at April 30,
2005. The Company has entered into leases for three new stores that are scheduled to open by the end of
June 2005. The following chart illustrates the growth in number of stores for the periods indicated.

Number of Stores®

24
8
2002 2004 As at As at Scheduled
January 31,2005 May6,2005 by the end of
Junc 2005

Note:

(1) Except as otherwise indicated, number of stores data is as of October 31
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Diversification

XS Cargo’s sales are geographically diversified. Stores are currently located in five provinces covering key

. regional markets, as illustrated in the following charts.

Percentage of Stores by Region” Percentage of Sales by Region®
Saskatchewan Saskatchewan
and Manitoba and Manitoba

18% _ 15%

Ontario
46%

BC
18%

Alberta Alberta

18% 22%
Saskatchewan and Manitoba ® BC # Alberta H Ontario @ Saskatchewan and Manitoba M BC £} Alberta W Ontario

Notes:
(1) Percentage of stores by region as at October 31, 2004.

(2) Percentage of sales by region for the year ended October 31, 2004.

Business Strengths

XS Cargo possesses a number of competitive advantages that Company Management believes set it apart
from other discount retailers and make its operating and financial performance sustainable.

Strong Sourcing Capabilities and Purchasing Power

An integral part of the Company’s success is its ability to source and purchase quality, brand name
merchandise from brokers, manufacturers, distributors, retailers and other vendors at prices substantially below
those paid by traditional retailers.

Purchasing Expertise

The Company has three internal buyers with a combined 71 years of experience in retail merchandising.
The Company’s buying team analyzes purchases on a case-by-case basis as opportunities are sourced. Company
Management uses its expertise to source and select quality brand name merchandise with high consumer
demand. The Company has developed relationships with a large network of independent brokers and others that
cither own or locate and procure merchandise for the Company.

Supply Diversification

As at January 31, 2005, the Company had over 200 active vendor accounts. In fiscal year 2004, the
Company’s top ten closeout vendors accounted for approximately 40% of total merchandise purchases, with only
one closeout vendor (10.5%) accounting for more than 10%. The Company has also had an agreement since
November 1, 2003 with a Canadian import company that aggregates supply on the Company’s behalf from a
variety of vendors in China. Purchases from the import company under the agreement represented
approximately 19.2% of the Company’s merchandise purchases in fiscal 2004. No other vendor accounted for
more than 5% of the Company’s merchandise purchases in fiscal 2004. Company Management believes that the
termination of its supply agreement with the import company would not have a material effect on its ability to
obtain products for sale.
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Purchasing Power

The Company purchases most of its merchandise on a cash basis, rather than on credit, and does not
require that manufacturers provide co-operative advertising, rebates, promotional or mark-down allowances,
delayed deliveries or other concessions often demanded by traditional retailers. The Company also typically
arranges for pickup and pays the cost of transportation from the vendor’s warehouse, thereby expediting and
simplifying the sale process and reducing transaction risk for the vendor. Company Management believes that
this strategy provides the Company with a competitive advantage by meeting manufacturers’ and brokers’
objective of liquidating excess inventory on a timely basis. Company Management believes that this strategy
gives the Company the opportunity to source high demand, quality merchandise and continue to expand its
network of brokers and other vendors.

Innovative, Entrepreneurial Culture and Strong Management

The Company was founded by a small group of retail entrepreneurs led by the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, Michael McKenna, which currently has a combined 92 years experience in the retail industry. Since
inception, the Company has maintained a culture of entrepreneurial spirit and a centralized and efficient
management structure. The Company’s senior management team consists of seven members, five of whom have
been with the Company since inception and four of which are the founding shareholders of the Vendor. The
senior management team makes all key decisions with respect to merchandise purchases, product pricing and
promotion.

Company Management’s interest will be aligned with the interests of the Company and Unitholders
through Company Management’s collective ownership, through the Vendor, of approximately 49% of the
outstanding Units (assuming the exchange for Units of all Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units)
and through their participation in the LTIP. In addition, the distributions on 20% of the LP Units held by the
Vendor will be subordinated to distributions on the Fund’s LP Units until at least December 31, 2006. The
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Michael McKenna, is the controlling shareholder (67.5%) of the Vendor.

Favourable Industry Trends and Characteristics

Company Management believes that the closeout retailing industry has benefited from several trends in the
retailing industry, including the increase in “just-in-time” inventory management techniques, retailer
consolidations and shorter product cycles which have caused inventory risk to shift from retailers to
manufacturers (See “Industry Overview”). While these developments have provided closeout retailers with an
ample supply of merchandise, there remain relatively few closeout retailers in Canada, most of which operate in
niche markets like computers, consumer electronics, hardware or fashion. Company Management believes that
this environment presents a significant opportunity for a broadline closeout retailer such as the Company to
expand in new and existing markets and to grow its network of vendors and brokers.

In addition to favourable trends within the retailing industry, Company Management believes that the
closeout industry as a whole is less susceptible to changes in economic conditions than general retailers.
Company Management believes that during economic downturns there are more retailers, distributors and
manufacturers with excess inventory and more business failures, which collectively create more buying
opportunities for the Company. In addition, Company Management believes that consumers tend to be more
cost conscious during economic downturns, which gives the Company a competitive advantage over conventional
retailers.

Growth Strategy

New Stores

XS Cargo intends to continue its cross-Canada expansion in both new and existing markets. The Company
has opened four new stores so far in fiscal 2005 and has entered into leases for three additional stores scheduled
to open by the end of June 2005. Historically, the Company has funded expansion through operating cash flows
and shareholder loans. This has been possible because of the low cost of equipment and leasehold improvements
for new stores. The average cost of equipment and leasehold improvements for the last ten stores opened by
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XS Cargo is less than $100,000, a cost that historically has been recouped from operating income within two
months. Substantially all of the capital expenditures budgeted to be made for equipment and leasehold
improvements for the three additional stores will be incurred prior to the Closing Date.

Company Management believes there is the potential for approximately 70 XS Cargo stores in Canada
based on the existing store size, format and product mix and currently plans to open new stores at the rate of
approximately four stores per year. Company Management does not currently anticipate any difficulties in
identifying suitable additional store locations in areas within the Company’s target markets.

. Same Store Sales

Since 1998, XS Cargo has increased its same store sales at an average rate of 3.7% per year primarily by
expanding its selection of closeout merchandise and by adding new product categories. In addition, Company
Management believes the Company can increase its market share in existing core product categories such as
consumer electronics, housewares, luggage and home décor. Company Management believes that opportunities
to expand product selection and continue to grow same store sales will be further enhanced as the Company
increases its number of stores and expands it supply network.

Distribution and Logistics

The Company opened a warehouse/distribution centre in Mississauga, Ontario in April 2005. Historically,
all merchandise was shipped from suppliers to the Company’s Edmonton warehouse/distribution facilities where
it was distributed to the Company’s stores. Company Management believes that the addition of the Ontario
warehouse and distribution centre will reduce freight costs and facilitate a faster distribution/replenishment
cycle, thereby reducing lead-times and stock-outs and increasing the Company’s cash flows. Company
Management also believes that the Ontario warehouse will facilitate the Company’s planned expansion in
Ontario and eastern Canada. The Ontario warchouse and distribution center is leased and substantially all of the
capital expenditures budgeted to be made for equipment and leasehold improvements have been incurred.

The Company’s Edmonton warehouse/distribution operations are currently conducted through three
separate facilities, one of which is provided by a third party contractor. The Company plans to consolidate its
Edmonton facilities by moving to a new single warehouse/distribution facility in August 2005. The new facility is
being built to the Company’s specifications and is expected to provide certain operational efficiencies and cost
savings. The new Edmonton facility will be leased and substantially all of the significant capital expenditures
budgeted to be made for equipment and leasehold improvements will be incurred prior to the Closing Date.

Other Growth Opportunities

The Company is currently evaluating the following possible growth opportunities.

Internet Sales

The Company’s existing website is structured to allow for the addition of Internet-based sales with minimal
additional customization and related costs. The physical layouts of the Company’s new distribution facilities
include plans for an appropriate staging area to fill Internet orders.

Extended Product Replacement Plans

Company Management is considering enhancing the Company’s revenues with the introduction of a
product replacement plan. The plan would extend the Company’s standard warranty for up to two years on
eligible products. Customers would pay a fee to participate in the plan at the time they purchase products,

Purchasing and Supply

An integral part of the Company’s success is its ability to source and purchase quality brand name
merchandise directly and indirectly from independent brokers and agents, consumer product manufacturers,
distributors and retailers and other vendors at prices substantially below those paid by traditional retailers. The
Company has an experienced buying team with extensive closeout purchasing experience, which the Company
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believes has enabled it to develop successful long-term relationships with many independent brokers and agents
and other vendors in North America. Since inception, XS Cargo has not experienced any significant difficulty in
obtaining quality, brand name closeout merchandise in adequate volumes and at attractive prices.

As industry trends such as “just-in-time” inventory management, retailer consolidation and more frequent
order cancellations by retailers place more inventory risk on manufacturers, Company Management believes
there will be an increase in the number of vendors looking for effective ways to reduce excess inventory. In
addition, as the Company continues to increase its number of stores and distribution capacity, Company
Management believes that the Company’s purchasing capacity will continue to increase and will enable the
Company to acquire larger quantities of closeout merchandise from individual vendors. The addition of the
Company’s Ontario warehouse and distribution facility will allow the Company to stock merchandise in many of
its stores more quickly, which will increase its purchasing flexibility. As a result of these trends and initiatives,
Company Management believes that the Company will be able to take advantage of more and often larger,
buying opportunities as well as offer an enhanced selection of products to its customers.

Company Management believes that the Company has built strong relationships with many vendors and has
capitalized on its willingness to pay cash for most of its purchases to source merchandise that provides
exceptional value to its customers. The Company has the ability to source and purchase significant quantities of
its high demand and closeout merchandise in specific product categories and to control distribution in
accordance with vendor instructions, thus providing a high level of service and convenience to these vendors.
The Company supplements its traditional brand name closeout purchases with products manufactured to its
specifications in China. The Company expects its purchasing philosophy and relationships with vendors will
continue to enhance its ability to source quality closeout merchandise for its stores at competitive prices.

The Company’s merchandise is purchased from a variety of suppliers that provide the Company with
multiple sources for each product category. In fiscal year 2004, the Company’s top ten closeout vendors
accounted for approximately 40% of total purchases with only one vendor (10.5%) accounting for more than
10%. All of the Company’s top ten closeout vendors in 2004 have been significant suppliers to the Company for
at least three years. The Company also has an agreement with a Canadian import company which aggregates
supply on the Company’s behalf from a variety of vendors in China. These purchases represented approximately
19.2% of the Company’s merchandise purchases in fiscal 2004. No other vendor accounted for more than 5% of
the Company’s merchandise purchases. The Company’s merchandise was sourced approximately 60% from the
United States, 20% from Canada and 20% from China in fiscal 2004. The majority of the goods from China are
made available indirectly through the Canadian import company referred to above. This import company deals
directly with factories, wholesalers and brokers in China to either manufacture products to XS Cargo’s
specifications or to negotiate and import opportunity purchases of existing goods.

While the Company has long standing relationships with numerous vendors, it has no long-term purchase
contracts. The Company’s strategy is to make merchandise purchases on an opportunistic basis. In contrast to
traditional retailers who may order goods far in advance of the time they will appear in the store, the Company’s
buyers are in the marketplace virtually every day, enabling them to source and take advantage of buying
opportunities on an almost continuous basis. At the time potential purchases are evaluated, the Company
compares the published retail prices for the same or similar items and will generally only make the purchase if
Company Management believes the items can be retailed at the appropriate discount to the published retail
price while still allowing the Company to achieve an acceptable margin. Once purchased, the merchandise is
typically transported from the seller, via the Company’s warehouses and distribution facilities, to its stores within
three weeks.

The Company is typically responsible for transporting products sourced through its vendor network in
North America from their existing locations to the Company’s warehouse and distribution facilities in
Edmonton, Alberta or Mississauga, Ontario, and from the warehouses to the Company’s stores. The Company
uses an independent distribution and logistics company to coordinate pickup and delivery to and from the
Company’s warehouses on the Company’s behalf.
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Inventory and Pricing Strategy

Company Management’s pricing strategy is to offer every product at a significant discount to regular retail
prices, including prices offered by discounters and wholesale clubs. Company Management believes that price is
the primary consideration for its customers. Therefore, the most important factor in the Company’s
performance and growth s its ability to sell merchandise from 40% to 80% below regular retail prices.

The Company’s stores generally carry between 1,000 and 2,000 different products. Company Management
believes that the superior breadth of its product mix and its focus on name brand products distinguishes it from
and provides it with a competitive advantage to other discount retailers that have narrow product mixes or offer
generic products. The following chart sets out in more detail the Company’s sales mix by product category for
the year ended October 31, 2004.

Sales by Product Category

3 Electronics (25.1%)
51% W Fumiture (10.2%)
3 Appliances (7.4%)
£ Housewares (7.3%)
77 Home & Garden accessories (7.2%)
W Telephones (6.7%)
1% Personal Care (6.4%)
M Electronics accessories (5.9%)
B Tools (4.7%)
W Sports and recreation (3.5%)
Luggage (3.4%)
Photo (3.0%)
72% 7.3% B Other (9.1%)

Store Locations

The Company’s stores are conveniently located on or near major roadways with ample parking and are
typically located in less expensive sites in strip plazas, rather than in power centres, enclosed malls or new retail
developments. The Company’s advertising and pricing strategy is focused on making the stores destination retail
shopping locations. See “Business of XS Cargo — Advertising and Promotion”.

The following table sets forth the locations of, and other information respecting, the Company’s stores
including the three stores scheduled to open by the end of June 2005.

Store Location ‘ Date Opened Square Footage Lease Expiry Date®
Ontario

1.  Scarborough October 1999 10,150 January 2007
Unit 3, 1181 Kennedy Road

2. Mississauga December 1999 11,465 February 2010
1A 1224 Dundas Street East

3.  North York November 2001 9,668 January 2012
Unit B, 2341 Keele Street

4, Kitchener December 2001 6,329 January 2012
1373 Victoria Street North

5. Ottawa May 2002 11,656 May 2012

15, 1568 Merivale Road (Napean)
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Store Location

6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

St. Catherines
286 Bunting Road

London
467 Wharncliffe Road South

Brampton
8, 125 Chrysler Drive

Windsor
1A, 7155 Enterprise Way

Hamilton
1050 Upper Gage Avenue

Kingston
1245 Midland Avenue

Alberta

Edmonton (South)
10384 - 51 Avenue

Calgary (North)
1345 - 32 Avenue N.E.

Red Deer
A3-A4, 2319 Taylor Drive

Edmonton (North)
4235 - 139 Avenue

British Columbia

Richmond
3600 No. 3 Road

Kelowna
100, 1640 Dilworth Drive

Surrey
19335 Langley Bypass

Saskatchewan

Saskatoon
1, 419 - 51 Street East

Regina
834 Albert Street

Manitoba

Winnipeg
J, 1045 St. James Street

New Stores

Calgary (South)

Bay 12, 6624 Centre Street South

Date Opened
August 2003

June 2004
October 2004
December 2004
April 2005

April 2005

June 1996
June 1997
August 2001

November 2004

April 2003
May 2003

October 2003

November 2000

March 2001

June 2000

May 2005
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Square Footage

Lease Expiry Date®

8,912

10,267

7,300

9,360

9,812

7,800

16,989

11,428

7,440

8,947

11,904

7,700

9,300

7,200

6,625

11,017

11,760

January 2011

June 2015

January 2020

February 2017

October 2008

April 2015

September 2007

April 2011

February 2007

November 2019

November 2006

May 2008

January 2014

January 2011

January 2006

January 2020

May 2015



Store Location Date Opened Square Footage Lease Expiry Date®

23. Lethbridge May 2005® 9,282 March 2015
3021 - 32nd Street
24. Qshawa / Whitby June, 2005 5,000 December 2011

1540 Dundas Street East

Notes:
(1) Scheduled opening date.

(2) Assuming the exercise by the Company of all renewal options.

Store and Other Leases

The Company leases all of its store premises and its head office and warehouse premises. The Company’s
store leases typically have a five to ten year initial term with options to renew up to an additional 10 years. The
average remaining term of the store leases is approximately 7.5 years (assuming the exercise by the Company of
all renewal options). The leases are held by various landlords and the Company believes that it has a good
relationship with its landlords. As at October 31, 2004, the total commitment for minimum rent payments under
the Company’s leases in fiscal 2005 is approximately $1,708,025. The leases are generally net leases requiring the
Company to pay, in addition to minimum rent, a share of taxes, insurance and maintenance and operating costs.
Company Management believes that no specific store lease or location is material to the Company.

The Company’s existing Edmonton warehouse/distribution facilities are operated under short term lease
arrangements and through a third party contractor. The Company has entered into a lease for a new combined
facility that is being built to the Company’s specifications and is scheduled to open in August 2005. The
Company’s new Edmonton warehouse/distribution and head office facility will be operated under a 10 year lease
expiring on the earlier of September 1, 2015 or the date which is 10 years from the possession date. The
Company’s Mississauga, Ontario warehouse/distribution centre, which opened in April 2005, is operated under a
five year lease expiring May 31, 2010 with a five year renewal option.

Advertising and Promotion

XS Cargo spent $3.8 million (5.1% of sales) on advertising in the year ended October 31, 2004. The
Company’s advertising expenditures have averaged 5.2% of sales since 1998. The Company conducts advertising
programs primarily by distributing flyers in local subscription daily newspapers. The Company does not target
any specific consumer demographic with its advertising but distributes its flyers based primarily on the proximity
of its stores to residential areas. XS Cargo produced 35 system-wide flyer promotions in the year ended
October 31, 2004, totalling over 50 million flyers. The Company uses a focused price/item approach in its flyers
to highlight its price advantage over competing retailers on specific, often brand name products. The flyers
generally feature 180 to 200 products that vary with each flyer. XS Cargo also promotes its product offerings
through its website, www.xscargo.com.

Stores and Store Operations
Site Selection

Since opening its first store in Edmonton, Alberta in 1996, the Company has expanded to 21 stores
throughout Ontario and the four western provinces at January 31, 2005, with an additional three stores
scheduled to open by the end of June 2005. The Company expects its new stores to be similar in appearance and

operation to its existing stores and does not anticipate any difficulties in identifying suitable additional store
locations in areas within the Company’s target markets.

Company Management believes that the Company’s customers are attracted to its stores by the Company’s
advertising program, which emphasizes quality, brand name merchandise that the Company offers at attractive
prices, rather than by location. This has allowed the Company to open its stores in secondary locations, such as
strip malls rather than in power centres, enclosed malls or new retail developments. The Company is able to
obtain relatively favourable lease terms because of its flexibility in site selection and “no-frills” format, which
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allows it to effectively use a wide variety of space configurations. As a result of this opportunistic approach to
site selection, the Company believes its real estate costs are lower than those of other retailers.

Store Layout

The Company’s opportunistic site selection and “no-frills” approach to presenting merchandise allow it to
use a wide variety of space configurations. The size of its stores generally ranges from 6,300 to 17,000 square feet
and averages approximately 10,000 square feet. The Company designs its stores to be functional, with little
emphasis placed upon fixtures and leasehold improvements.

Customer Service

The Company provides a 30 day warranty for defective goods that permits the customer to exchange the
product for the same item or, if the same or a comparable item is not available, to receive a refund. The
Company is often able to negotiate terms with its vendors that allow it to return defective merchandise for
periods of up to nine months, generally for vendor credit. Many products carry standard manufacturer
warranties. Historically, the Company has experienced returns of less than 2% of sales and on average over 67%
of those returns can be returned by the Company to its vendors.

~ Store Management

Each store has a manager who is responsible for recruiting, training and supervising store personnel and
assuring that the store is managed in accordance with the Company’s established guidelines and procedures.
Store managers are full-time employees who report to the Store Operations Manager. Merchandising, pricing
and advertising decision-making for all stores is centralized at the Company’s Edmonton head office.

Warehouse and Distribution

An important aspect of the Company’s success is its ability to process, sort and distribute inventory quickly
and efficiently. Historically, all of the Company’s merchandise was ordered, received, inspected, counted and
designated for individual stores at the Company’s warehouse and distribution facilities in Edmonton, Alberta.
The opening of the Company’s 82,515 square foot warehouse and distribution centre in Mississauga, Ontario in
April 2005 allows goods destined for the Company’s Ontario stores and any future stores that the Company may
open east of Ontario to be processed and distributed through the Ontario warchouse. In August 2005, the
Company will also be re-locating its Edmonton warehouse and distribution operations to a new 92,868 square
foot warehouse and distribution facility in Edmonton. This new facility is being built to the Company’s
specifications and the consolidation of operations is expected to provide certain operational efficiencies and
cost savings.

As a general rule, the Company carries similar products in each of its stores, but the amount of inventory
each store is allocated varies depending upon size, location and sales projections for that store. The Company
ships most of its merchandise to its stores within three weeks of its arrival at the Company’s warehouses.

Deliveries to the Company’s stores from the warehouses generally occur every two weeks but occur every
week during peak periods. The Company expects to move to a weekly delivery schedule once the new Ontario
warehouse and distribution centre is fully operational. The Company uses common and contract carriers to

distribute merchandise to its stores and obtains transportation logistics services through a third party provider.

Maintenance and Capital Expenditures

The Company’s expenditures on facilities fall into three categories: repairs and maintenance; maintenance
capital; and growth capital (new stores and distribution facilities). Repairs and maintenance expenditures are
budgeted in operations and expensed in the year incurred. Maintenance capital expenditures include those
required to replace and upgrade equipment and information systems at existing facilities. Growth capital
expenditures include the costs of property, equipment and leasehold improvements for new stores and facilities
and new mobile equipment required to handle increased volumes at the Company’s warehouse and distribution
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facility. Repairs and maintenance capital expenditures will be funded from operations. Growth capital
expenditures will be funded from the Credit Facility or additional equity financing.

The following table sets out the Company’s historic repairs and maintenance, maintenance capital and
growth capital expenditures over the past three fiscal years:

Repairs and  Maintenance Capital ~ Growth Capital

Maintenance Expenditures Expenditures
©® ® ®
2002 . sttt ettt e e e 54,800 133,356 319,781
2003 . . ittt e ettt e e 92,133 128,825 389,656
2004 . . e ettt e e 89,378 121,578 314,896
Average 2002-2004 . ... .. .. 78,444 127,920 341,444

The growth capital expenditures relate to three new stores in 2002, four new stores in 2003 and two new
stores in 2004, as well as the related equipment required to handle the additional product volumes in the
Company’s warehouse/distribution facilities.

Management Information Systems

The Company uses the same point of sale system in all of its stores, which provides accurate and reliable
perpetual inventory quantities, stock value, sales and operational information and cash control. The system is
based on a widely utilized database system, which has been customized to meet the Company’s strategic
management information needs. Cash is reconciled on a daily basis and inventory is test counted weekly. A full
physical inventory count is conducted each quarter with the assistance of an independent inventory management
company. All sales are cash, credit or debit card, so the Company experiences minimal bad debts. The Company
expects to enhance its existing information systems over the next two years to further improve management
reporting capabilities and improve the coordination of inter-store inventory and inventory management.
Company Management believes that the required investment in additional equipment will be minimal and that
the related costs will be offset by improvements in operating efficiencies.

Employees

The Company had approximately 340 employees at January 31, 2005, of whom 44 are salaried employees
and the remainder are hourly employees. During peak periods (November and December) the Company has up
to an additional 150 hourly employees. The Company has no unionized employees and believes its employee
relations are good.

Competition and Strategic Positioning

All aspects of the retailing industry are highly competitive. Company Management believes that the
Company is unique in the closeout retailing industry in Canada with respect to its product mix, and therefore
does not have a competitor to which it can be directly compared. On a product-by-product basis, the Company
competes with discount stores (such as Wal-Mart® Stores Inc.), wholesale clubs (such as Costco® Wholesale
Corporation), discount drugstore chains (such as London Drugs® Limited), other broadline closeout retailers
(such as Liquidation World Inc.), other value-oriented specialty retailers, and general retailers and department
stores, as well as internet-based closeout and other general merchandise retailers. Although some of these
competitors may have greater financial, distribution, marketing and other resources, the Company purchases
most of its merchandise on an opportunity basis, which allows it to sell its products at prices that Company
Management believes are lower than other competitors in the retail industry. While the Company offers its
products at significant discounts to most conventional retailers, some specialty retailers may compete with the
Company on a non-price basis, such as specialty retailers that offer additional after-sale service or that offer
unique shopping environments.

The Company also relies on buying opportunities from both existing and new sources, for which it competes
with other retailers and wholesalers. Company Management believes that it has long-standing relationships with
many of the Company’s suppliers and that the Company is competitively positioned to maintain such
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relationships and to seek new sources in order to maintain an adequate continuing supply of quality merchandise
at attractive prices.

The Company also competes with other retailers for store locations.

Trademarks

The Company is the ‘owner of the registered Canadian trademark “XS CARGO NOTHING BUT
BARGAINS”. Company Management believes that this trademark enjoys growing brand awareness in the
Canadian retail market. Company Management takes a proactive approach to the protection of its
brand identity.

PRINCIPAL AGREEMENTS
Acquisition Agreement

Immediately following completion of the offering, the Company will complete the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the Purchased Assets and the assumption of certain related liabilities, pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the Acquisition Agreement.

Consideration

The aggregate consideration payable by the Company to the Vendor for the Purchased Assets will
consist of $71,396,400 in cash, 3,471,970 Exchangeable LP Units, 2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units and
5,866,450 GP Common Shares. The Company will also assume the accounts payable and certain current
liabilities relating to the Purchased Assets. The Exchangeable LP Units and the Subordinated LP Units issued to
the Vendor will represent, collectively, 49% of the LP Units, and the GP Common Shares issued to the Vendor
will represent 49% of the GP Common Shares. See also, “Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions”. The
Company will not assume any long-term debt, bank debt or related party obligations associated with the
Purchased Assets. The consideration will be subject to customary closing adjustments for inventory and
other items. :

The acquisition of the Purchased Assets by the Company will be effected on a partially tax-deferred basis
under the Tax Act. Accordingly, the Company’s cost for tax purposes of the Purchased Assets will be
approximately $71,396,400, being the cash consideration paid to the Vendor pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement.

Purchased Assets and Associated Liabilities

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Company has agreed to purchase, directly or indirectly, the
following assets (the “Purchased Assets”) in respect of the Business from the Vendor: (i) all equipment and
supplies, (ii) all office assets, (jii) all inventories, (iv) all accounts receivable due or accruing due (not including
any outstanding vendor rebates); (v) prepaid expenses, (vi) the benefit of all contracts, including leases of
personal property, licenses and software licenses relating to the Purchased Assets, (vii) the leasehold interest in
all leased real property, (viii) all licenses or other authorizations owned, held or used by the Vendor in respect of
the Business and warehouse and distribution facilities, (ix) any and all right of the Vendor to trade fixtures and
third party fixtures and warehouse and distribution facilities; (x) all intellectual property, trademarks and other
rights of the Vendor related to the Business including the trademark “XS CARGO NOTHING BUT
BARGAINS”, and (xi) the benefit of all contracts relating to stores under development by the Vendor.

Employees

The Company has agreed to offer all of the current, active employees of the Business, employment on terms
substantially similar in the aggregate to their current terms of employment. The Vendor will be responsible for
any termination, severance or other payments to employees who are not made, or who do not accept, offers of
continuing employment by the Company. The Company will assume all liabilities related to all of the Vendor’s
employees that the Company retains.
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Conditions

The completion of the Acquisition is subject to customary conditions including: (i) the offering of Units
hereunder having been completed, (ii) certain required consents, waivers and releases having been obtained, and
(iii) there being no legal impediment to the Acquisition.

Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Indemnities

The Acquisition Agreement will contain customary representations and warranties and related indemnities
from the Vendor in favour of the Company and the Fund, including a representation and warranty from the
Vendor that this prospectus does not contain any misrepresentation (as that term is defined in the Securities
Act (Alberta)).

The total maximum liability under all of the Vendor’s representations, warranties and indemnities will be
limited, without duplication, to the sum of all cash amounts received by the Vendor from the Company in
connection with the transactions of purchase and sale contemplated in the Acquisition Agreement.

All claims under the representations, warranties and indemnities against the Vendor under the Acquisition
Agreement will be subject to an aggregate deductible of $350,000 and thereafter each set of related claims must
reach an aggregate threshold of $150,000 (other than in certain cases in respect of the representation and
warranty that this prospectus does not contain a misrepresentation, which will not be subject to any deductible).

The representations and warranties of the Vendor will survive closing for a period of 24 months following
closing, except for certain limited representations and warranties, which will survive without limitation of time,
and the “no misrepresentation”, representation, warranty and indemnity, which will survive for a period of
three years.

In order to support the indemnification obligations of the Vendor, the Vendor and the Company will enter
into an escrow agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) pursuant to which the Vendor will deposit all of the
Subordinated LP Units received by the Vendor upon the closing of the Acquisition (collectively, the “Escrowed
Units”), in escrow with a third party escrow agent. The escrow will terminate and the Escrowed Units (less the
amount of any claim against the Escrowed Units) will be released 24 months following closing of the Acquisition.
The Vendor will be erititled to transfer ownership of the Escrowéd Units at any time during the period of the
escrow to any other member of the Vendor Group, provided that the transferred Escrow Units will continue to
be subject to the escrow arrangements. Any other transfer by the Vendor of all or any of the Escrowed Units at
any time during the period of the escrow will require the consent of the Company. Subject to the subordination
applicable to the Escrowed Units, the Vendor will also be entitled to receive all distributions on the Escrowed
Units (other than distributions required to satisfy claims that have been settled or finally adjudicated against the
Escrowed Units) during the period of the escrow.

If the Acquisition does not close, the Fund will refund to purchasers the consideration paid in respect of the
Units offered under this prospectus.’

Non-Competition Agreements

It is anticipated that on closing of the offering, Michael McKenna and the three other shareholders of the
Vendor who are employees of XS Cargo will enter into the Non-Competition Agreements with the Company
under which each such individual will agree that, until the earliest of: (i) the later of (A) three years from the
date of the closing of the offering, and (B) the date on which either (I) the Vendor Group ceases to have the
right to appoint a director of the GP, or (II) such individual, together with his affiliates, beneficially owns and
controls less than 5% of the Units (on a diluted basis); (ii) the date on which any person or group of persons
acting jointly or in concert (other than such individual or his associates and affiliates or the Fund or any of its
affiliates, either individually or together) acquires more than 50% of the outstanding securities of the Fund; and
(iii) subject to certain exceptions, XS Cargo LP or the Fund and its affiliates cease to carry on the business
currently carried on by the Vendor; subject to exceptions for certain passive investments, he will not, directly or
indirectly, operate or have any financial interest in any entity the principal business of which is the operation of
closeout retail stores in Canada.
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Administration Agreement

On closing of the offering, the Fund and XSCOT will enter into the Administration Agreement with the GP
whereby the GP will agree to provide or arrange for the provision of services required in the administration of
the Fund and XSCOT. The GP’s duties will include: () ensuring compliance by the Fund and XSCOT with their
continuous disclosure obligations under applicable securities legislation, including the preparation of financial
statements; (b) providing investor relations services; (¢) providing or causing to be provided to Voting
Unitholders and XSCOT Unitholders all information to which Voting Unitholders and XSCOT Unitholders are
entitled under the Declaration of Trust and the XSCOT Declaration of Trust, respectively, including relevant
information with respect to income taxes; (d) convening meetings of Voting Unitholders and XSCOT
Unitholders and distributing required materials, including notices of meetings and information circulars, in
respect of all such meetings; (e) providing for the calculation of distributions to Unitholders and XSCOT
Unitholders; (f) attending to all administrative and other matters arising in connection with any redemptions of
Units and/for XSCOT Units; (g) using its best efforts to ensure compliance with the Fund’s limitations on
non-resident ownership; (h) attending to all administrative and other matters arising in connection with the Note
Indenture, including the payment of interest and principal on the XSCOT Notes and in connection with any
redemption of the XSCOT Notes; and (i) providing general accounting, bookkeeping and administrative services
to the Fund and XSCOT.

The administration of the Fund and XSCOT under the Administration Agreement may be terminated at
any time by the Fund or XSCOT upon notice in writing to the GP and upon payment to the GP of all costs and
expenses incurred by the GP in terminating contracts entered into by the GP with the approval of the Fund or
XSCOT, as applicable, for the performance by the GP of its duties under the Administration Agreement. No
additional fees are payable to the GP on termination.

Securityholders Agreement

On closing of the offering, the Fund, XSCOT, XS Cargo LP, the GP and the Vendor will enter into the
Securityholders Agreement governing their security holdings in, and the business and affairs of the GP and
XS Cargo LP. The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Securityholders Agreement, which
summary is not intended to be complete. Reference is made to the Securityholders Agreement for a complete
description and the full text of its provisions.

Directors

The Securityholders Agreement will provide that the board of directors of the GP will initially consist of five
directors. For so long as the Vendor Group holds, directly or indirectly, LP Units or Units representing (on a
diluted basis) not less than 30% of the outstanding Units (on a diluted basis), the Vendor Group will be entitled
to nominate two individuals as directors to the board of directors of the GP, and for so long as the Vendor Group
holds, directly or indirectly, LP Units or Units representing (on a diluted basis) less than 30% but not less than
15% of the outstanding Units (on a diluted basis), the Vendor Group will be entitled to nominate one individual
as a director to the board of directors of the GP, and XSCOT will vote its shares of the GP in favour of such
individuals. These board representation rights are not transferable upon a transfer by the Vendor Group of LP
Units or Units to a person who is not a member of the Vendor Group.

Issuances of Ownership Interests, Pre-Emptive Rights and Adjustments to Ownership Interests

The Securityholders Agreement will also provide that the Vendor Group will have pre-emptive rights to
purchase interests in XS Cargo LP or any other subsidiary of the Fund to maintain its pro rata ownership
interest in the event that XS Cargo LP or such other subsidiary decides to issue equity securities (which term
includes any instruments convertible into, or giving the holder the right to acquire, equity securities) to third
parties or issues equity or debt to any existing partner or shareholder (including XSCOT). If XS Cargo LPF, or
any other subsidiary of the Fund, issues equity securities or such indebtedness, the Vendor Group will be entitled
to participate pro rata on the same basis. Upon exercise of this right, the Vendor Group will be entitled to
participate in the issue of securities of XS Cargo LP at the most favourable price and on the most favourable
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terms as such securities are offered to any party. These terms could include the right to exchange partnership
units for Units.

Proposals to Purchase LP Units

The Securityholders Agreement will also provide that the Fund will not accept any offer or agree to support
any other proposal involving the Ordinary LP Units unless the same offer or proposal is made to the holders of
the Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units for a consideration based on the consideration for the
Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units which reflects the percentage of indirect interest of the
holders of the Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units in XS Cargo LF, without discount for minority
position or restrictions on exchange for Units.

Tag-Along Rights

The Vendor Group will be entitled to participate, on a pro rata basis, in any sale by the Fund of its direct or
indirect interest in XS Cargo LP.

Amendments

The Securityholders Agreement will provide that for so long as the Vendor Group owns, directly or
indirectly, not less than 20% of the Units (on a diluted basis), the Securityholders Agreement, the Exchange
Agreement, the Limited Partnership Agreement and the XSCOT Declaration of Trust, may only be amended,
and that the GP may only withdraw as the general partner of XS Cargo LP, with the approval of XSCOT and the
Vendor Group.

Securityholder Approval for Certain Matters

The Securityholders Agreement will also provide that none of the Fund, XSCOT, the GP or XS Cargo LP
may take the following actions without the prior approval of the Vendor Group so long as the Vendor Group
holds or controls at least 20% of the Units (on a diluted basis) (other than in connection with an internal
reorganization): enter into any merger, amalgamation, consolidation or other business combination or joint
venture (other than any such transaction where the holders of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund,
XSCOT, the GP or XS Cargo LP, as the case may be, immediately prior to such transaction hold at least a
majority of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving corporation or other entity immediately after such
transaction and no person or group of persons acting jointly or in concert (other than persons who were the
holders of voting securities of the Fund, XSCOT, the GP or XS Cargo LP immediately prior to such transaction)
holds 20% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving corporation or other entity); issue voting
securities representing 20% or more of the outstanding voting securities to any person or group of persons
acting jointly or in concert in one or more related transactions (other than a distribution of securities to the
public by way of a prospectus); sell, assign, convey or otherwise dispose of 20% or more of the securities of any
subsidiary entity; sell, assign, convey or otherwise dispose of a material portion of the assets of the Fund on a
consolidated basis, out of the ordinary course of business; adopt any plan or proposal to liquidate, dissolve or
reorganize or seek relief under bankruptcy or insolvency laws; change the size of its board of directors or
trustees, if any; or take or permit to be taken any action that would prevent the business of the Company, as it
exists on the Closing Date, from continuing on an ongoing basis.

MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEES AND DIRECTORS
Trustees of the Fund

The initial Trustees of the Fund are Jonathan Legg, David B. Margolus and Gordon Clanachan, who also
serve as the trustees of XSCOT and as directors of the GP. Jonathan Legg is the Chairman of the Trustees. See
“XS Cargo Income Fund — Trustees” and “XS Cargo Operating Trust — Trustees of XSCOT”.
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Directors and Officers of the GP

The following sets out the names, municipalities of residence, positions with the GP and principal
occupations of the directors and officers of the GP. The term of office for each of the directors will expire at the
time of the next annual meeting of securityholders of the GP.

Name and

Municipality of Residence Position with GP Principal Occupation

Jonathan LeggV®® .. ... Director Independent Businessman

Calgary, Alberta _

David B. Margolus)®® . Director : Senior Partner, Witten LLP
Edmonton, Alberta (law firm)

Gordon Clanachan®W@® _ . Director Consultant (interim management and
Edmonton, Alberta business advisory services)

Michael McKenna ....... Director and President and Chief President and Chief Executive Officer
Edmonton, Alberta Executive Officer of the GP.

Jeff Rootman, CA ....... Director, Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer.

Edmonton, Alberta Chief Financial Officer

thes:

(1) Trustee of the Fund and XSCOT (Jonathan Legg, Chair).
(2) Fund Audit Committee member (Gordon Clanachan, Chair).

(3) GP Compensation and Governance Committee member (David B. Margolus, Chair).

The following are brief profiles of the directors and executive officers of the GP:

Jonathan Legg, Trustee and Director. Mr. Legg recently retired as a senior executive with Royal Bank of
Canada (“RBC”) where he was employed since 1982. From 2003 to 2005 Mr. Legg was a resident of Chicago,
Tlinois where he was the Chief Executive Officer of RBC Mortgage, the Chief Operating Officer of RBC
Centura Bank and a member of RBC Banking U.S. and Canadian Operating Committees. From 1999 to 2003
Mr. Legg was the Senior Vice President RBC, Operations & Service Delivery, North America. Mr. Legg has a
Senior Executive Development Program Diploma from the Institute for Management Development, Lausanne,
Switzerland and a Diploma from the Banff School of Advanced Management.

David B. Margolus, Q.C., Trustee and Director. Mr. Margolus is a senior partner and former managing partner
for 13 years of Witten LLP, law firm, with a practice focused primarily in the corporate, commercial and real
estate areas. Mr. Margolus has served as a director and officer of a number of private and public companies
including The Liquor Depot Corporation, North West Trust Company (corporate secretary) and
N.A. Properties Ltd. Mr. Margolus is active as a volunteer and is a member of the board of number of charitable
and other organizations including the Edmonton Regional Airport Authority and Liquor Stores GP Inc., the
administrator of the Liquor Stores Income Fund.

Gordon Clanachan, CA, Trustee and Director. Mr. Clanachan has been a consultant providing interim
management and business advisory services, since 1999. From 1994 to 1999, Mr. Clanachan was a director and
the President and Chief Executive Officer of RaiLink Ltd., a TSX listed company. RaiLink was one of Canada’s
largest regional railways prior to its acquisition by RailAmerica in 1999. Prior thereto, Mr. Clanachan was a
senior manager with Price Waterhouse, a management consultant company, from 1988 to 1994. Mr. Clanachan
has served as a director of a number of private and public companies, including AMA Financial Services Ltd.
and Alberta Blue Cross. He is active as a volunteer and is a member of the board or advisory board of a number
of charitable and other organizations, including the University of Alberta and the Alberta Performing Arts
Stabilization Fund. Mr. Clanachan received his Chartered Accountant designation in 1983.

Michael McKenna, Director and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. McKenna founded XS Cargo in 1997 and has
served as its President throughout its history. From 1979 to 1983, Mr. McKenna managed the Alberta operations
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of an Ontario-based consumer electronics company operating as “Krazy Kelly’s”. From 1983 to 1995,
Mr. McKenna was a director and officer of Multitech Warehouse Direct Inc. (“Multitech”), which operated a
chain of retail consumer electronic stores. From 1983 to 1995, Multitech grew to 52 stores in all ten provinces.
From 1986 to 1990, Mr. McKenna owned a successful Cantel franchise, which he sold back to Cantel in 1990.

Jeff Rootman, CA, Director, Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Rootman joined
XS Cargo in February 2005. Prior thereto, Mr. Rootman was a senior manager and the Regional Assurance
Leader for the Edmonton Region of Meyers Norris Penny LLP from November 2000 to January 2005.
Mr. Rootman articled with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP from 1997 to 2000 where he held several positions of
increasing responsibility. Mr. Rootman received his Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
British Columbia in 1997 and his Chartered Accountant designation in 2000. Mr. Rootman instructs Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants continuing professional education courses for the Alberta and Saskatchewan
Institutes in the areas of accounting, financial reporting and auditing.

Additional Company Management

In addition to Mr. McKenna and Mr. Rootman, the Management Team will include the other shareholders
of the Vendor, John McKenna, Robert Witmeyer and Jamie Perkins. Mr. J. McKenna, Mr. Witmeyer and
Mr. Perkins each have over 20 years of experience in the retail industry and have been with the Vendor since
inception. Mr. J. McKenna is the national operations manager and oversees store operations, human resources
and store leasing. Mr. Perkins is the manager of distribution/logistics and is also a buyer. Mr. Witmeyer is the
purchasing manager.

Fund Nominees

The Fund will have the right to nominate a majority of the board of directors of the GP, such majority being
initially three directors, subject to increase in certain circumstances (see “Securityholders Agreement”). Each of
the nominees of the Fund to the board of directors of the GP is to be approved by the Unitholders and may be a
Trustee. Upon the completion of the offering, the Vendor Group will have the right to nominate up to two of the
directors of the GP. The Fund’s nominees on the board of directors of the GP will initially be Mr. Legg,
Mr. Margolus and Mr. Clanachan and the Vendor Group’s nominees on the board of directors of the GP will
initially be Mr. McKenna and Mr. Rootman.

Governance of the Fund

The Trustees will be responsible for the governance of the Fund. The Trustees will establish an Audit
Committee consisting of the three Trustees, all of whom are “independent” for the purposes of the Canadian
Securities Administrators’ Multilateral Instrument 51-110 — Audit Committees. The Audit Committee will be
responsible for the oversight and supervision of: (i) the accounting and financial reporting practices and
procedures of the Fund; (ii) the adequacy of the Fund’s internal accounting controls and procedures; and
(iii) the quality and integrity of the Fund’s financial statements. The Trustees will not establish a governance
committee but will retain responsibility directly for developing the Fund’s approach to governance issues, filling
vacancies among the Trustees and periodically reviewing the composition and effectiveness of the Trustees and
the contribution of individual Trustees. In fulfilling their governance responsibilities, the Trustees will consult
with the committees of the board of directors of the GP.

Governance of the GP

The board of directors of the GP will be responsible for the governance of the GP. The board of directors of
the GP will establish a Compensation and Governance Committee. The members of the Compensation and
Governance Committee will be members of the board of directors of the GP who are “unrelated” directors
within the meaning of the policies of the TSX. The Committee will be responsible for: (a) annually reviewing the
performance of Company Management; (b) developing the GP’s approach to corporate governance issues and
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, policies and orders with respect to such issues; (c) advising
the board in filling vacancies on the board; (d) periodically reviewing the composition and effectiveness of the
board and the contributions of individual directors; and (e) reviewing and recommending to the board the
compensation of Company Management.
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Unit and LP Unit Ownership

As at the Closing Date, the Trustees and the directors and senior officers of the GP will own beneficially,
directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, an aggregate of 37,000 Units and 5,866,450 LP Units,
representing approximately 49.3% of the outstanding Units (assuming the exchange for Units of all
of the outstanding Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units). Included in these amounts are
3,471,970 Exchangeable LP Units and 2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units held by the Vendor, a corporation
controlled by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Michael McKenna (67.5%), representing a 49% interest
in the Fund on a fully-diluted basis. See also “Principal Unitholders”.

Remuneration of Trustees and Directors

Initial compensation for Trustees and directors of the GP will be $20,000 per Trustee or director per year
(without duplication) and $1,250 per Trustee or director of the GP per meeting for attending meetings of the
Trustees or the board of directors of the GP, as the case may be, provided that no compensation will be paid to
the nominees of the Vendor Group for serving as directors of the GP or attending board or committee meetings.
The chair of the Trustees and the chairs of each committee of the Trustees or (without duplication of fees)
committee of the board of directors will receive an additional $5,000 per year in respect of the chair duties. The
chair of the board of directors will receive an additional $10,000 per year in respect of his chair duties. The Fund
and the GP will also reimburse Trustees and directors for out-of-pocket expenses for attending meetings.
Trustees and directors will participate in the insurance and indemnification arrangements described below under
“_ Insurance and Indemnification”. See “XS Cargo Income Fund — Trustees”. No directors’ compensation will
be paid to Trustees who are employees or members of Company Management. No additional compensation will
be paid to Trustees for also serving as trustees of XSCOT.

Insurance and Indemnification

The GP will obtain or cause to be obtained a policy of insurance for its directors and officers and those of
its subsidiaries (and also covering the Trustees and the trustees of XSCOT). The Fund, XSCOT, XS Cargo LP
and the GP will indemnify the Trustees and the trustees of XSCOT and the directors and officers of the GP
against liability and costs in respect of any action or suit against them in connection with the execution of their
duties of office, subject to customary limitations.

Corporate Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions

Mr. McKenna was previously a director and officer of Multitech, which operated a chain of retail consumer
electronics stores. From 1983 to 1995, Multitech grew to 52 stores in all ten provinces and financed that growth
primarily with favourable trade credit terms of up to six months. In 1993, the retail industry underwent a major
change that resulted in several of Multitech’s most significant manufacturers and distributors ceasing to provide
trade credit. Multitech was not adequately capitalized to handle this change. Multitech sought creditor
protection under the provisions of the Companies Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada) in January 1995 and its
stores were closed in 1996. Mr. McKenna was engaged by the receiver to liquidate the remaining inventory. A
proposal under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) was approved in October 1997 and Multitech was
amalgamated with Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc. to form the Vendor on November 15, 1997.

Other than as described above, no Trustee, director or officer of the GP or director or officer of the Vendor
is, or has been, within the past ten years, a director or officer of any other issuer, that while that person was
acting in that capacity (i) was subject to a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied that other issuer
access to any exemptions under Canadian securities legislation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days,
(ii) became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject
to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver or receiver
manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets, (iii) was subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court
relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement
agreement with a securities regulatory authority, or (iv) was subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed
by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable investor in making an
investment decision.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Employment Agreements

It is anticipated that on closing of the offering the GP will enter into employment agreements with the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and three other members of Company Management on terms and
conditions subject to approval by the Compensation and Governance Committee of the board of directors of the
GP. In the case of the Chief Financial Officer, it is anticipated that the GP will assume the Vendor’s obligations
under an existing contract with the Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to which, among other things, XS Cargo LP
will issue Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units in an amount equivalent to 0.2% of the Vendor’s
retained interest, immediately after closing of the Acquisition and on each of the first, second, third and fourth
anniversary dates of the closing of the Acquisition. It is expected that the initial base salary payable to the
members of Company Management as a group will be approximately $600,000 to $750,000 per annum, and cash
performance bonuses and other incentives as may be determined from time to time by the Compensation and
Governance Committee and approved by the board of directors of the GP. The other terms and conditions of the
employment agreements, including any termination and severance arrangements, will be negotiated between the
GP and each of the relevant members of Company Management in the context of prevailing market conditions
for senior executives of comparable entities with similar duties and responsibilities. These terms and conditions
will be subject to the final approval of the GP’s Compensation and Governance Committee.

Long Term Incentive Plan

Key senior employees of the Company and the directors, officers and senior employees of its affiliates will
be eligible to participate in the LTIP. The purpose of the LTIP is to provide eligible participants with
compensation opportunities that will encourage ownership of Units, enhance the Company’s ability to attract,
retain and motivate key personnel, and reward key senior employees for significant performance and associated
per Unit cash flow growth of the Fund. Pursuant to the LTIP, the Company will set aside a pool of funds based
upon the amount by which the Fund’s per Unit distributions exceed certain per Unit distributable cash threshold
amounts. A third party trustee will then purchase Units in the market with such pool of funds and will hold such
Units until such time as ownership vests to each participant. The Compensation Committee of the GP will
administer the LTIP. The board of directors of the GP or the Compensation Committee will have the power to,
among other things, (i) determine those individuals who will participate in the LTIP, (ii) the level of participation
of each participant and (iii) the time or times when ownership of the Units will vest for each participant.

Initially, the LTIP will provide for awards that may be earned based on the amount by which distributable
cash exceeds a base distribution threshold of $1.125 per Unit per annum. The percentage amount of that excess
which forms the LTIP incentive pool will be determined in accordance with the table below:

Percentage by which Distributable Cash Proportion of Excess Distributable

per Unit Exceeds Base Distribution Threshold Cash Available for LTIP Payments®

500 OF 1888 .+ v vt ittt e e e nil

Greater than 5% andupto10% ....................... 10% of any excess over 5%

Greater than 10% andupto20% .............cvvvv... 10% of any excess over 5%,
plus 20% of any excess over 10%

Greater than 20 . . . ..o i ittt e e e e 10% of any excess over 5%,

plus 20% of any excess over 10% to 20%,
plus 25% of any excess over 20%

Note:
(1) Annualized for fiscal periods of less than 12 months.

The base distribution threshold will be subject to adjustment by the Compensation Committee from time
to time.

The board of directors of the GP or the Compensation Committee may also in the future establish other
incentive based compensation plans.
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RETAINED INTEREST AND EXCHANGE RIGHTS

Retained Interest

Upon the completion of this offering, the Vendor will own 3,471,970 Exchangeable LP Units and
2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units representing, in the aggregate, 49% of the LP Units. The Vendor will also own
5,866,450 GP Common Shares representing, in the aggregate, 49% of the GP Common Shares. See “Principal
Agreements — Acquisition Agreement”, “Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions” and “Principal
Unitholders”.

Escrov‘v of Exchangeable LP Units

The Exchangeable LP Units are transferable. However, pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, the GP will
hold all of the unit certificates in respect of the Exchangeable LP Units in escrow for 180 days after the Closing
Date, subject to certain limited exceptions.

Exchange Rights

The Exchangeable LP Units are indirectly exchangeable for Units on the basis of one Unit for each
Exchangeable LP Unit. The exchange procedure may be initiated by the holder of an Exchangeable LP Unit at
any time and from time to time by delivering to the GP, as escrow agent under the Exchange Agreement, a unit
certificate in respect of that portion of its Exchangeable LP Units to be exchanged, duly endorsed in blank for
transfer, as well as a certificate representing a proportionate number of GP Common Shares. The GP will give
notice of the proposed exchange to XSCOT, which will acquire Units from the Fund in consideration for the
issuance of XSCOT Units and XSCOT Notes in the number required to complete the exchange. XSCOT will
deliver to the GP as escrow agent a certificate for the requisite number of Units duly endorsed in blank for
transfer. The GP will effect the exchange procedure by causing to be issued in the name of XSCOT a unit
certificate for that number of Ordinary LP Units (and a proportionate number of GP Common Shares) to be
issued on the exchange, entering XSCOT in the register of limited partners of XS Cargo LP and in the register
of shareholders of the GP in respect of such additional Ordinary LP Units and GP Common Shares, causing the
Exchangeable LP Units and GP Common Shares so tendered for exchange to be cancelled, and delivering to the
previous holder of the Exchangeable LP Units a certificate for that number of Units of the Fund to be received
on the exchange.

Voting Rights

Holders of Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units will, in connection with the offering, be
issued Special Voting Units of the Fund that will be attached to, and will only be evidenced by, the certificates
representing the Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units. The Special Voting Units will entitle the
holders thereof to vote in all votes of Voting Unitholders (including resolutions in writing) as if they were the
holders of the number of Units that they would receive if all their Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated
LP Units were exchanged for Units. See “XS Cargo Income Fund — Units and Special Voting Units”.

Dilution Rights and Economic Equivalence

The Exchange Agreement will provide that in the event that there is a change in the number of
Exchangeable LP Units, or the number of Units outstanding as a result of a subdivision, consolidation,
reclassification, capital reorganization or similar change in the Exchangeable LP Units or Units (other than a
consolidation of Units immediately following a distribution of Units in lieu of a cash distribution), the exchange
ratio will be adjusted by the Fund. The Exchange Agreement also provides that the Fund will not issue or
distribute Units to the holders of all or substantially all of the then outstanding Units (other than a distribution
of Units in lieu of cash distribution), issue or distribute rights, options or warrants to the holders of all or
substantially all of the then outstanding Units or issue or distribute property of the Fund to the holders of all or
substantially all of the then outstanding Units unless, in each case, the economic equivalent thereof (as
determined by the Trustees) is issued or distributed simultaneously to the holders of Exchangeable LP Units and
Subordinated LP Units.
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Reclassification of Units

If at any time while any Exchangeable LP Unit or Subordinated LP Unit is outstanding there is any
reclassification of the Units outstanding, any change of the Units into other units or securities or any other
capital reorganization or distribution of the Fund or any consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement, merger or
other form of business combination of the Fund with or into any other entity resulting in a reclassification of the
outstanding Units, then the Exchange Rights will be adjusted in a manner approved by the Trustees, acting
reasonably, so that holders of Exchangeable LP Units will be entitled to receive, in lieu of the number of Units
which they would otherwise have been entitled, the kind and number or amount of securities that they would
have been entitled to receive as a result of such event if, on the effective date thereof, they had been the
registered holder of the number of Units which they would have received had they exercised the Exchange
Rights immediately before the effective date of any such transaction.

If at any time while any Subordinated LP Unit is outstanding there is any reclassification of the Units
outstanding, any change of the Units into other units or securities or any other capital reorganization of the
Fund as a result of any consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement, merger or other form of business
combination of the Fund with or into any other entity resulting in a reclassification of the outstanding Units,
then notwithstanding the terms and conditions of the Subordinated LP Units and any other provision of the
Declaration of Trust or the Limited Partnership Agreement, the outstanding Subordinated LP Units will
automatically convert into Exchangeable LP Units at the then current conversion ratio in effect under the
Limited Partnership Agreement, and the holders of such Subordinated LP Units will, immediately subsequent to
such conversion, be entitled to receive, in lieu of the number of Units which they would otherwise have been
entitled to receive upon the exercise of their Exchange Rights, the kind and number or amount of securities that
they would have been entitled to receive as a result of such event if, on the effective date thereof, they had been
the registered holder of the number of Units which they would have received had they exercised the Exchange
Rights immediately before the effective date of any such transaction.

In addition, if at any time while any Subordinated LP Unit is outstanding there is any reclassification of the
Exchangeable LP Units outstanding, any change of the Exchangeable LP Units into other units or securities
(other than into Units) or any other capital reorganization of XS Cargo LP or any consolidation, amalgamation,
arrangement, merger or other form of business combination of XS Cargo LP with or into any other entity
resulting in a reclassification of the outstanding Exchangeable LP Units, then the holders of Subordinated
LP Units will be entitled to receive, in lieu of the number of Exchangeable LP Units which they would otherwise
have been entitled, the kind and number or amount of securities that they would have been entitled to receive as
a result of such event if, on the effective date thereof, they had been the registered holder of the number of
Exchangeable LP Units that they would have received had they converted their Subordinated LP Units for
Exchangeable LP Units immediately before the effective date of any such transaction.

This prospectus qualifies the issuance by the Fund of the Exchange Rights in respect of the Exchangeable
LP Units and Subordinated LP Units to the Vendor.

Registration Rights

The Vendor Group has been granted “demand” and “piggy back” registration rights by the Fund that will
enable them to require the Fund to file a prospectus and otherwise assist with a public offering of Units subject
to certain limitations, with the Fund’s expenses to be borne by the Vendor Group (or on a pro rata basis if both
the Vendor Group and the Fund are offering Units) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Exchange
Agreement. In the event of a “piggy back” offering, the Fund’s financing requirements are to take priority.

Subordination

Distributions on the Subordinated LP Units will be subordinated in favour of Ordinary LP Units and
Exchangeable LP Units. Distributions will only be paid by XS Cargo LP on the Subordinated LP Units at the
end of a fiscal quarter to the extent that: (i) XS Cargo LP has paid average monthly distributions of at least
$0.09375 per Ordinary LP Unit and Exchangeable LP Unit to holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable
LP Units during that quarter, and (ii) any deficiency in such distributions to holders of Ordinary LP Units and
Exchangeable LP Units during the preceding 12 months has been satisfied, as described below. If these targets
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are not satisfied, any deficiency will be borne by holders of the Subordinated LP Units, distributions on which
will be reduced to the extent necessary to support the continued payment of distributions on the Ordinary
LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units and any applicable deficiency in such distributions.

Distributions on the Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units will be cumulative, such that the
amount of any deficiency will accumulate.for a period of 12 months. Payments of deficiencies in distributions on
the Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units will be made in priority to distributions on the
Subordinated LP Units. Any accumulated deficiency on Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units not
satisfied by a distribution by XS Cargo LP within 12 months of the date it arose will cease to be payable
(i.e., distributions on the Subordinated LP Units will not be reduced to fund accumulated deficiency to the
extent that some or all of such accumulated deficiency arose more than 12 months before the date on which such
payment is to be made). As the holder of the Ordinary LP Units, XSCOT will be entitled to enforce payment of
any accumulated deficiency during the term of the subordination provisions.

The Subordinated LP Units will automatically convert into Ekchangeable LP Units on a one-for-one basis
at (and the subordination provisions will only apply until) the earlier of:

(i) December 31, 2006 if, for the fiscal year of XS Cargo LP ending on such date, XS Cargo LP has earned
EBITDA (derived from audited financial statements) of at least $14.432 million (the “EBITDA
Target”), and XS Cargo LP has paid distributions of at least $1.125 per LP Unit (the “Distribution
Target™) for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (annualized in the case of
2005), and )

(ii) the end of any fiscal year of the Fund following December 31, 2006 in respect of which XS Cargo LP
has earned EBITDA (derived from audited financial statements) of at least the EBITDA Target and
XS Cargo LP has paid distributions per LP Unit at least equal to the Distribution Target for such
fiscal year.

For the purposes of the subordination provisions, EBITDA will be calculated and adjusted in a manner
consistent with the definition of EBITDA set forth in this prospectus. See “Non GAAP Measures”.

The Limited Partnership Agreement will provide that if a take-over bid by a person acting at arm’s length to
the Vendor owning Subordinated LP Units (or any associate or affiliate thereof or person acting jointly or in
concert with such Vendor) is made for the Units, then, provided that 20% or more of the Units on a fully diluted
basis (other than Units held at the date of the take-over bid by or on behalf of the offeror or associates or
affiliates of the offeror) are taken-up and paid for pursuant to the take-over bid, the subordination of the
Subordinated LP Units will automatically terminate and be of no further force or effect and the Subordinated
LP Units will automatically convert into Exchangeable LP Units on a one-for-one basis. The subordination of
the Subordinated LP Units will also automatically terminate and be of no further force or effect and the
Subordinated LP Units will automatically convert into Exchangeable LP Units on a one-for-one basis on the
completion of an Acquisition Transaction.

Notwithstanding the subordination of distributions to holders of the Subordinated LP Units, holders of
these LP Units will have the right, through Special Voting Units issued in conjunction with the Subordinated
LP Units, to a number of votes at any meeting of Voting Unitholders equal to the number of Units that may be
obtained upon the exchange of such Subordinated LP Units without giving effect to such subordination.

SUMMARY OF DISTRIBUTABLE CASH OF THE FUND

The following analysis has been prepared by Company Management on the basis of the financial and other
information contained in this prospectus and Company Management’s estimate of the amount of expenses and
expenditures to be incurred by the Company and the Fund. This analysis is not a forecast or a projection of
future results. The actual results of operations of the Company for any period, whether before or after the
closing of the offering, will vary from the amounts set forth in the following analysis and such variation may be
material. The following analysis does not take into account the additional EBITDA that Company Management
anticipates will be generated by the two new stores that opened in April 2005 and the three new stores scheduled
to open by the end of June 2005.
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Company Management believes that, upon completion of the offering and the transactions described under

“Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions”, the Company will incur capital replacement and renovations
expenditures, incremental general administrative costs and interest expense that will differ from those contained
in the consolidated financial statements that are included elsewhere in this prospectus. Although Company
Management does not have firm commitments for all of the aforementioned items and, accordingly, the
complete financial effects of all of those items are not objectively determinable, Company Management believes
that the following represents a reasonable estimate of what distributable cash would have been for the twelve
months ended January 31, 2005 had the Fund been in existence during such time and had the Acquisition taken
place at the beginning of such period:

12 Months Ended
January 31, 2005®

(unaudited)
($ thousands except
per unit data)

Normalized EBITDAG O | . i ittt i et 14,354
Company Management estimates that the following amount will increase

distributable cash:

Vendor volume rebate agreement® ... ... ... i 478
Company Management estimates that the following amounts will decrease

distributable cash: '

Maintenance capital expenditures® . ... ... .. Lol 175
Incremental general and administrative COStS L e e 400
Interest expense® . .. ... ... 788
Distributable Cash( & . o oottt e e et 13,469
Distributable cash per Unit® . ... ... . ottt 1.125
Notes:
(1) Certain financial information has been derived from the historical consolidated financial statements of the Vendor contained elsewhere

@

©)

@)

©)

(6)

Y

®

®

in this prospectus. See also “Non-GAAP Measures” and “Selected Historical Financial and Operating Information”.

Normalized EBITDA represents EBITDA adjusted for certain ijtems that Company Management believes facilitates the comparability
of historical periods. EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA are not measures recognized by GAAP and do not have standardized
meanings prescribed by GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented
by other issuers. See “Non-GAAP Measures” and “Reconciliation of Net Income to Normalized EBITDA”.

During the twelve months ended January 31, 2005, the Company entered into a supply and rebate agreement with a supply aggregator
providing for a rebate payable quarterly based on the Company’s purchases through the supply aggregator. For accounting purposes, the
portion of the rebate received that relates to products that are still in the Company’s inventory are recorded as a reduction in inventory
cost. As only a portion of the rebate received has been recognized in income for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005, an adjustment
has been made to the calculation of distributable cash to reflect the portion of the cash rebate received but not recognized.

Maintenance capital expenditures have been estimated by Company Management based on historical expenditure levels and the current
number and condition of stores.

Company Management estimates that, subsequent to the offering, the Fund and the Company will incur additional general and
administrative costs on an ongoing basis in connection with reporting to Unitholders, investor relations, trustee and director fees and
other related matters.

For purposes of calculating estimated distributable cash, interest at the rate of 5.25% per annum has been applied to an estimated
average amount outstanding under the Credit Facility of $15 million. The Credit Facility provides for interest at the lender’s Canadian
prime rate or U.S. base rate plus 0% to 0.25% on the operating facility and the lender’s Canadian prime rate plus 0.25% to 0.75% or the
lender’s banker’s acceptance rate plus 1.75% to 2.25% on the term facility. The lender’s prime rate is currently 4.25%. See
“Credit Facility”.

Distributable cash is a measure that is not recognized by GAAP and does not have a standardized meaning prescribed by GAAFP. See
“Non-GAAP Measures”.

Based on 11,972,450 Units outstanding on a fully diluted basis upon completion of the offering, assuming exchange for Units of all
outstanding Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units.

Only 15 of XS Cargo’s 21 stores were operating for the full twelve month period ended January 31, 2005, and two of XS Cargo’s stores
opened subsequent to this period. During the twelve month period ended January 31, 2005, one store opened in June 2004 (8 months of
operations), one store opened in October 2004 (3.5 months of operations), one store opened in November 2004 (2.5 months of
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operations) and one store opencd in December 2004 (2 months of operations). Two additional stores opened in April 2005. The
estimate of distributable cash set forth above is based on historical Normalized EBITDA and no adjustments have been made to reflect
Company Management’s estimate of Normalized EBITDA if all 19 stores had been operating for the entire twelve month period ended
January 31, 2005. In addition, the estimate of distributable cash does not take into account the additional EBITDA that Company
Management anticipates will be generated by the two new stores that opened in April 2005 and the three new stores scheduled to open
by the end of June 2005.

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NORMALIZED EBITDA

Because the Fund will distribute substantially all of its cash on an ongoing basis, Company Management
believes that EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA are important measures in evaluating the performance of the
Company and in determining whether to invest in the Units. However, EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA are
not recognized earnings measures under GAAP and do not have standardized meanings prescribed by GAAP.
Therefore, EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other
issuers. Investors are cautioned that EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA should not be construed as an
alternative to net income or loss determined in accordance with GAAP as indicators of the Company’s
performance or as an alternative to cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities as a measure of
liquidity and cash flows. The Company defines and has computed EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA as
described under “Non-GAAP Measures”. The following table reconciles EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA to
net income, based on the audited and unaudited historical consolidated financial statements of the Vendor for
the periods indicated.

Three Months Ended, lel\:g:éhs
January 31, January 31, January 31, Year Ended October 31,
2005 20040 2005® 20040 2003® 2002
(in thousands of dollars)
NetloSS . ..o iiieienieeiiiaaon e (65) 47 (133) (115)  (72) (75)
Adjustments to net loss
Interest EXPense .. ... eeon o 153 118 682 647 545 482
Interest iNCOME « « v« v v v v v v v v v o v enonnns (40) (26) (152) (138) (146)  (65)
INCOME tAXES . + v v oo vv e vaaneereeonn 32) (28) (50) (46) (200 (11)
Amortization . ..... ... eiiaee o 135 104 483 452 313 228
EBITDA. . ... oottt i eiea e 151 121 830 800 620 559
Adjustments to EBITDA
Employee profit sharing plan
contributions® . . ... ... il 5,561 4,748 13,524 12,711 5,296 5,800
Charitable donations™®. ................ 102
Normalized EBITDA . ... .......... . ... 5,712 4,869 14,354 13,511 6,018 6,359

Notes:

(1) The amounts are derived from the Vendor’s audited and unaudited historical financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus.

(2) The amounts for the 12 months ended January 31, 2005 have been derived from the Vendor’s audited financial statements for the year
ended October 31, 2004 and the Vendor’s unaudited financial statements for the three month periods ended January 31, 2005 and

January 31, 2004 included in this table and elsewhere in this prospectus. The results of operations for this period are not necessarily
indicative of the results of operations to be expected in any given fiscal year.

(3) Represents non-recurring employee profit sharing plan contributions.
(4) Represents non-recurring charitable contributions.

(5) See “Non-GAAP Measures”. Normalized EBITDA is EBITDA adjusted to remove non-recurring items, which for the above periods
consisted of only non-recurring employee profit sharing plan contributions and non-recurring charitable contributions. EBITDA and
Normalized EBITDA are not recognized measures under GAAP and do not have standardized meanings prescribed by GAAPF.
EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following management’s discussion and analysis of the Vendor’s financial condition and results of
operations should be read together with the historical financial statements and related notes included elsewhere
in this prospectus. Management’s discussion and analysis relates to the financial statements of the Vendor for
the three months ended January 31, 2005 and the years ended October 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. The financial
statements of the Vendor are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.
Certain dollar amounts in the management’s discussion and analysis have been rounded to the nearest
thousands of dollars.

The Vendor is the entity that operated the broadline closeout retail business of the Company immediately
prior to the completion of the offering. “See Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions”. This discussion
contains certain forward looking statements. See “Forward Looking Statements” for a discussion of the risks,
uncertainty and assumptions relating to those statements. This discussion also refers to certain non-GAAP
measures to assist in assessing the Vendor’s financial performance. Non-GAAP measures do not have standard
meanings prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by
other issuers. See “Non-GAAP Measures”.

Selected Historical Financial and Operating Information

The following selected historical financial and operating information has been derived from the
consolidated and historical financial statements of the Vendor set out elsewhere in this prospectus. This
information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of the Vendor for the three months
ended January 31, 2005 and for the years ended October 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, together with the notes
thereto, included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Summary Income Statement and Operating Information

Three Months Ended
January 31, Years Ended October 31,

2005® 2004V 20040 20030 2002V

(in thousands of dollars except gross margin percentage
and number of stores)

SalES . o vttt e e 29,447 23,527 73,753 59,112 54,791
Gross Margin . .......c.vvinr i ensnnnn.. 10,592 8,633 26,865 17,798 16,582
Gross Margin Percentage . . .........couviintnnn 36.0% 36.7% 36.4% 30.1% 303%
Net Income (10SS) .. oo vt v iiiininnien i enennnnn (65) 47 (115) (72) (75)
Normalized EBITDA® ... ......... .. cciinann. 5,712 4,869 13,511 6,018 6,359
StoresatPeriod End ............. ... 19 15 17 15 11

Summary Balance Sheet Information

JanAui:; 31 As at October 31,
£
2005W 20040 2003W 20020

(in thousands of dollars)

TOtal ASSEES. « v v vt ittt e e e 34,362 31,113 20,473 17,941
Long-term Liabilities . . .. ...t 199 146 150 139
Notes:

(1) The amounts are derived from the Vendor’s audited and unaudited historical financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus.

(2) Normalized EBITDA represents EBITDA adjusted for certain items that Company Management believes facilitates the comparability
of historical periods. EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA are not measures recognized by GAAP and do not have standardized
meanings prescribed by GAAP. Therefore, EBITDA and Normalized EBITDA may not be comparable to similar measures presented
by other issuers. See “Non-GAAP Measures” and “Reconciliation of Net Income to Normalized EBITDA”.
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Overview

As at January 31, 2005 the Vendor operated 19 stores located in British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan,
Manitoba and Ontario. Since its inception in 1996, the Vendor has grown primarily by opening new corporate
stores in leased premises. Prior to May 2003, the Vendor also operated weekend sales events at temporary
locations throughout Canada.

In comparing the annual results for 2004 to the annual results for 2001, sales have grown by $29.6 million
from $44.2 million to $73.8 million, a 67.0% increase, gross margin has grown by $14.2 million from $12.7 million
to $26.9 million, a 111.4% increase, gross margin percentage has improved by 7.6%, and the number of stores
has increased from 8 to 17.

During the same period, normalized EBITDA has grown by $8.8 million from $4.7 million to $13.5 million,
a 184.8% increase.

The Vendor’s program to open new stores has been, and continues to be, an important contributor to the
Vendor’s future growth prospects. Adding new stores to the chain has historically contributed to increases in
retail sales and EBITDA.

A key measure of the Vendor’s performance is gross margin percentage. Gross margin percentage is a key
indicator of the Vendor’s ability to effectively purchase and market its products and control inventory losses.

Recent events

In October 2004, the Vendor entered into a lease agreement for a new warehouse and distribution centre in
Edmonton, Alberta, which is expected to commence operations in August 2005 and replace the three existing
facilities in Edmonton that serve as its distribution centres and warehouses.

Subsequent to January 31, 2005, the Vendor opened two new stores in Ontario in April 2005. The Vendor
also entered into lease agreements for three additional new store locations, which are scheduled to open
between May 2005 and June 2005. One of the new stores will be located in Ontario and two in Alberta.

In April 2005, the Vendor opened a new warehouse and distribution centre in Mississauga, Ontario.
Currently, eleven of the Vendor’s 21 stores are located in Ontario. Historically, the Ontario stores have been
supplied primarily out of the Vendor’s Edmonton distribution centres and warehouses. The addition of the
Ontario warehouse and distribution centre is expected to reduce freight expenses as a percentage of sales and
improve distribution times to the Ontario stores.

Sales

Substantially all of the Vendor’s sales are paid in cash or by credit card or debit card. The Vendor
experiences a higher level of sales in its first quarter ended January 31, due to seasonal retail shopping patterns.
Historically, approximately one-third of the Vendor’s annual sales occur in the first quarter.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales includes the cost to purchase goods for resale, duties and freight costs. Approximately 80% of
purchases are paid for in United States currency. See “Risk Factors”.

Administrative and operating expenses

Administrative and operating expenses consist primarily of advertising, rent and occupancy costs, and wages
and benefits. Although overall operating costs increase as new stores are developed, expenses are generally
consistent from year-to-year on a store-by-store basis.

The Vendor is a private company and has not incurred significant corporate income taxes since it has been
the Vendor’s practice to reduce taxable income through contributions to the Vendor’s employee profit sharing
plan. The Fund will not continue this policy.
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Operating results

Three months ended January 31, 2005 compared to three months ended January 31, 2004

Sales in the first quarter of 2005 increased by $5.9 million, or 25.1%, from $23.5 million to $29.4 million.
The increase in sales was primarily the result of four additional stores in 2005, which accounted for $5.8 million
of the increase. The remaining $0.1 million was the result of an increase in same store sales of 0.6%.

Gross margin for the first quarter of 2005 increased by $2.0 million compared to the first quarter of 2004,
primarily as a result of the new stores in 2005. Gross margin percentage decreased slightly from 36.7% to 36.0%,
almost entirely due to increased freight costs as a percentage of sales. Freight costs were higher in 2005 because
three of the four new stores are located in Ontario and most of the Vendor’s inventory is shipped to the stores
from the distribution centre in Edmonton.

Administrative and operating expenses increased by $1.1 million in the first quarter of 2005 compared to
the first quarter of 2004. The increase is primarily the result of a $0.5 million increase in store wages and
benefits, a $0.3 million increase in advertising expense and a $0.2 million increase in rent. All of the increases are
the result of additional stores in 2005.

Year ended October 31, 2004 compared to year ended October 31, 2003

In 2004, sales increased by $14.7 million, or 24.8%, from $59.1 million in 2003 to $73.8 million. Of the
increase, $9.2 million is attributable to four stores that were opened in 2003. Sales from these stores for the full
year in 2004 were $15.4 million compared to $6.2 million for the partial periods they were open in 2003. Two new
stores were opened in 2004 and contributed $2.6 million to the increase in sales. Stores that were open for a full
12 months in 2003 and 2004 experienced an increase in sales of $6.4 million (13.0% increase in same store sales).
The increases were partially offset by the cessation of offsite sales, which accounted for $3.5 million of sales in
2003 and $nil in 2004.

Gross margin for the year ended October 31, 2004 increased by $9.1 million over 2003. Of this increase,
$4.6 million was the result of a 6.3% increase in gross margin percentage and the remaining $4.5 million was the
result of increased sales. Historically, store sales have always had a higher gross margin percentage than offsite
sales. The inclusion of offsite sales in 2003 reduced the average gross margin in that year by 1.3%. The
remainder of the increase in gross margin percentage in 2004 was the result of management’s focus on store
merchandising, improving product mix and increasing product selection. The merchandising strategy involved
taking advantage of the Vendor’s traffic volumes by supplementing its core advertised products with a wider
selection of higher margin items.

Administrative and operating expenses increased by $1.6 million from $11.2 million to $12.8 million,
primarily due to the increase in number of stores. Advertising increased by $0.4 million; salaries, wages and
benefits increased by $0.6 million; and rent and utilities increased by $0.4 million.

Year ended October 31, 2003 compared to year ended October 31, 2002

2003 was a transition year for the Vendor, as management made the strategic decision to cease off-site sales
events. Although off-site sales were very profitable for the Vendor, they were consuming a disproportionate
amount of management time and resources and taking focus and inventory away from the corporate stores.
Conducting the off-site sales also created an opportunity cost for the stores because finite inventory was being
liquidated at lower overall gross margins and with higher operating costs. In the latter half of 2003, management
began to implement the new strategy and opened four new stores in Ontario and British Columbia. Since the
store openings were relatively late in the year, the Vendor did not fully realize the benefits of this strategy until
2004, during which year the Vendor experienced significant growth in same store sales, gross margin and profit.
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The following table illustrates the proportion of store sales and off-site sales and demonstrates the
consistent growth in store sales (18.0% increase from 2002 to 2003):

Sales
(millions of dollars)

% Stores M Off-site

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Since the growth strategy for 2003 included expansion in Ontario and British Columbia, the associated costs
were proportionately higher than for the average existing stores. Gross margin percentage decreased slightly
from 30.3% to 30.1%. The decrease is primarily the result of freight costs, which increased from $3.0 million
(5.4% of sales) to $3.7 million (6.3% of sales). In addition to the new store openings, 2003 was the first full year
of operations for three Ontario stores that opened in 2002. The greater average shipping distances and higher
fuel prices caused freight costs to increase. '

Administrative and operating costs increased by $1.8 million from $9.4 million to $11.2 million, an increase
of 19.1%. The total increase is primarily the result of advertising costs, which increased by $0.6 million; salaries
and benefits, which increased by $0.6 million; and rent, which increased by $0.4 million. Salaries and rent were
affected not only by the growth in number of stores, but also by the location of new stores in B.C. and Ontario,
both of which have higher average hourly wages and retail leasing costs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, the Vendor has not had any third party financing, but has been financed by its shareholders
through an inventory line of credit, shareholder loans, loans from the employee profit sharing plan and
preferred shares. The Vendor has historically utilized cash flow from operations to maintain operations, repay
loans from the employee profit sharing plan, pay interest on the loan from the employee profit sharing plan and
line of credit from Famous Brands Inc. and redeem preferred shares. The following table provides an overview
of the Vendor’s financing for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended

January 31, Years Ended October 31,
) 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002

Net inflow (outflow) of cash related to:

Operations . ...........ccvueveenenn 6,749,539 4,871,341 9,144 (406,010) (2,025,911)

Financing ..........cooiiiinennnn (1,705,489) (1,868,563) 2,325,722 2,687,543 3,787,627

Investing . . ...t (287,407) (86,506)  (436,474)  (533,376) (467,362)

Gain (loss) on foreign cash held .. ... ... 36,654 (22,007) (73,574)  (160,407) (48,306)
Increase (decrease) in cash resources ...... 4,793,297 2,894,265 1,824,818 1,587,750 1,246,808
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As at

January 31, As at October 31,
2005 2004 2004 2003 2002

Financing
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash . ..v ittt i i i e 11,856,687 8,132,837 1,779,726 238,329 3,650,822

Short-term investments. . . . ........... _ — 5,283,664 5,000,243 —
Line of credit to Famous Brands Inc. .. . .. .. (3,500,000) (2,500,000) (3,500,000) (2,500,000) (2,500,000)
Loan payable to employee profit sharing

plan ... .. .. o i (2,966,045) (3,701,534) (3,701,534) (4,943,990) —

During the three months ended January 31, 2005, $1.0 million of cash was used to redeem Class F Preferred
shares and $0.7 million was used to repay the loan from the employee profit sharing plan. Investing activities
consisted of purchases of property and equipment.

In fiscal 2004 financing activities consisted of $2.6 million of net cash received on issuance and redemption
of Class F preferred shares, net repayment of $1.2 million of loan from employee profit sharing plan and
additional $1.0 million line of credit advance from Famous Brands Inc. Included in operating activities is
$5.3 million cash paid to the employee profit sharing plan. Investing activities consisted of purchases of property
and equipment.

In fiscal 2003, financing activities consisted of $2.0 million of net cash received on issuance and redemption
of Class F preferred shares and net $637,000 of proceeds received on loan from the employee profit sharing
plan. Included in operating activities is $5.8 million paid to the employee profit sharing plan. Investing activities
consisted of purchases of property and equipment.

In fiscal 2002, financing activities consisted of proceeds on loan from the employee profit sharing plan of
$4.3 million and cash paid on the redemption of Class F preferred shares of $512,000. Included in operating
activities is $4.3 million paid to the employee profit sharing plan. Investing activities consisted of purchases of
property and equipment.

Credit Facility

A Canadian chartered bank has agreed to provide new credit facilities to the Company, which include a
$7,500,000 demand revolving loan (the “Operating Loan”) and a $15,000,000 non-revolving loan (the “Term
Loan”) (collectively the “Credit Facility”). The Operating Loan will be to assist in financing the day-to-day
operating requirements of the Company and the Term Loan will be for the financing of capital assets and the
Acquisition. Collateral for the Credit Facility will be a first security interest in all present and after acquired
personal property of the Company, an assignment of inventory, and an assignment of the Company’s insurance.
Interest on the Operating Loan will vary, depending on the Company’s ratio of senior debt to EBITDA, between
the lenders’ prime rate and the lendors’ prime rate plus 0.25%. Interest on the Term Loan will vary, depending
on the Company’s ratio of senior debt to EBITDA, between the lendors’ prime rate plus 0.25% and 0.75% or
between the banker’s acceptance rate plus 1.75% and 2.25%.

The Credit Facility requires payments of interest only. Company Management is of the opinion that the
Credit Facility is adequate to meet inventory requirements during peak seasons and open new stores. Although
the Credit Facility requires interest payments only, it could be repaid from additional cash flow generated by
new stores or from the proceeds of subsequent equity offerings.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Company is not significantly impacted by interest rate changes. A 1% increase in interest rates would
have an impact of $150,000 on distributable cash based on $15,000,000 of debt outstanding. Company
Management’s estimate of distributable cash is based on bank debt of $15,000,000 and an interest rate of 5.25%.
As of January 31, 2005, the lenders’ prime rate was 4.25%.
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Financial Instruments

Due to the nature of its business, the Company does not engage in activities or hold assets that would
require the Company to acquire financial instruments for hedging or speculative purposes. The financial
instruments that are held by the Company are in the normal course of operations.

Interest Rate Risk
The inventory line of credit from Famous Brands Inc. bears interest at the greater of 12% or bank prime
rates plus 5.0%, thus exposing the Vendor to interest rate fluctuations if prime rate exceeds 7.0%.

Credit Risk

The Vendor does not provide credit to its customers and therefore has no customer accounts receivable.
Commencing in fiscal 2004, the Vendor entered into a rebate agreement with one supply aggregator. The rebate
accrues based on purchases through that supplier and is calculated and paid on a quarterly basis in arrears.
Company Management believes that there is minimal risk associated with the collection of the rebate receivable
from that supply aggregator.

Contractual Obligations

The following tables provide an overview of the contractual obligations of the Vendor as of
January 31, 2005.

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 Year 1 -3 Years 4-5Years  After 5 Years
Operating lease commitments ........ $5,874,563 $1,265,204 $2,552,350  $1,113,896 $943,113

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Vendor and its subsidiaries have not entered into any off balance sheet arrangements.

Transactions with Related Parties

The Vendor’s related party transactions include interest paid to Famous Brands Inc., a company 100%
owned by the controlling shareholder of the Vendor and interest paid to the Vendor’s employee profit sharing
plan, of which the controlling shareholder of the Vendor is the trustee. The interest paid to Famous Brands Inc.
is made pursuant to an inventory line of credit of up to $3.5 million made available to the Vendor by Famous
Brands Inc. Interest to the employee profit sharing plan is paid on amounts that are loaned to the Vendor from
the plan. See Note 9 to the historical financial statements of the Vendor set out elsewhere in this prospectus for
a more detailed description of these loan arrangements. The interest amounts for the periods indicated are
summarized in the table below:

Three Months . Years Ended October 31,

Ended
January 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002
Interest on line of credit and interest participation . . .. ..... 136,250 552,500 425,000 425,000
Interest on loan from employee profit sharing plan ........ 16,719 93,891 120,341 57,333

Included in accounts payable as at January 31, 2005, is $147,043 owing to shareholders for purchases made
on behalf of the Vendor. As at October 31, 2004 and 2003 the balance due to shareholders included in accounts
payable was $412,035 and $327,680 respectively.

Related party transactions were conducted in the normal course of operations and measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

XS Cargo LP will not assume obligations under the line of credit with Famous Brands Inc. and the
employee profit sharing plan and, as such, these related party transactions will not continue with the Company.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Because of the nature of the Vendor’s business and assets, Company Management does not believe that
there are any estimates that result in the Vendor having any critical accounting policies.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Management of the Vendor is not aware of any recent accounting pronouncements that will affect the
Vendor’s financial statements. Company Management will continue to monitor and assess the impact of
accounting pronouncements as they become available.

Outlook

Company Management believes that operations will improve in the upcoming year due to new store
openings and the addition of the Ontario warehouse and distribution centre, and the consolidation of the
Company’s existing Edmonton distribution and warehouse operations. '

XS CARGO INCOME FUND

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended investment trust governed by the laws of the Province of
Alberta and created pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. At the Closing Date, the Fund will qualify as a
“mutual fund trust” for the purposes of the Tax Act, but the Fund will not be a mutual fund under applicable
securities laws.

The Fund is not a trust company and is not registered under applicable legislation governing trust
companies as it does not carry on or intend to carry on the business of a trust company. The Units are not
“deposits” within the meaning of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (Canada) and are not insured
under the provisions of that Act or any other legislation.

The following is a summary including a description of the material provisions of the Declaration of Trust.
This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Declaration of Trust.

Activities of the Fund
The Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund’s operations and activities shall be restricted to:

(a) acquiring, investing in, holding, transferring, disposing of or otherwise dealing with the debt and equity
securities of any of the XS Cargo Entities, and other corporations, partnerships, trusts or other Persons
involved, directly or indirectly, in the broadline closeout retail business and businesses related, ancillary
or incidental thereto, and such other investments as the Trustees may determine;

(b) acquiring, investing in, holding, transferring, disposing of or otherwise dealing with securities issued by,
or loans made to any of the XS Cargo Entities, or any other business entity or other Person in which a
XS Cargo Entity has or is concurrently acquiring an interest;

(¢) investing in securities of other issuers that meet the Fund’s investment criteria;
(d) disposing of all or any part of the property of the Fund;

(e) holding cash in interest bearing accounts with Canadian financial institutions or investing such monies
in Permitted Investments;

(f) issuing Units, Special Voting Units and other securities of the Fund including, without limitation,
rights, warrants, convertible securities or options to acquire Units or Special Voting Units or other
securities of the Fund; .

(g) issuing debt securities (including debt securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, Units, Special
Voting Units or other securities of the Fund) or otherwise borrowing, mortgaging, pledging, charging,
granting a security interest in or otherwise encumbering any of the Fund’s assets as security for any of
its obligations, liabilities or indebtedness;
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(h) guaranteeing (as guarantor, surety or co-principal obligor) the payment of any indebtedness, liability or
obligation of any Person including, without limitation, any XS Cargo Entity or the performance of any
obligation of any Person including, without limitation, any XS Cargo Entity, and mortgaging, pledging,
charging, granting a security interest in or otherwise encumbering all or any part of the Fund’s assets as
security for such guarantee and subordinating its rights under the XSCOT Notes to other indebtedness
and obligations;

(i) purchasing, repurchasing or redeeming securities issued by the Fund;
(j) satisfying the obligations, liabilities or indebtedness of the Fund;

(k) entering into and performing its obligations under the Administration Agreement, the Securityholders
Agreement, the Exchange Agreement, the Underwriting Agreement and such other agreements as are
contemplated by this prospectus, and the offering and all matters ancillary thereto; and

() undertaking such other activities, or taking such actions (including investing in securities), related to or
in connection with the foregoing or as contemplated by the Declaration of Trust or as may be approved
by the Trustees from time to time,

provided that the Fund shall not undertake any activity, take any action, or purchase or authorize the purchase
of any investment that would result in Units constituting foreign property for purposes of Part XI of the Tax Act
or that would not be allowed for a mutual fund trust under subsection 132(6) of the Tax Act. In connection with
this duty, the Trustees have broad authority and are entitled to take such actions as they consider necessary or
appropriate in accordance with the Declaration of Trust to preserve the mutual fund status of the Fund,
including as described under “Limitation on Non Resident Ownership”.

Units and Special Voting Units

The beneficial interests in the Fund will be divided into interests of two classes, described and designated as
“Units” and “Special Voting Units”, respectively. An unlimited number of Units and Special Voting Units will
be issuable pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. Each Unit will be transferable and will represent an equal
undivided beneficial interest in any distributions from the Fund whether of net income, net realized capital gains
or other amounts and in the net assets of the Fund in the event of a termination or winding-up of the Fund. The
Units issued pursuant to this offering will not be subject to future calls or assessments and will entitle the holder
thereof to one vote for each whole Unit held at all meetings of Voting Unitholders. Except as set out under
“Redemption Right” below, the Units have no conversion, retraction, redemption or pre-emptive rights.

The Special Voting Units will not be entitled to any interest or share in the Fund, in any distribution from
the Fund whether of net income, net realized capital gains or other amounts, or in the net assets of the Fund in
the event of a termination or winding-up of the Fund. Special Voting Units may, however, be redeemed by the
holder at any time for nominal consideration.

Special Voting Units may be issued in series and will only be issued in connection with or in relation to
Exchangeable LP Units, Subordinated LP Units and, if the Trustees so determine, other securities exchangeable,
directly or indirectly, for Units (collectively, “Exchangeable Securities”), in each case for the purpose of
providing voting rights with respect to the Fund to the holders of Exchangeable Securities. Special Voting Units
will be issued in conjunction with, and will be attached to, the Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated
LP Units (or other Exchangeable Securities) to which they relate, and will be evidenced only by the certificates
representing such Exchangeable Securities. Special Voting Units will not be transferable separately from the
Exchangeable Securities to which they are attached. Each Special Voting Unit will entitle the holder thereof to
that number of votes at any meeting of Voting Unitholders that is equal to the number of Units that may be
obtained upon the exchange (direct or indirect) of the Exchangeable LP Unit, Subordinated LP Units or other
Exchangeable Security to which it is attached. Upon the exchange or conversion of an Exchangeable Security for
Units, the Special Voting Unit that is attached to such Exchangeable Security will immediately be cancelled
without any further action of the Trustees, and the former holder of such Special Voting Unit will cease to have
any rights with respect thereto.
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Issued and outstanding Units and Special Voting Units may be subdivided or consolidated from time to
time by the Trustees without the approval of Voting Unitholders.

No certificates will be issued for fractional Units and fractional Units will not entitle the holders thereof
to vote.

This prospectus qualifies the distribution of the Special Voting Units to the holders of Exchangeable
LP Units and Subordinated LP Units.

Issuance of Units

'The Fund may issue Units or rights to acquire Units at those times, to those persons, for that consideration
and on the terms and conditions that the Trustees determine, including pursuant to any Unitholder rights plan or
any incentive option or other compensation plan established by the Fund. Units may be issued in satisfaction of
any non-cash distributions of the Fund to Unitholders on a pro rata basis. The Declaration of Trust provides that
immediately after any pro rata distribution of Units to all Unitholders in satisfaction of any non-cash
distribution, the number of outstanding Units will be consolidated such that each Unitholder will hold after the
consolidation the same number of Units as the Unitholder held before the non-cash distribution (except where
tax was required to be withheld in respect of the Unitholder’s share of the distribution as described below). In
this case, each certificate representing a number of Units prior to the non-cash distribution is deemed to
represent the same number of Units after the non-cash distribution and the consolidation. Where amounts so
distributed represent income, non-resident Unitholders will be subject to withholding tax and, accordingly, the
consolidation will not result in such non-resident Unitholder holding the same number of Units. Such
non-resident Unitholders will be required to surrender the certificates (if any) representing their original Units
in exchange for a certificate representing their post-consolidation Units.

Trustees

The Fund will, from and after the Closing Date, have a minimum of three Trustees and a maximum of seven
Trustees, the majority of whom must be residents of Canada (within the meaning of the Tax Act). The Trustees
are to supervise the activities and manage the affairs of the Fund.

The initial Trustees, who are also directors of the GP, are Jonathan Legg, David B. Margolus and Gordon
Clanachan. See “Management, Trustees and Directors — Directors and Officers of the GP” for the principal
occupations of the Trustees. The initial Trustees are all “unrelated” within the meaning of the policies of
the TSX.

Trustees will be appointed at each annual meeting of Voting Unitholders to hold office for a term expiring
at the close of the next annual meeting. A quorum of the Trustees, being a majority of the Trustees then holding
office, may fill a vacancy in the Trustees, except a vacancy resulting from an increase in the number of Trustees
(other than as provided below) or from a failure of the Voting Unitholders to elect the required number of
Trustees at a meeting of the Voting Unitholders called for such purpose. In the absence of a quorum of Trustees,
or if the vacancy has arisen from a failure of the Voting Unitholders to elect the required number of Trustees at
a meeting of the Voting Unitholders called for such purpose, the Trustees must forthwith call a special meeting
of the Voting Unitholders to fill the vacancy. If the Trustees fail to call such meeting or if there are not Trustees
then in office, any Voting Unitholder may call the meeting. The Trustees may, prior to the first annual meeting
of Voting Unitholders or between annual meetings of Voting Unitholders, appoint one or more additional
Trustees to serve until the next annual meeting of Voting Unitholders, but the number of additional Trustees so
appointed may not at any time exceed one-third of the number of Trustees who held office at the later of the
closing of this offering and the expiration of the immediately preceding annual meeting of Voting Unitholders.

A Trustee may resign upon written notice to the Fund and may be removed by a resolution passed by a
majority of the Voting Unitholders. A vacancy created by such removal may be filled at the same meeting, failing
which it may be filled by the remaining Trustees. '

The Declaration of Trust provides that, subject to its terms and conditions, the Trustees will have full,
absolute and exclusive power, control and authority over the assets of the Fund and over the affairs of the Fund
to the same extent as if the Trustees were the sole and absolute legal and beneficial owners of the assets of the
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Fund, and may, in respect of the assets of the Fund, exercise any and all rights, powers and privileges that could
be exercised by a legal and beneficial owner thereof. Subject to such terms and conditions, the Trustees are
responsible for, among other things: (i) supervising the activities and managing the investments and the affairs of
the Fund; (ii) maintaining records and providing reports to Voting Unitholders; (iii) effecting payments of
distributable cash from the Fund to Unitholders; (iv) acting for, voting on behalf of and representing the Fund as
a holder of XSCOT Units and a holder of XSCOT Notes and other securities; (v) voting in favour of the Fund’s
nominees to serve as trustees of XSCOT; and (vi) causing XSCOT to vote in favour of the Fund’s nominees as
directors of the GP.

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Trustees must act honestly and in good faith with a view to the
best interests of the Fund and in connection therewith must exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a
reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. The Declaration of Trust provides that
each Trustee and officer of the Fund, as well as former Trustees and officers, and their respective heirs and legal
representatives, will be entitled to indemnification from the assets of the Fund in respect of the exercise of that
person’s powers, and the discharge of that person’s duties, provided that the person acted honestly and in good
faith with a view to the best interest. of the Fund and, in the case of a criminal or administrative action or
proceeding that is enforced by a monetary penalty, where the person had reasonable grounds for behevmg that
his or her conduct was lawful.

Cash Distributions

The Fund intends to make monthly cash distributions of its distributable cash to Unitholders to the extent
determined prudent by the Trustees. The amount of cash available for distribution will be equal to the interest
and principal repayments on the XSCOT Notes and the distributions (if any) on or in respect of the XSCOT
Units owned by the Fund and all other amounts, if any, from any other investments from time to time held by
the Fund received in such period, less amounts that are paid, payable, incurred or provided for in such period in
connection with: (a) administrative expenses and other obligations of the Fund; (b) amounts that may be paid by
the Fund in connection with any cash redemptions or repurchases of Units; (c) satisfaction of debt service or
other obligations of the Fund on account of both principal and interest; and (d) any amount that the Trustees
may reasonably consider to be necessary to provide for the payment of any costs, expenses, obligations or
liabilities including any tax liability of the Fund, that have been or are reasonably expected to be incurred in the
activities and operations of the Fund (to the extent that such costs, expenses, obligations or liabilities have not
otherwise been taken into account in the calculation of the available distributable cash of the Fund).

The Fund may make additional distributions in excess of the aforementioned monthly distributions during
the year, as the Trustees may determine. The distribution declared in respect of the month ending December 31
in each year will include such amount in respect of the taxable income and net realized capital gains, if any, of
the Fund for such year as is necessary to ensure that the Fund will not be liable for ordinary income taxes under
the Tax Act in such year.

Any income of the Fund that is unavailable for cash distribution will, to the extent necessary to ensure that
the Fund does not have any income tax liability under Part I of the Tax Act, be distributed to Unitholders in the
form of additional Units. Such additional Units will be issued pursuant to applicable exemptions under
applicable securities laws, discretionary exemptions granted by applicable securities regulatory authorities or a
prospectus or similar filing.

The Fund intends to make monthly cash distributions to Unitholders of record on the last business day of
each month or such other date as may be determined from time to time by the Trustees, and the distributions
will be paid generally on the 15th day of the following month. The initial cash distribution for the period from
the closing of the offering to June 30, 2005 is estimated to be approximately $0.1387 per Unit (assuming that
closing occurs on May 17, 2005), and is expected to be paid on or about July 15, 2005 to holders of record of
Units on June 30, 2005. Subsequent regular distributions in the estimated amount of $0.09375 per Unit are
anticipated to be made in each month thereafter commencing on or about August 15, 2005. See “Certain
Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations”.

Unitholders who are non-residents of Canada will be required to pay all withholding taxes payable in
respect of any distributions of income by the Fund, whether such distributions are in the form of cash or
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additional Units. Non-residents should consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of
investing in the Units. See “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations”.

The Fund, XSCOT and the Company have considerable discretion in determining the amount of cash
distributions. Cash distributions are not guaranteed and will fluctuate with, among other things, the Company’s
performance. See “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Structure of the Fund and the Offering — Cash
Distributions”.

Redemption Right

Units are redeemable at any time on demand by the holders thereof upon delivery to the Fund of a duly
completed and properly executed notice requesting redemption in a form approved by the Trustees specifying
the number of Units to be redeemed. As the Units will be issued in book-entry form, a Unitholder who wishes to
exercise the redemption right will be required to obtain a redemption notice form from the Unitholder’s
investment dealer. As of the close of business on the date the Units are surrendered for redemption, all rights to
and under the Units tendered for redemption shall (subject to the following) be surrendered and the holder
thereof shall be entitled to receive a price per Unit (the “Redemption Price”) equal to the lesser of:

(a) 90% of the Market Price of the Units on the principal stock exchange on which the Units are listed (or,
if the Units are not listed on any stock exchange, on the principal market on which the Units are
quoted for trading) during the period of the last 10 trading days during which the Units traded on such
stock exchange or market ending immediately prior to the date on which the Units were tendered for
redemption; and

(b) the Closing Market Price of the Units on the date on which the Units were tendered for redemption on
the principal stock exchange on which Units are listed (or, if Units are not listed on any stock exchange,
on the principal market on which the Units are quoted for trading).

For the purposes of determining the Redemption Price, “Market Price” for a specified trading period will
be the amount equal to the weighted average of the trading prices of the Units on the applicable market or
exchange for each of the trading days on which there was a trade during the specified trading day period;
provided that if there was trading on the applicable exchange or market for fewer than five of the trading days
during the specified trading day period, «“Market Price” for a specified trading period will be the average of the
following prices established for each of the trading days during the specified trading day period: the average of
the last bid and ask prices for each trading day on which there was no trading and the weighted average trading
prices of the Units for each trading day on which there was trading. For the purposes of determining the
Redemption Price, “Closing Market Price” will be: (i) an amount equal to the closing price of the Units on the
applicable market or exchange if there was a trade on the specified date and the applicable market or exchange
provides a closing price; (ii) an amount equal to the average of the highest and lowest prices of Units on the
applicable market or exchange if there was trading on the specified date and the applicable market or exchange
provides only the highest and lowest trading prices of Units traded on a particular day; or (iii) the average of the
last bid and ask prices on the applicable market or exchange if there was no trading on the specified date.

The aggregate Redemption Price payable by the Fund in respect of any Units surrendered for redemption
during any calendar month will be satisfied by way of a cash payment by the Fund no later than the last day of
the calendar month following the calendar month in which the Units were tendered for redemption, provided
that the entitlement of the Unitholders to receive cash upon the redemption of their Units is subject to the
limitations that:

(a) the total amount payable in cash by the Fund in respect of such Units and all other Units tendered for
redemption in the same calendar month may not exceed $50,000 (the “Meonthly Limit”), provided that
the Trustees may, in their sole discretion, waive such limitation in respect of all Units tendered for
redemption in any calendar month;

(b) at the time such Units are tendered for redemption, the outstanding Units must be listed for trading on
a stock exchange or traded or quoted on another market that, in the sole discretion of the Trustees,
provides a representative fair market value price for the Units; and
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(c) the normal trading of Units must not be suspended or halted on any stock exchange on which the Units
are listed (or, if not listed on a stock exchange, on any market on which the Units are quoted for
trading) on the date that the Units are tendered for redemption or for more than five trading days
during the 10 trading day period prior to the date on which the Units are tendered for redemption.

If a Unitholder is not entitled to receive cash upon the redemption of Units as a result of one or more of the
foregoing limitations, then each Unit tendered for redemption will, subject to any applicable regulatory
approvals, be redeemed by way of a distribution in specie. In such circumstances, XSCOT Units and Series 1
XSCOT Notes of a value equal to the Redemption Price will be redeemed by XSCOT in consideration of the
issuance to the Fund of Series 2 XSCOT Notes. The Series 2 XSCOT Notes will then be distributed in
satisfaction of the Redemption Price. The Fund will be entitled to all interest paid on the XSCOT Notes and the
distributions paid on the XSCOT Units on or before the date of the distribution in specie. Where the Fund
makes a distribution in specie of a pro rata number of securities of XSCOT on the redemption of Units of a
Unitholder, the Fund currently intends to designate to that Unitholder any income or capital gain realized by the
Fund as a result of the redemption of XSCOT Units and Series 1 XSCOT Notes in exchange for Series 2
XSCOT Notes, or as a result of the distribution of Series 2 XSCOT Notes to the Unitholder on the redemption
of such Units. See “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations”.

~ It is anticipated that the redemption right described above will not be the primary mechanism for holders of
Units to dispose of their Units. Series 2 XSCOT Notes that may be distributed in specie to Unitholders in
connection with a redemption will not be listed on any stock exchange and no market is expected to develop in
Series 2 XSCOT Notes and they may be subject to resale restrictions under applicable securities laws. Series 2
XSCOT Notes so distributed may not be qualified investments for trusts governed by Exempt Plans at the time.
See “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations”.

Repurchase of Units
The Fund will be allowed, from time to time, to purchase Units for cancellation in accordance with
applicable securities laws and the rules prescribed under applicable stock exchange or regulatory policies.

Meetings of Voting Unitholders

The Declaration of Trust provides that meetings of Voting Unitholders will be required to be called and
held annually, for the purpose of: (i) the election of Trustees, (ii) the appointment of auditors of the Fund for
the ensuing year, (i) generally, any other matter that requires a resolution of Voting Unitholders, and
(iv) transacting such other business as the Trustees may determine or as may be properly brought before the
meeting. The Declaration of Trust provides that the Voting Unitholders will be entitled to pass resolutions that
will bind the Fund only with respect to:

(a) the election or removal of Trustees;

(b) any amalgamation, arrangement, other merger or capital reorganization of the Fund with any other
entity, except in conjunction with an internal reorganization or the acquisition by the Fund or a
XS Cargo Entity of the securities or assets of another entity;

(c) the appointment or removal of nominees of the Fund chosen by the Voting Unitholders to serve as
trustees of XSCOT, except filling casual vacancies;

(d) the appointment or removal of the auditors of the Fund;

(¢) the appointment of an inspector to investigate the performance by the Trustees in respect of their
respective responsibilities and duties in respect of the Fund; '

(f) the approval of amendments to the Declaration of Trust (as described under “XS Cargo Income
Fund — Amendments to the Declaration of Trust”);

(g) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Fund;
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(h) the exercise of certain voting rights attached to the securities of XSCOT or the Company held directly
or indirectly by the Fund, subject to the provisions of any securityholders agreement including, without
limitation, the Securityholders Agreement;

(i) the election of nominees of the Fund to act as directors of the GP or the removal thereof, except filling
casual vacancies;

() the dissolution of the Fund prior to the end of its term; and

(k) such other business as the Trustees may determine or as may properly be brought before the meeting,
including, without limitation, any other matters required by securities law, stock exchange rules or
other laws or regulations to be submitted to Voting Unitholders for their approval, including, if so
required, the ratification of any Unitholder rights plan, distribution reinvestment plan, Unit purchase
plan, Unit option plan or other compensation plan.

No other action taken by Voting Unitholders or any other resolution of the Voting Unitholders at any
meeting will in any way bind the Trustees.

Resolutions (i) electing or removing Trustees, (ii) electing or removing nominees of the Fund to serve as
trustees of XSCOT or as directors of the GP, (iii) appointing or removing the auditors of the Fund, (iv) with
respect to the exercise of certain voting rights attached to the securities of XSCOT or the Company held,
directly or indirectly, by the Fund, (v) where applicable, ratifying any Unitholder rights plan, distribution
reinvestment plan, Unit purchase plan, Unit option plan or other compensation plan requiring Voting
Unitholder approval under securities law, stock exchange rules or other laws or regulations, and (vi) where
applicable, matters required by securities law, stock exchange rules or other laws or regulations be submitted to
Voting Unitholders, must be passed by a simple majority of the votes cast by Voting Unitholders. The balance of
the foregoing matters must be passed by a resolution of the Voting Unitholders passed by not less than 66%%
of the votes cast, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Voting Unitholders called for the purpose of
approving such resolution, or approved in writing by the holders of not less than 66%% of the Voting Units
entitled to vote on such resolution (a “Special Resolution™).

Subject to the foregoing limitations, a meeting of Voting Unitholders may be convened at any time and for
any purpose by the Trustees and must be convened if requisitioned in writing by the holders of not less than 5%
of the Voting Units then outstanding. A requisition must state in reasonable detail the business proposed to be
transacted at the meeting.

Voting Unitholders may attend and vote at all meetings of the Voting Unitholders either in person or by
proxy and a proxy holder need not be a Voting Unitholder. Two persons present in person and either holding
personally or representing by proxy in the aggregate at least 10% of the votes attached to all outstanding Voting
Units will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at all such meetings. At any meeting at which a
quorum is not present within one-half hour after the time fixed for the holding of such meeting, the meeting, if
convened upon the request of the Voting Unitholders, will be terminated (not adjourned), but in any other case,
the meeting will stand adjourned to a day not less than 14 days later and to a place and time as chosen by the
chair of the meeting, and if at such adjourned meeting a quorum is not present, the Voting Unitholders present
either in person or by proxy will be deemed to constitute a quorum.

The Declaration of Trust contains provisions as to the notice required and other procedures with respect to
the calling and holding of meetings of Voting Unitholders.

Limitation on Non-Resident Ownership

In order for the Fund to maintain its status as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act, the Fund must not be
established or maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents within the meaning of the Tax Act.
Accordingly, the Declaration of Trust provides that at no time may Non-residents be the beneficial owners of
more than 49% of the Units. This 49% limitation will be applied with respect to the issued and outstanding
Units of the Fund on both a non-diluted basis and a fully diluted basis. The Trustees may require declarations as
to the jurisdictions in which beneficial owners of Units and Special Voting Units are resident. In furtherance of
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the foregoing restrictions, the Trustees may also elect to not accept subscriptions for Units from or issue or
register a transfer of Units to any person unless the person provides a declaration that he or she is not a
Non-resident within the meaning of the Tax Act. If, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees determine, in
their sole discretion, that more than 49% of the Units are held by Non-residents, or that such a situation is
reasonably possible, the Trustees may send a notice to Non-resident Unitholders, chosen in inverse order to the
order of acquisition or registration or in any other manner the Trustees consider equitable and practicable,
requiring them to sell their Units or a portion thereof within a specified period. If the Unitholders receiving such
notice have not sold the specified number of Units or provided the Trustees with satisfactory evidence that they
are not Non-residents within such period, the Trustees may, on behalf of such persons, sell such Units and, in the
interim, the voting and distribution rights attached to such Units shall be suspended. Upon such a sale, the
affected holders shall cease to be holders of the Units and their rights shall be limited to receiving the net
proceeds of such sale. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees shall not take any action that shall affect the
rights of the Vendor Group to or in respect of any Units held by any member of the Vendor Group on closing or
any Units subsequently acquired on the exchange of Exchangeable LP Units or Subordinated LP Units held by
any member of the Vendor Group on closing, and, for greater certainty, any of such Units shall be deemed for
these purposes to have been acquired by such member prior to the acquisition of Units by any Unitholder.

Amendments to the Declaration of Trust

The Declaration of Trust may be amended or altered from time to time with the consent of the Voting
Unitholders by a Special Resolution.

The Trustees may, at their discretion and without the approval of the Voting Unitholders, make certain
amendments to the Declaration of Trust, including amendments: (i) for the purpose of ensuring continuing
compliance and conformity of the Declaration of Trust with applicable laws, regulations, requirements or
policies of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Trustees or the Fund, (ii) which, in the
opinion of counsel to the Trustees, provide additional protection or added benefits for Unitholders, (iii) to
remove any conflicts or inconsistencies in the Declaration of Trust or to make minor changes or corrections that,
in the opinion of the Trustees, are necessary or desirable and not prejudicial to the Unitholders, (iv) which, in
the opinion of the Trustees, are necessary or desirable as a result of changes in taxation laws or policies of any
governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Trustees or the Fund, or (v) for the purpose of ensuring that
the Fund continues to qualify as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act.

Notwithstanding the previous sentence, the Trustees may not amend the Declaration of Trust in a manner
that would result in (i) the Fund failing to qualify as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act or (ii) the Units being
treated as “foreign property” for the purposes of the Tax Act.

Term of the Fund

The Fund has been established for a term ending 21 years after the date of death of the last surviving issue
of Her Majesty, Queen Elizabeth II, alive on April 6, 2005. On a date selected by the Trustees that is not more
than two years prior to the expiry of the term of the Fund, the Trustees are obligated to commence to wind-up
the affairs of the Fund so that it will terminate on the expiration of the term. In addition, at any time prior to the
expiry of the term of the Fund, the Voting Unitholders may by a Special Resolution require the Trustees to
commence the termination, liquidation or wind-up of the affairs of the Fund.

The Declaration of Trust provides that, upon being required to commence the termination, liquidation or
winding-up of the affairs of the Fund, the Trustees will give notice thereof to the Voting Unitholders, which
notice shall designate the time or times at which Voting Unitholders may surrender their Voting Units for
cancellation and the date at which the register of Voting Units will be closed. After the date the register is
closed, the Trustees will proceed to wind up the affairs of the Fund as soon as may be reasonably practicable and
for such purpose will, subject to any direction to the contrary in respect of a termination authorized by a
resolution of the Voting Unitholders, sell and convert into money the XSCOT Units, XSCOT Notes and all
other assets comprising the Fund in one transaction or in a series of transactions at public or private sales and do
all other acts appropriate to liquidate the Fund. After paying, retiring, discharging or making provision for the
payment, retirement or discharge of all known liabilities and obligations of the Fund and providing for indemnity
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against any other outstanding liabilities and obligations, the Trustees will distribute the remaining part of the
proceeds of the sale of the XSCOT Units, XSCOT Notes and other assets comprising the Fund together with
any cash forming part of the assets of the Fund among the Unitholders in accordance with their pro rata
interests. If the Trustees are unable to sell all or any of XSCOT Units, XSCOT Notes or other assets which
comprise part of the Fund by the date set for termination, the Trustees may distribute the remaining Trust Units,
XSCOT Notes or other assets in specie directly to the Unitholders in accordance with their pro rata interests
subject to obtaining all required regulatory approvals.

Take-over Bids

The Declaration of Trust contains provisions to the effect that if a take-over bid is made for the Units and
90% or more of the Units on a fully diluted basis (other than any Units held at the date of the take-over bid by
or on behalf of the offeror or associates or affiliates of the offeror) are taken up and paid for by the offeror, the
offeror will be entitled to acquire the Units held by holders who did not accept the take-over bid, on the same
terms on which the offeror acquired Units pursuant to the take-over bid.

The Declaration of Trust and the Exchange Agreement include provisions to facilitate the exchange of
Exchangeable LP Units for Units so that a holder of Exchangeable LP Units may exercise its rights to exchange
all or a portion of such holdings for Units, including conditionally, in order to tender to a take-over bid.

Information and Reports

The Fund will furnish to Voting Unitholders, in accordance with applicable securities laws, such financial
statements of the Fund (including quarterly and annual financial statements) and other reports as are from time
to time required by applicable law, including prescribed forms needed for the completion of Unitholders’ tax
returns under the Tax Act and equivalent provincial legislation. Prior to each meeting of Voting Unitholders, the
Trustees will provide the Voting Unitholders (along with notice of such meeting) all such information as is
required by applicable law and the Declaration of Trust to be provided to Voting Unitholders.

The Trustees, the trustees of XSCOT and directors and senior officers of other subsidiaries of the Fund,
including the GP and XS Cargo LP, will be required to file insider reports and comply with insider trading
provisions under applicable Canadian securities legislation in respect of trades made by such persons in Units.

Book-Entry Only System

Registration of interests in and transfers of the Units will be made only through a book-based system
administered by CDS. On the date of closing of the offering, the Trustees will deliver to CDS one or more
certificates representing the total number of Units subscribed for under this offering. Units must be purchased,
transferred and surrendered for redemption through a participant in the CDS depository service (a “CDS
Participant”). All rights of Unitholders must be exercised through, and all payments or other property to which
the Unitholder is entitled will be made or delivered by, CDS or the CDS Participant through which the
Unitholder holds the Units. Upon a purchase of any Units, the Unitholder will receive only a customer
confirmation from the registered dealer that is a CDS Participant and from or through which the Units are
purchased. References in this prospectus to a Unitholder mean, unless the context otherwise requires, the owner
of the beneficial interest in those Units.

The ability of a beneficial owner of Units to pledge those Units or otherwise take action with respect to the
Unitholder’s interest in those Units (other than through a CDS Participant) may be limited due to the lack of a
physical certificate.

The Fund has the option to terminate registration of the Units through the CDS book-entry only system, in
which case certificates for the Units in fully registered form would be issued to beneficial owners of those Units
or their nominees.

Financial Year End

The fiscal year end of the Fund is December 31.
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Conflicts of Interest

The Declaration of Trust contains “conflict of interest” provisions that serve to protect Unitholders without
creating undue limitations on the Fund. The Declaration of Trust provides that if a Trustee or an officer of the
Fund is a party to a material contract or transaction or proposed material contract or transaction with the Fund
or any of its affiliates, or is a director or officer of, or has a material interest in, any person who is a party to a
material contract or transaction or proposed material contract or transaction with the Fund, such Trustee or
officer of the Fund or any of its affiliates, as the case may be, shall disclose in writing to the Trustees or request
to have entered in the minutes of meetings of the Trustees the nature and extent of such interest. Except in
certain specified circumstances, a Trustee who is a party to or so interested in such a material contract or
transaction will be precluded from voting on such a material contract or transaction but the presence of such
Trustee at the relevant meeting shall be counted towards any quorum requirement. These provisions in the
Declaration of Trust are intended to be equivalent to the provisions of the ABCA applicable to directors and
officers of a corporation.

Distribution Reinvestment Plan

Subsequent to the completion of the offering, the Fund intends to consider the implementation of a
distribution reinvestment plan (“DRIP”) pursuant to which a Unitholder may elect that distributions paid on
Units held within the DRIP be applied to acquire new Units. Implementation of a DRIP would be subject to the
approval of the Fund Trustees and to the Fund obtaining all necessary regulatory approvals, including the
approval of the TSX. The terms of the DRIP including the price at which Units may be purchased will be
determined by the Fund, subject to applicable regulatory requirements. The Fund may, in its discretion, limit the
number of Units available to Unitholders under the DRIP,

XS CARGO OPERATING TRUST

The XSCOT Declaration of Trust contains provisions substantially similar to those of the Declaration of
Trust. The following is a summary, which does not purport to be complete, of certain provisions of the XSCOT
Declaration of Trust insofar as they differ from those of the Declaration of Trust. Reference is made to the
XSCOT Declaration of Trust for the full text of its provisions.

General

XSCOT is an unincorporated trust established under the laws of the Province of Alberta pursuant to the
XSCOT Declaration of Trust. The activities of XSCOT are restricted to the conduct, directly or indirectly, of the
business of, and the ownership, operation and lease of assets and property in connection with, the operation of
the broadline closeout store business, including all activities ancillary or incidental thereto, and such other
businesses and activities as the trustees of XSCOT may determine or as may be contemplated by this prospectus,
and having investments and other direct or indirect rights in companies or other entities involved, directly or
indirectly, in the broadline closeout retail business, including all activities ancillary or incidental thereto, and
such other businesses and activities as the trustees of XSCOT may determine or as may be contemplated by this
prospectus. The fiscal year end of XSCOT will be December 31.

Trustees of XSCOT

XSCOT will have a minimum of three trustees and a maximum of seven trustees. A majority of the trustees
of XSCOT must be residents of Canada within the meaning of the Tax Act. The trustees of XSCOT are to
supervise the activities and manage the affairs of XSCOT. The trustees of XSCOT will be the persons who serve
as the Trustees (initially, Mr. Legg, Mr. Margolus and Mr. Clanachan). No person other than the Fund, as the
holder of all of the outstanding XSCOT Units, has the right to appoint any trustees of XSCOT,

The XSCOT Declaration of Trust provides that, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, the trustees of
XSCOT will have full, absolute and exclusive power, control and authority over the assets of XSCOT and over
the affairs of XSCOT to the same extent as if the trustees of XSCOT were the sole and absolute beneficial
owners of the assets of XSCOT, and may, in respect of such assets, exercise any and all rights, powers and
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privileges that could be exercised by a legal and beneficial owner thereof. Subject to such terms and conditions,
the trustees of XSCOT are responsible for, among other things: (i) acting for, voting on behalf of and
representing XSCOT as a holder of LP Units and a holder of GP Common Shares, (ii) maintaining records and
providing reports to the XSCOT Unitholders, (iii) supervising the activities and managing the investments
and affairs of XSCOT, and (iv) effecting payments of distributable cash from XSCOT to the XSCOT
Unitholders and payments of interest and principal on the XSCOT Notes.

No additional remuneration is to be paid to the Trustees for also serving as trustees of XSCOT.

Cash Distributions

XSCOT intends to make monthly cash distributions of its distributable cash to the extent determined
prudent by the trustees of XSCOT. The amount of cash to be distributed monthly per Trust Unit to the XSCOT
Unitholders will be equal to a pro rata share of distributions on or in respect of Ordinary LP Units owned by
XSCOT and all other amounts, if any, from any other investments from time to time held by XSCOT received in
such period, less amounts which are paid, payable, incurred or provided for in such period in connection with:

(a) administrative expenses and other obligations of XSCOT;
(b) any interest expense (including interest payable in respect of the XSCOT Notes) incurred by XSCOT;

(c) principal repayments in respect of the XSCOT Notes considered advisable by the trustees of XSCOT
and any other debt obligations of XSCOT,

(d) any cash redemptions or repurchases of the XSCOT Units or the XSCOT Notes; and

(e) any amount that the trustees of XSCOT may reasonably consider to be necessary to provide for the
payment of any costs or expenses, including any tax liability of XSCOT, that have been or are
reasonably expected to be incurred in the activities and operations of XSCOT (to the extent that such
costs or expenses have not otherwise been taken into account in the calculation of the available
distributable cash of XSCOT).

Such distributions will be payable to holders of record of XSCOT Units on the last business day of each
month and will be paid within 15 days following each month end. The cash distributions payable by XSCOT are
intended to be received by the Fund before its related cash distribution to Unitholders.

The distribution declared by the trustees of XSCOT in respect of the month ending December 31 in each
year will include such amount in respect of the taxable income and net realized capital gains, if any, of XSCOT
for such year as is necessary to ensure that XSCOT will not be liable for ordinary income taxes under the Tax Act
in such year.

Any income of XSCOT that is unavailable for cash distribution will, to the extent necessary to ensure that
XSCOT does not have any income tax liability under Part I of the Tax Act, be distributed to the XSCOT
Unitholders in the form of additional XSCOT Units. The value of each Trust Unit so issued will be equal to the
redemption price thereof. The XSCOT Declaration of Trust provides that immediately after any pro rata
distribution of XSCOT Units in satisfaction of any non-cash distribution, the number of outstanding XSCOT
Units will be consolidated such that each holder of XSCOT Units will hold after consolidation the same number
of XSCOT Units as the holder held before the non-cash distribution.

Unit Certificates

As XSCOT Units are not intended to be issued or held by any person other than the Fund, registration of
interests in, and transfers of, the XSCOT Units will not be made through the book-entry only system. Rather,
holders of XSCOT Units will be entitled to receive certificates therefor.
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The XSCOT Notes

The following is a summary of the material attributes and characteristics of the XSCOT Notes that will be
issuable by XSCOT under the Note Indenture, which summary does not purport to be complete. Reference is
made to the Note Indenture for a complete description of the XSCOT Notes and the full text of its provisions.
See “Material Contracts”.

Two series of XSCOT Notes will initially be authorized for issuance under the Note Indenture. On closing
of the offering, only Series 1 XSCOT Notes will be issued and outstanding, all of which will be held by the Fund.
Series 2 XSCOT Notes will be reserved by XSCOT to be issued exclusively as full or partial payment of the
redemption price of Series 1 XSCOT Notes. XSCOT Notes will be issuable in Canadian currency. On closing,
XSCOT will issue approximately $54,954,000 principal amount of Series 1 XSCOT Notes to the Fund.

Interest and Maturity

The Series 1 XSCOT Notes to be issued at closing will be payable on the earlier of the date on which a
demand for payment by the holder is made and the maturity date, being the 15th anniversary of the date of
issuance, and will bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum, payable on the 15th day of each calendar month that
such Series 1 XSCOT Notes are outstanding. Series 2 XSCOT Notes are issuable solely in connection with the
redemption of Series 1 XSCOT Notes, mature on the same date as the Series 1 XSCOT Notes redeemed in
connection with their issuance, and bear interest at a market rate to be determined by XSCOT’s trustees at the
time of issuance thereof, payable on the 15th day of each calendar month that such Series 2 XSCOT Note is
outstanding.

Payment upon Maturity

On maturity, XSCOT will repay the XSCOT Notes by paying to the trustee under the Note Indenture in
cash an amount equal to the principal amount of the outstanding XSCOT Notes that have then matured,
together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon.

Redemption

The XSCOT Notes will be redeemable in whole or in part (at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, payable in cash or, in the case of a redemption of Series 1
XSCOT Notes, in Series 2 XSCOT Notes) at the option of XSCOT prior to maturity.

Subordination

Payment of the principal amount and interest on the XSCOT Notes will be subordinated in right of
payment to the prior payment in full of the principal of and accrued and unpaid interest on, and all other
amounts owing in respect of, all senior indebtedness which will be defined as all indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations of XSCOT which, by the terms of the instrument creating or evidencing the same, will be expressed
to rank in right of payment in priority to the indebtedness evidenced by the XSCOT Notes issued under the
Note Indenture. -

The Note Indenture provides that upon any distribution of the assets of XSCOT in the event of any
dissolution, liquidation, reorganization or other similar proceedings relative to XSCOT, the holders of all such
senior indebtedness will be entitled to receive payment in full before the holders of the XSCOT Notes are
entitled to receive any payment.

Default

The Note Indenture provides that any of the following shall constitute an event of default:

(a) default in payment of the principal of the XSCOT Notes when the same becomes due and the
continuation of such default for a period of ten business days;

70



(b) default in payment of any interest due on any XSCOT Notes and continuation of such default for a
period of fifteen business days; '

(c) default in the observance or performance of any other covenant or condition of the Note Indenture
and continuance of such default for a period of thirty days after notice in writing has been given to
XSCOT’s trustees specifying such default and requiring XSCOT to rectify the same; and

(d) certain events of dissolution, liquidation, reorganization or other similar proceedings relative to
XSCOT.

L4

The provisions governing an event of default under the Note Indenture and remedies available thereunder
do not provide protection to the holders of XSCOT Notes that would be comparable to the provisions generally
found in debt securities issued to the public.

XS CARGO LP
General »

XS Cargo LP is a limited partnership formed under the laws of Alberta. The business of XS Cargo LP is to
develop, acquire, make investments in and conduct the business and ownership, operation and lease of assets
and property in connection with, the broadline closeout retail business in Canada, together with all activities
ancillary or incidental thereto and such other businesses and activities as the board of directors of the GP may
determine or as may be contemplated by this prospectus. See “Business of the Company”. The following is a
summary of the material attributes and characteristics of the LP Units and certain provisions of the Limited
Partnership Agreement, which summary is not intended to be complete. Reference is made to the Limited
Partnership Agreement and the full text of its provisions for a complete description of the LP Units. See

“Material Contracts”.

General Partner

The managing general partner of XS Cargo LP is the GP. As general partner of XS Cargo LF, the GP will be
issued 120 GP Units for nominal consideration immediately following the closing of the offering. The GP Units
entitle the holder thereof to one vote for each whole unit held at all meetings of holders of partnership units and
to an allocation of 0.001% of the income or loss of XS Cargo LP for each fiscal year. As general partner and
holder of the GP Units, the GP has the authority to manage the business and affairs of XS Cargo LP and has

unlimited liability for the obligations of XS Cargo LP. See “XS Cargo GP Inc.”.

LP Units

XS Cargo LP will be entitled to issue various classes of partnership interests, for such consideration and on
such terms and conditions as may be determined by the GP. Immediately following the closing of the offering,
XS Cargo LP will have issued and outstanding 6,106,000 Ordinary LP Units (which will be held by XSCOT),
3,471,970 Exchangeable LP Units (which will be held by the Vendor) and 2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units
(which will be held by the Vendor). XS Cargo LP will also have issued and outstanding 120 GP Units (which will
be held by the GP). The Ordinary LP Units will represent a 51% interest in XS Cargo LP and the Exchangeable
LP Units and the Subordinated LP Units will collectively represent a 49% interest in XS Cargo LP.

The Ordinary LP Units, the Exchangeable LP Uhits and the Subordinated LP Units will entitle the holder
thereof to one vote for each whole unit held at all meetings of holders of the Units and will have economic rights
that are equivalent in all material respects, except that (i) Exchangeable LP Units will be exchangeable, directly
or indirectly, on a one-for-one basis (subject to customary anti-dilution protections) for Units at the option of
the holder at any time, (ii) distributions on the Subordinated LP Units will be subject to the subordination
arrangements described below, and (iii) the Subordinated LP Units will automatically convert into Exchangeable
LP Units upon the satisfaction of certain conditions and in certain circumstances. Additionally, Exchangeable
LP Units and Subordinated LP Units will be accompanied by Special Voting Units that will entitle the holder to
receive notice of, attend and to vote at all meetings of Voting Unitholders. See “Retained Interest and Exchange
Rights — Exchange Rights” and «“Retained Interest and Exchange Rights — Subordination”. The Exchangeable

71



LP Units and Subordinated LP Units will each be issuable as two separate classes. The classes will have identical
rights except that one will be limited partner (limited liability) Units and the other will be general partner
(unlimited liability) Units. The Vendor will be entitled to make a one time election if it wishes to hold all or a
part of its interest as unlimited liability rather than limited liability Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated
LP Units.

Distributions on the LP Units will be made in the following priority:

(a) holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units will be entitled to receive monthly cash .
distributions such that each holder of Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units will receive a
distribution of $0.09375 per unit for such month or, if there is insufficient distributable cash to make
distributions in such amount, such lesser amount as is available, on a proportionate basis,

(b) at the end of each fiscal quarter of XS Cargo LP, including the fiscal quarter ending on the fiscal year
end, distributable cash will be distributed in the following order of priority:

(i) first, in payment of the monthly cash distribution to the holders of Ordinary LP Units and
Exchangeable LP Units as described above, for the month then ended;

(ii) second, proportionately to the holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units, to the
extent that monthly per unit distributions in respect of the 12 month period then ended were not
made or were made in amounts less than $0.09375 per unit, the amount of any deficiency;

(iii) third, to holders of Subordinated LP Units in a per unit amount of $0.28125 or, if there is
insufficient available cash to make distributions in such amount, such lesser amount as is
distributable, on a proportionate basis;

(iv) fourth, proportionately to the holders of Subordinated LP Units, to the extent that per unit
distributions in respect of any fiscal quarter(s) during the 12 month period then ended were not
made or were made in amounts less than $0.28125 per Subordinated LP Unit, the amount of such
deficiency; and

(v) fifth, to the extent of any excess, proportionately to the holders of Ordinary LP Units,
Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units.

Distributions

XS Cargo LP will adopt a policy to distribute its distributable cash to the extent determined prudent by the
board of directors of the GP. Distributions will be made on the Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable
LP Units within 15 days of the end of each month and on the Subordinated LP Units within 15 days of the end of
each fiscal quarter and are intended to be received by XSCOT before its related distributions to the Fund.
Distributions will be payable to the holders of LP Units of record on the last day of the period in respect of
which the distribution is to be paid. XS Cargo LP may, in addition, make a distribution at any other time.

Distributable cash will represent, in general, all of XS Cargo LP’s EBITDA, after:

(a) satisfaction of its debt service obligations (principal and interest) under credit facilities or other
agreements with third parties, including amounts payable under the Credit Facility;

(b) paying awards under the LTIP or other incentives to Company Management and other personnel;

(¢) retaining reasonable working capital reserves, maintenance capital expenditure reserves, renewal
reserves, upgrade and renovation reserves or other reserves, including reserves to stabilize distributions
to the partners, as may be considered appropriate by the GP; and

(d) expenditures in excess of reserves.

Capital and other expenses, including amounts required to enable XS Cargo LP to pay equal monthly
distributions based on anticipated future distributable cash, may be financed with drawings under one or more
credit facilities that may be established by XS Cargo LP.
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Allocation of Net Income and Losses

The income or loss of XS Cargo LP for each fiscal year will be allocated to the GP and to the remaining
partners as t0 0.001% and 99.999%, respectively. The income for tax purposes of XS Cargo LP for a particular
i h partner other than the GP by multiplying the total income allocated to such

partner.

If, with respect to a given fiscal year, no cash distribution is made by XS Cargo LP to its partners, or
XS Cargo LP has a loss for tax purposes, one-twelfth of the income or loss, as the case may be, for tax purposes
of XS Cargo LP for that fiscal year will be allocated to the GP and the remaining partners at the end of each
month ending in that fiscal year, as to 0.001% and 99.999%, respectively, and to each remaining partner in the
proportion that the number of LP Units held at each of those dates by that partner is of the total number of
LP Units issued and outstanding at each of those dates.

Income and loss of XS Cargo LP for accounting purposes is allocated to each partner in the same
proportion as income or loss is allocated for tax purposes. -

The fiscal year end of XS Cargo LP will be December 31.

Reimbursement of the GP

XS Cargo LP will reimburse the GP for all direct costs and expenses incurred in the performance of its
duties under the Limited Partnership Agreement.

Limited Liability

Transfer of Partnership Units

LP Units will not be transferable except in compliance with the Securityholders Agreement to the Fund or
to members of the Vendor Group. Further, LP Units may not be transferred to a person who is not resident in
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(a) no amendment will be permitted to be made to the Limited Partnership Agreement altering the ability
of the limited partners to remove the GP involuntarily, changing the liability of any limited partner,
allowing any limited partner to exercise control over the business of XS Cargo LP, changing the right of
a partner to vote at any meeting, adversely affecting the rights, privileges or conditions attaching to any
of the LP Units or GP Units, reducing the percentage of income allocable to limited partners to below
99.999% or changing XS Cargo LP from a limited partnership to a general partnership, in each case,
without the unanimous approval of the partners;

(b) no amendment can be made to the Limited Partnership Agreement that would adversely affect the
rights and obligations of any particular limited partner without similarly affecting the rights and
obligations of all other limited partners without the unanimous approval of the partners; and

(c) no amendment that would adversely affect the rights and obligations of the GP, as general partner, will
be permitted to be made without its consent.

The foregoing approval requirements are subject to additional restrictions on, or conditions to the approval
of, amendments to the Limited Partnership Agreement pursuant to the Declaration of Trust and the
Securityholders Agreement. In particular, the approval or authorization by the GP or XS Cargo LP of any action
that would result in the Units constituting foreign property for the purposes of the Tax Act requires the prior
approval of Voting Unitholders by a Special Resolution.

The GP may call meetings of partners and will be required to convene a meeting on receipt of a request in
writing of the holder(s) of not less than 10% of the outstanding partnership units. Each partner is entitled to one
vote for each partnership unit held. A quorum of a meeting of partners consists of one or more partners present
in person or by proxy.

XS CARGO GP INC.
General

The GP is a corporation established under the ABCA to act as the general partner of XS Cargo LP.

Capital of the GP

The authorized share capital of the GP consists of an unlimited number of GP Common Shares. Following
the closing of the offering, the Fund will indirectly through XSCOT, and the Vendor will directly, own 51% and
49%, respectively, of the outstanding GP Common Shares. XSCOT will acquire its GP Common Shares from
the GP for nominal consideration. Each GP Common Share will entitle the holder thereof to receive notice of
and to attend all meetings of shareholders of the GP and to one vote per share at such meetings (other than
meetings of another class of shares of the GP). The GP Common Shares will entitle the holders thereof to
receive in any year dividends as and when declared by the board of directors on the GP Common Shares. In the
event of a liquidation of the GP, holders of the GP Common Shares, after payment of or other proper provision
for all of the liabilities of the GP, will be entitled to share rateably in all remaining assets of the GP. The articles
and by laws of the GP will contain standard restrictions, which restrict all shareholders from transferring their
GP Common Shares without the consent of the directors or shareholders of the GP or as permitted by the
Securityholders Agreement. The Securityholders Agreement will provide that the GP Common Shares may not
be transferred to any Person unless a corresponding percentage of the LP Units held by the transferor, is also
transferred to the same Person.

Functions and Powers of the GP

The GP will have the authority to manage the business and affairs of XS Cargo LP, to make all decisions
regarding the business of XS Cargo LP and to bind XS Cargo LP in respect of any such decision. The GP will be
required to exercise its powers and discharge its duties honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of
X§ Cargo LP and to exercise the care, diligence and skill of a reasonably prudent person in comparable
circumstances.
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The authority and power to be vested in the GP to manage the business and affairs of XS Cargo LP will
include all authority necessary or incidental to carry out the objects, purposes and business of XS Cargo LP,
including the ability to engage agents to assist the GP to carry out its management obligations and administrative
functions in respect of XS Cargo LP and its business.

Restrictions on Authority of the GP

The authority of the GP will be limited in certain respects under the Limited Partnership Agreement. The
GP is prohibited, without the prior approval of the other partners given by a Partnership Special Resolution,
from dissolving XS Cargo LP or selling, exchanging or otherwise disposing of all or substantially all of the assets
of XS Cargo LP (otherwise than in conjunction with an internal reorganization that has been approved by
the Fund).

Withdrawal or Removal of the GP

The GP will be permitted to resign as general partner on not less than 180 days’ prior written notice to the
partners, provided that the GP may not resign if the effect thereof would be to dissolve XS Cargo LP. The GP
may be removed as general partner of XS Cargo LP, without its consent, if: (i) the shareholders or directors of
the GP pass a resolution in connection with the bankruptcy, dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the GP, or
the GP commits certain other acts of bankruptcy or ceases to be a subsisting corporation, provided that certain
other conditions are satisfied, including a requirement that a successor general partner agrees to act as general
partner under the Limited Partnership Agreement, or (ii) a Partnership Special Resolution has been passed and
a successor general partner has agreed to act as general partner under the Limited Partnership Agreement.

FUNDING, ACQUISITION AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Prior to the closing of the offering, each of XSCOT, the GP and XS Cargo LP will be formed with minimal
capital. XSCOT will be wholly owned by the Fund and will be a limited partner of XS Cargo LP. The GP will
initially be wholly owned by XSCOT.

In connection with the closing of the offering, the following transactions will take place:

(a) The Fund will use the gross proceeds of the offering of $61,060,000 to capitalize XSCOT by subscribing
for XSCOT Notes and XSCOT Units.

(b) XSCOT will use the proceeds from the issuance of the XSCOT Notes and the XSCOT Units to
subscribe for 6,106,000 Ordinary LP Units for $61,060,000 and for 6,106,000 GP Common Shares to be
issued for nominal consideration.

(c) XS Cargo LP will use the proceeds of $61,060,000 from the issuance of Ordinary LP Units and will
draw down approximately $15 million under the Credit Facility to (i) pay, reimburse or contribute
towards transaction costs and pay the expenses of the offering and the Underwriters’ fee (such fees and
expenses estimated to be $4,663,600), and (ii) to acquire the Purchased Assets from the Vendor on a
partially tax deferred basis for the Vendor. As consideration for the acquisition of the Purchased
Assets, the Company will pay to the Vendor $71,396,400 in cash, subject to closing adjustments, and
will issue to the Vendor 3,471,970 Exchangeable LP Units, 2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units and
5,866,450 GP Common Shares.

(d) Immediately after the offering, the Fund will hold (through its interest in XSCOT) all of the issued
Ordinary LP Units, representing a 51% equity interest in XS Cargo LP. The Vendor will hold all of the
issued Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units, representing a 49% equity interest in
XS Cargo LP. The Fund (through its interest in XSCOT) and the Vendor will also hold corresponding
proportionate interests in the GP, the general partner of XS Cargo LP.
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A simplified description of the Fund on the completion of the offering is set out below:

Public
Unitholders

XS Cargo
Income Fund
(the “Fund”)

100% (XSCOT Units
and XSCOT Notes)

XS Cargo
Operating Trust
(*XSCOT”)

Vendor®

XS Cargo LP and
XS Cargo GP Inc.
(the “Company”)®

Notes: .
(1) Ordinary LP Units and GP Common Shares, representing 51% of the LP Units and GP Common Shares.

(2) Exchangeable LP Units, Subordinated LP Units and GP Common Shares representing, collectively, 49% of the LP Units and
GP Common Shares.

- (3) The GP will hold all of the outstanding GP Units.

(4) The Vendor is owned by four of the existing members of Company Management including the Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer, Michael McKenna (67.5%).

PRINCIPAL UNITHOLDERS

The following table shows the name and information about the securities of the Fund directly or indirectly
beneficially owned or controlled by each person or company who, as at the Closing Date, will own of record, or
who, to the knowledge of the Fund, will own beneficially, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction
over more than 10% of any class or series of voting securities of the Fund. The information set forth in the
following table is presented on a pro forma basis reflecting the exchange of LP Units owned or controlled by the
Vendor for Units of the Fund.

Number of Units
Name of the Fund Owned®  Type of Ownership  Percentage Owned
V=3 076 (o } GO 5,866,450 Direct 49%

Note:

(1) The Vendor will own 3,471,970 Exchangeable LP Units and 2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units that will be exchangeable for Units on a
one-for-one basis. See “Retained Interest and Exchange Rights”. The Vendor is controlled (67.5%) by the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, Michael McKenna.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The gross proceeds of $61,060,000 of the offering will be used by the Fund to subscribe for XSCOT Units
and XSCOT Notes. XSCOT will use the proceeds from the issuance of the XSCOT Units and XSCOT Notes to
the Fund to subscribe for 6,106,000 Ordinary LP Units for $61,060,000 and 5 1% of the GP Common Shares for
nominal consideration. XS Cargo LP will use the proceeds from the subscription for Ordinary LP Units and
GP Common Shares and the draw down of funds under the Credit Facility to pay the expenses of the offering
and the Underwriters’ fee (such fees and expenses estimated at $4,663,600) and as partial consideration for the
acquisition of the Purchased Assets. The remaining consideration for the acquisition of the Purchased Assets
will be satisfied by the issuance of the Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units. See “Funding,
Acquisition and Related Transactions”.

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION OF THE FUND

The following table sets out the capitalization of the Fund as at April 6, 2005, both before and after giving
effect to the offering.
Pro Forma as at

April 6, 2005 After
Giving Effect to the

Design.ation Authorized At April 6,2005  Offering and the Acquisition
Bank Indebtedness® .. ...... .. e N/A $nil $15,000,000
Units@®) e e e Unlimited $10 $56,396,410
(1 Unit) (6,106,000 units)

Special Voting Units ............cooieneninnn. Unlimited — $ nil

(5,866,450 Units)
Exchangeable LP Units ................c..ou0n Unlimited — $34,719,700

(3,471,970 Units)
Subordinated LP Units . .......ccoivvevnenannes Unlimited —_ $23,944,800

(2,394,480 Units)
Notes:

(1) XS Cargo LP expects to draw down approximately $15,000,000 under the Credit Facility on closing of the offering. See “Funding,
Acquisition and Related Transactions” and “Credit Facility”.

(2) The Fund was initially settled on April 6, 2005 with $10.

(3) After completion of the offering, the Vendor will own a total of 3,471,970 Exchangeable LP Units and 2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units.
The Exchangeable LP Units are exchangeable indirectly at any time after a period of 180 days following the closing of the offering for
Units on a one-for-one basis as described under “Retained Interest and Exchange Rights — Exchange Rights” and the Subordinated
LP Units will automatically convert to Exchangeable LP Units on a one-for-one basis as described. under “Retained Interest and
Exchange Rights”.

(4) Net of the offering costs and Underwriters’ fee estimated to be $4,663,600.

CREDIT FACILITY

On or before the closing of the offering, XS Cargo LP intends to enter into the Credit Facility pursuant to a
commitment letter with a Canadian chartered bank providing for a $7.5 million operating facility and a
$15 million non-revolving term loan facility. Security for the Credit Facility will include a first charge on all
present and after acquired personal property of the Company, an assignment of inventory and a guarantee by
the Fund. Interest on the operating facility will be payable at the lender’s Canadian prime rate or U.S. base rate
plus 0% to 0.25%, determined based on the Company’s ratio of senior debt to EBITDA. Interest on the term
loan facility will be payable at the lender’s Canadian prime rate plus 0.25% to 0.75% or the banker’s acceptance
rate plus 1.75% to 2.25%, depending on the Company’s senior debt to EBITDA ratio. The Credit Facility will
include limits on incurring additional indebtedness or granting encumbrances without the consent of the lender
and will be subject to the maintenance of senior debt to EBITDA, current assets to current liabilities and fixed
charge coverage ratios and minimum equity. The Credit Facility may in certain circumstances restrict the ability
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of XS Cargo LP to pay distributions to the holders of LP Units and of the Fund to pay distributions to
Unitholders if the payment would result in a default under the Credit Facility. It is expected that approximately
$15 million will be drawn down under the Credit Facility on closing of the offering. See “Funding, Acquisition
and Related Transactions”.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Pursuant to an agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) dated May 6, 2005, among the Fund, XSCOT,
the Company, the Vendor and CIBC World Markets Inc., RBC Dominion Securities Inc., National Bank
Financial Inc., Canaccord Capital Corporation and Sprott Securities Inc. (the “Underwriters”), the Fund has
agreed to sell and the Underwriters have agreed to purchase on May 17, 2005, or on such later date as may be
agreed upon, an aggregate of 6,106,000 Units at a purchase price of $10 per Unit, for an aggregate consideration
of $61,060,000 Underwriters against delivery of the Units. The Underwriters will be paid an aggregate fee of
$3,663,600 ($0.60 per Unit). See “Use of Proceeds”.

The obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement may be terminated at their
discretion on the basis of their assessment of the state of the financial markets and may also be terminated in
certain stated circumstances and upon the occurrence of certain stated events. The Underwriters are, however,
obligated to take up and pay for all of the Units that they have agreed to purchase if any of the Units are
purchased under the Underwriting Agreement.

The Fund and the Vendor have agreed with the Underwriters that, other than pursuant to the exercise of
the Exchange Rights with respect to the Exchangeable LLP Units and, in the case of the Vendor, transfers to
other members of the Vendor Group, the Fund, and the Vendor will not, for the period ending 180 days after the
closing of the offering, issue, offer, or sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any
Units or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for Units, or publicly disclose the
intention to make any such issue, offer, sale or disposition, without the prior consent of CIBC World
Markets Inc., which consent may not be unreasonably withheld.

Pursuant to policy statements of the Ontario Securities Commission and the Autorité des marchés
financiers du Québec, the Underwriters may not, throughout the period of distribution under this prospectus,
bid for or purchase Units. The foregoing restriction is subject to certain exceptions, as long as the bid or
purchase is not engaged in for the purpose of creating actual or apparent active trading in or raising the price of
such securities. These exceptions include a bid or purchase permitted under the by laws and rules of the TSX
relating to market stabilization and passive market making activities and a bid or purchase made for and on
behalf of a customer where the order was not solicited during the period of distribution. Subject to the foregoing
and applicable laws, the Underwriters may, in connection with the offering, over allot or effect transactions
which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Units at levels other than those which otherwise might prevail
on the open market. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

The Units have not been and will not be registered under the 1933 Act or any state securities laws and may
not be offered or sold in the United States or to U.S. persons except in transactions exempt from the registration
requirements of the 1933 Act and applicable state securities laws. Accordingly, the Underwriting Agreement
provides that the Units will only be offered or sold within the United States to certain qualified institutional
buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the 1933 Act and thereafter may only be re-offered or sold in the
United States or to a U.S. person pursuant to the registration requirements of the 1933 Act and applicable state
securities laws or an exemption therefrom. Moreover, the Underwriting Agreement provides that the
Underwriters will offer and sell the Units outside the United States only in accordance with Regulation S under
the 1933 Act. In addition, until 40 days after the Closing Date, an offer or sale of the Units within the
United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration
requirements of the 1933 Act if such offer or sale is made other than in accordance with Rule 144A under the
1933 Act.

There is currently no market through which the Units may be sold and purchasers may not be able to resell
securities purchased under the prospectus. Accordingly, the terms of the offering, including the offering price of
the Units, were established by negotiation between the Fund, the Vendor and the Underwriters. The TSX has
conditionally approved the listing of the Units. Listing is subject to the Fund fulfilling all of the requirements of
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the TSX on or before August 3, 2005, including the distribution of Units to a minimum number of public
Unitholders.

Closing of the offering is expected to take place on May 17, 2005 or on any other date that may be agreed
upon by the Fund and Underwriters, but no later than May 31, 2005. Subscriptions for Units will be received
subject to rejection or allotment, in whole or in part, and the right is reserved to close the subscription books at
any time without notice. :

Each of the Fund, XSCOT, the Company, and the Vendor has agreed to indemnify the Underwriters and
their directors, officers, employees and agents against certain liabilities, including, without restriction, civil
liabilities under Canadian provincial securities legislation, and to contribute to any payments the Underwriters’
may be required to make in respect thereof.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE FUND AND AN UNDERWRITER

CIBC World Markets Inc. is a subsidiary of a Canadian chartered bank (the “Bank’) that has provided a
commitment for the Credit Facility and will be a lender to the Company on closing of the offering. Accordingly,
the Fund may be considered a “connected issuer” of CIBC World Markets Inc. under applicable Canadian
securities legislation. The net proceeds of the offering will be used to fund a portion of the purchase price of
the Acquisition.

The decision to distribute the Units offered hereby and the determination of the terms of the offering were
made through negotiations between the Fund, the Vendor and the Underwriters. The Bank was not involved in
such decision or determination, but has been advised of the issuance and terms thereof. As a consequence of the
offering, CIBC World Markets Inc. will receive its share of the underwriting fee payable to the Underwriters.

DETAILS OF THE OFFERING

The offering consists of 6,106,000 Units. See “XS Cargo Income Fund” for a description of the attributes of
the Units.

Book Entry Form and Depository Service

Except as otherwise provided below, the Units will be issued in “book-entry only” form and must be
purchased or transferred through CDS Participants in the depository service of CDS, which include securities
brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies. At the Closing Date, the Fund will cause a global certificate or
certificates representing the Units to be delivered to, and registered in the name of, CDS or its nominee. Except
as described below, no Unitholder will be entitled to a certificate or other instrument from the Fund or CDS
evidencing that Unitholder’s ownership thereof, and no Unitholders will be shown on the records maintained by
CDS except through a book entry account of a CDS Participant acting on behalf of such Unitholder. Each
Unitholder will receive a customer confirmation of purchase from-the registered dealer from which the Unit is
purchased in accordance with the practices and procedures of that registered dealer. The practices of registered
dealers may vary, but generally customer confirmations are issued promptly after execution of a customer order.
CDS will be responsible for establishing and maintaining book entry accounts for its CDS Participants having
interests in the Units.

If (i) the Fund determines that CDS is no longer willing or able to discharge properly its responsibilities as
depository with respect to the Units and the Fund is unable to locate a qualified successor, or (ii) the Fund at its
option elects, or is required by law, to terminate the book entry system, or (iii) Unitholders determine that the
continuation of the book entry system is no longer in the best interests of the Unitholders, then Units will be
issued in fully registered form to Unitholders or their nominees.

Transfer of Units

Transfers of ownership in the Units will be effected only through records maintained by CDS or its nominee
for such Units with respect to interests of CDS Participants, and on the records of CDS Participants with respect
to interests of persons other than CDS Participants. Unitholders who are not CDS Participants, but who desire
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to purchase, sell or otherwise transfer ownership of or other interest in the Units, may do so only through
CDS Participants.

The ability of a Unitholder to pledge a Unit or otherwise take action with respect to such Unitholder’s
interest in a Unit (other than through a CDS Participant) may be limited due to the lack of a physical certificate.
Payments of Distributions

Payments of distributions on each Unit will be made by the Fund to CDS or its nominee, as the case may be,
as the registered holder of the Units and the Fund understands that CDS or its nominee will forward such
payments, as the case may be, to CDS Participants. As long as CDS or its nominee is the registered owner of the
Units, CDS or its nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner of the Units for the purposes of
receiving payments on the Units. The responsibility and liability of the Fund in respect of the Units is limited to
making payment of any distribution in respect of the Units to CDS or its nominee.

RISK FACTORS

Investing in the Units involves risks. In addition to the other information contained in this prospectus,
prospective investors should carefully consider the risk factors set out below in making an investment decision
with respect to the Fund and the Units. The following information is a summary only of certain risk factors and
is qualified in its entirety by reference to, and must be read in conjunction with, the detailed information
appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones facing the Fund and
the Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to the Fund or the Company, or that the
Fund or the Company currently considers immaterial, may also impair the operations of the Fund or the
Company. If any such risks actually occur, the business, financial condition, or liquidity and results of operations
of the Company, and the ability of the Fund to make distributions on the Units, could be materially
adversely affected.

Risks Relating to the Company and its Business
Maintaining Profitability and Managing Growth

There can be no assurance that the Company’s business and growth strategy will enable it to sustain
profitability and enable the Fund to maintain distributions to Unitholders at current levels in future periods. The
Company’s future operating results will depend on a number of factors, including:

¢ the Company’s ability to:

* successfully execute the strategic initiatives outlined under “Business of XS Cargo — Growth
Strategy”;

* remain a low-cost retailer;

* maintain or realize increased sales and profitability;

* successfully identify and respond to changes in trends and consumer tastes;

* maintain cost-effective delivery of its merchandise to its distribution center and to its stores;

* hire, train, motivate, manage and retain qualified retail store management and personnel; and

* continuously improve its service to achieve new and enhanced customer benefits and better quality;
* level of competition in the retailing industry in the markets in which the Company operates;
* effectiveness of the Company’s marketing programs; and
* general economic conditions and consumer confidence.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully implement its strategic plan or that
such plan will enable the Company to maintain or increase historical sales, profitability or growth rates. Failure
to successfully execute any material part of the Company’s strategic plan could have a material adverse effect on
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the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations. There can be no assurance that
the Company will be able to effectively manage its growth, and any failure to do so could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations,

Expansion Through New Store Openings

As part of the Company’s growth strategy, it intends to continue to increase the total number of stores in
existing and new markets. To do so successfully, new stores must operate with similar profitability as existing
stores. The Company increased its store base by three stores in fiscal 2002, four stores in 2003 and two stores in
2004. The Company has increased its stores by an additional four stores in fiscal 2005 and has signed leases to
open an additional three stores by the end of June 2005 for a total of 24 stores. There can be no assurance that
the Company will be able to achieve its expansion goals or that it will be able to operate its new stores profitably.
Furthermore, there can be no assurance that any new store will achieve similar operating results to those of
existing stores or that new stores opened in markets in which the Company operates will not have a material
adverse effect on the revenues and profitability of existing stores. In addition, new markets may have different
competitive conditions, consumer trends and discretionary spending patterns than existing markets, which may
cause the Company’s new stores in these markets to be less successful than stores in existing markets. The
success of the Company’s planned expansion will be dependent upon numerous factors, many of which are
beyond the Company’s control, including the following:

* the Company’s ability to:

* adequately identify and analyze suitable new markets and individual store sites within existing and
those new markets;

* adapt existing distribution and other operational and management systems to an expanded network
of stores;

* attract customers and generate sales to operate new stores with sufficient profitability;
» negotiate favourable lease terms with landlords; and

* obtain governmental and other third-party consents, permits and licenses needed to operate its
stores;

* competition for suitable store sites;

* availability of human resources for staffing of new stores and the Company’s ability to hire, train,
motivate, manage and retain qualified retail store management and personnel; and

* availability of adequate management and financial resources to properly manage an increased number of
stores.

Supply

By its nature, closeout merchandise is available directly from manufacturers, distributors and retailers or
indirectly through brokers and trade shows. Although there is generally continuity in the channels and sources of
supply, specific items are available generally on a non-recurring basis. As a result, the Company does not have
long-term contracts with its vendors for access to quantities or pricing of products, but makes individual
purchase decisions, which are often for large quantities. Although the Company has many sources of
merchandise and currently does not foresee any shortages of closeout merchandise in the future, there can be no
assurance that its existing sources of supply will continue to make closeout merchandise available to the
Company or that merchandise made available will be in quantities, at prices or on other terms acceptable to the
Company or that the Company’s buyers will continue to identify and take advantage of appropriate buying
opportunities. Significant increase in the price of merchandise sold by the Company, the lack of availability of
such merchandise, or the deterioration in the Company’s relationships with any of its sources of supply could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.
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Key Personnel

The Company’s future performance will depend in large part upon the efforts and abilities of its Company
Management, particularly Michael McKenna, the Chief Executive Officer of the GP, and the Company’s other
key employees, including the Company’s buyers. The loss of services of one or more of these persons could
adversely affect the Company’s business and results of operations and the Company’s ability to effectively pursue
its business strategy. There can be no assurance that the Company would be able to find qualified replacements
for these persons if their services were no longer available. XS Cargo has not historically maintained key person
life insurance for Mr. McKenna or any other employees but expects to obtain key person life insurance for
Mr. McKenna and Mr. Rootman on closing of the Acquisition. There can be no assurance, however, that such
insurance will be sufficient to fully compensate the Company for any financial losses arising from the death of
either of such individuals. '

Changes in Trends and Consumer Tastes

The merchandise that the Company sells is subject to trends and geographic consumer tastes, which can
change rapidly. The Company’s success in this area is largely dependent on its ability to gauge consumer
preferences and to deliver merchandise in a timely fashion to satisfy consumer trends. If the Company is unable
to anticipate or respond to changes in consumer tastes and trends in a timely manner, it may overstock
unpopular products and be forced to take significant markdowns and miss opportunities to sell products that are
more popular. Disposal of excess inventory may result in a decrease in sales and earnings and materially
adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations. The Company’s
inability to acquire suitable merchandise in the future or to accurately anticipate consumer demand for such
merchandise could also have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, liquidity and results of
operations.

Economic Conditions and Consumer Spending

The success of the Company’s business depends to a significant extent upon the level of consumer spending.
A number of factors affect the level of consumer spending on merchandise that the Company offers, including,
among other things:

» general economic, industry and weather conditions in'Canada as a whole, and in the regional markets in
which the Company operates;

o availability of consumer credit and the level of consumer debt;

« level of employment;

* interest rates;

* tax rates and policies;

* war, terrorism and other hostilities; and

« gross domestic product growth and consumer confidence in future economic conditions.

The merchandise the Company sells generally consists of discretionary items. Reduced consumer
confidence and spending may result in reduced demand for the Company’s discretionary items and may force it
to take significant inventory markdowns. Reduced demand also may require increased selling and promotional
expenses. Adverse economic conditions in Canada or in any of the regions in which the Company operates, and
any related decrease in consumer demand for discretionary items, could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

Marketing Expenditures

The Company’s growth and profitability is dependent in part on the effectiveness of its marketing efforts.
The success of the Company’s marketing programs will affect the ability of the Company to:

« increase its brand name recognition and awareness of its products;
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« determine the appropriate media and content for future marketing activities; and

* effectively manage marketing costs.

There can be no assurance that the Company’s planned marketing expenditures will be managed on a
cost-effective basis, result in increased sales or generate increased levels of product and brand name awareness.
The Company may need to increase expenditures on advertising and other marketing programs above current
level in order to maintain brand awareness and support its sales.

Competition

The retail industry is intensely competitive and fragmented. As a broadline closeout retailer, the Company
competes against a diverse group of retailers, including department and discount stores, which sell, among other
things, products similar and often identical to those the Company sells. The Company also competes in
particular markets with a substantial number of retailers that specialize in one or more types of products that the
Company sells. Many of these competitors have substantially greater financial resources than the Company that
may allow them to initiate and sustain aggressive price competition or compete on bases other than price, such
as product selection or customer service. The highly competitive nature of the retail industry means the
Company is constantly subject to the risk of losing market share to its competitors. As a result, the Company
may not be able to maintain or to raise the prices of its merchandise in response to inflationary pressures such as
increasing costs.

A number of different competitive factors could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
results of operations and financial condition, including:

* increased operational efficiencies of competitors;

« competitive pricing strategies, including deep discount pricing by a broad range of retailers during
periods of poor consumer confidence or economic instability;

» expansion of the types of products sold or of geographic focus by existing competitors; '
« development of new marketing channels for discount or closeout goods, such as the internet;
* entry by new competitors into markets in which the Company operates; and

« adoption by existing competitors of innovative store formats or retail sales methods, including
e-commerce.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to compete successfully with existing or with new
competitors, or that prolonged periods of deep discount pricing by the Company’s competitors will not
materially harm the Company’s business.

Reliance on Centralized Distribution Centers

All inventory is shipped directly from suppliers to the Company’s existing centralized distribution centers
located in Edmonton, Alberta and Mississauga, Ontario, where the inventory is then processed, sorted and
shipped to the Company’s stores across Canada. The Company depends in large part on the orderly operation of
this receiving and distribution process, which depends, in turn, on adherence to shipping schedules and effective
management of the distribution centers. Although the Company believes that its receiving and distribution
process is efficient and well positioned to support its expansion plans, there can be no assurance that the
Company has anticipated all of the changing demands that its expanding operations will impose on its receiving
and distribution system, or that events beyond its control, such as disruptions in operations due to fire or other
catastrophic events, labour disagreements or shipping problems, will not result in delays in the delivery of
merchandise to the Company’s stores. Any such delays could damage the Company’s reputation or otherwise
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.
The Company’s second distribution location in Mississauga, Ontario was only recently opened in April 2005. A
failure to successfully coordinate the operations of its Edmonton, Alberta distribution facility with this new
facility could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results
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of operations. Distribution problems may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s revenue in particular
periods.

Although the Company maintains business interruption and property insurance, there can be no assurance
that such insurance will be sufficient, or that insurance proceeds will be paid to the Company on a timely basis,
in the event the Company’s distribution center is shut down for any reason or if the Company incurs higher costs
and longer lead times in connection with a disruption its existing distribution center.

Freight Costs

The Company’s freight costs are impacted by changes in fuel prices and other shipping costs. Fuel prices
and other shipping costs affect freight costs both on inbound freight from vendors to the Company’s distribution
center and outbound freight from the Company’s distribution center to its stores. Increases in fuel prices or
other shipping costs may increase freight costs and thereby increase the Company’s cost of goods sold, which
may in turn have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results
of operations.

Ability to Maintain Comparable Store Sales

Comparable store sales results have fluctuated in the past, and Company Management believes such
fluctuations may continue. The unpredictability of the Company’s comparable store sales may cause its revenue
and results of operations to vary from quarter to quarter, and an unanticipated decline in revenues or operating
income may cause the Trust’s Unit price to fluctuate significantly.’A failure to grow or maintain the Company’s
comparable store sales results could have a material adverse effect on its results of operations and could cause
the price of the Units to decrease significantly.

A number of factors have historically affected, and will continue to affect, comparable store sales results,
including, without limitation:

¢ competition;

« general regional and national economic conditions;

» weather conditions;

¢ consumer trends;

* changes in merchandise mix;

« ability to efficiently source and distribute merchandise to the Company’s stores;
« timing and type of sales events, promotional activities or other advertising;

*» success of marketing programs;

« new merchandise introductions; and

« ability to execute the Company’s business strategy effectively.

These factors may cause the Company’s comparable store sales results to differ materially from prior
periods and from expectations. Past same store sales are no indication of future results, and there can be no
assurance that the Company’s same store sales will not decrease in the future.

Seasonality and Fluctuations in Quarterly Results

The Company’s business is seasonal, with a significant portion of its sales and operating income generated
during the Company’s first fiscal quarter, which includes the holiday shopping season. The Company’s net sales
in the quarters ended January 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 accounted for approximately 31.9%, 31.5% and 28.8%,
respectively, of annual net sales for such fiscal years. Operating income for such periods accounted for
approximately 36.5%, 38.0% and 36.7%, respectively, of annual operating income for such fiscal years. For more
information about seasonality, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations — Sales”. Because a significant percentage of the Company’s net sales and operating income are
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generated in the first fiscal quarter, the Company has limited ability to compensate for shortfalls in first quarter
sales or earnings by changes in its operations or strategies in other quarters. In addition, while variable costs can
be managed to match seasonal patterns, a significant portion of retail costs, including rent, cannot be adjusted
for seasonality. A significant shortfall in results for the first quarter of any fiscal year could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s annual results of operations and on the market price of the Units,

As the Fund’s fiscal year will be the calendar year, this seasonal increase in sales and operating income will
be reflected in the Fund’s fourth quarter financial results following the Acquisition.

The Company’s quarterly results of operations may also fluctuate based upon such factors as delays in the
flow of merchandise, the number and timing of new store openings and related store pre-opening expenses, the
amount of net sales contributed by new and existing stores, the mix of products sold, competitive factors,
changes in fuel and other shipping costs, general economic conditions, labour market fluctuations, changes in
accounting rules and regulations and unseasonable weather conditions.

Importance of Management Information Systems

Company Management relies on management information systems to analyze operating performance on a
regular basis. Additionally, the Company depends on its management information systems in all areas of its
operations, including supply chain management, inventory control, point of sale systems and after-sales service.
If these systems fail or become obsolete, the Company business, financial, condition, liquidity and results of
operations may be materially adversely affected.

Increase in the Cost of, or Disruption in the Flow of, Imported Products

Merchandise originally manufactured and imported from outside of Canada accounts for a large proportion
of the Company’s product purchases. A disruption in the shipping of imported merchandise or an increase in the
cost of those products may significantly decrease the Company’s sales and profits. In addition, if imported
merchandise becomes more expensive or unavailable, the transition to alternative sources may not occur in time
to meet the Company’s demands. Products from alternative sources may also be of lesser quality and more
expensive than those currently imported. Risks associated with the Company’s reliance on imported products
include:

* disruptions in the shipping and importation of imported products because of factors such as:
* raw material shortages, work stoppages, strikes and political unrest;
* problems with oceanic shipping, including shipping container shortages;

* increased regulation and other factors causing delays in shipments including increased inspections of
import shipments;

* geographic distance; and
* economic crises, international disputes and wars; and
* increases in the cost of purchasing or shipping foreign merchandise resulting from:
* taxes, import duties, import quotas and other trade sanctions;
* foreign exchange exposure; and

* increases in shipping rates.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations on Imported Merchandise

The Company purchases merchandise directly from international suppliers in the United States and China
and is subject to foreign exchange rate exposure resulting from importing merchandise with payment in
non-Canadian dollars. Approximately 80% of inventory purchases is made in United States dollar prices
(including all purchases from China). Although the Company takes into consideration the Canadian/
United States dollar exchange rate at the time of specific purchases and is therefore be able to factor the
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applicable exchange rate in to its purchasing decision, the Company is subject to the risk of exchange rate
fluctuations between order and sale of goods.

Although historically the Company’s purchases from Canadian-based and United States-based suppliers has
not had a significant direct foreign exchange exposure, changes in exchange rates could affect the suppliers’
production costs, which in turn could have a negative effect on product costs and resulting in decreased margins
end volume of product sales.

Exposure to Returns of Merchandise

The Company’s policy is to provide a 30 day warranty for product defects. The Company manages it
exposure to the related returns by negotiating its own return privileges with its vendors. Any significant change
in the Company’s ability to negotiate these return privileges could adversely affect the Company’s results
of operations.

In addition, the Company is also considering implementing a program to sell extended product replacement
plans. Although the Company expects that this will represent an opportunity to increase the Company’s
profitability and cash flow, the Company currently does not operate any such plans. If such plans are
implemented, they may result in an increase in product returns that cause increased expenses in excess of the
additional revenue generated by such plans. There can be no assurance that the plans will be accretive to cash
flow or that any reserves established by the Company for the replacement plans will be adequate to address
additional product return expenses. '

Costs and Availability of Insurance Coverage

The Company maintains insurance coverage in respect of its potential liabilities and the accidental loss of
value of its assets from various risks on such terms as it considers appropriate. The Company uses discretion in
determining appropriate insurance coverage. This may result in insurance coverage that, in the event of a
substantial loss, would not be sufficient to pay the full current market value or current replacement cost of the
Company’s lost investment.

The terrorist attacks on the United States in 2001 have resulted in significant increases in the cost of
property and liability insurance, have made some insurance coverage available only on unfavourable terms or
not at all and have resulted in significant increases in the deductible amount for liability insurance. Over the past
four years, the Company’s annual cost of insurance has increased by an average of 29.6%. In addition, certain
types of losses (generally those of a catastrophic nature, such as earthquakes, floods and terrorist attacks) may
be uninsurable or not economically insurable. There can be no assurances that the Company’s insurance
coverage will continue to be available to it on reasonable terms or that the Company’s insurer will not disclaim
coverage of any future claim. The Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations
could be materially adversely affected if any of the foregoing events were to occur.

Intellectual Property

The success of the Company will be dependent, in part, on the continuous development of its brand
recognition. There can be no assurance that the Company’s competitors or other third parties will not develop
similar branding. The Company has a variety of means available to it to assert and protect its brand and other
proprietary rights, including trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets, confidentiality procedures and contractual
provisions. Despite these efforts, unauthorized parties may attempt to obtain and use information that the
Company considers proprietary or to subvert the Company’s efforts to assert its proprietary rights. The
Company has registered the “XS CARGO NOTHING BUT BARGAINS” trademark with the Canadian
Intellectual Property Office. The inability of the Company to successfully register or maintain trademarks may
limit its ability to effectively market its products and services and could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations. In addition, preventing the
unauthorized use of such proprietary rights or information may be difficult, time-consuming and costly. There
can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in asserting and protecting its proprietary rights and,
such failure may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and
results of operations.
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Labour Relations

The success of the Company’s business depends on a large number of employees. Although none of the
Company’s employees are currently unionized, any organized work stoppage or other similar job action may
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Labour Costs and Shortages

Approximately 87% of the Company’s employees are hourly workers whose compensation is based
primarily on the prevailing provincial minimum wages. Any increase in these minimum wages will increase
employee related costs. In addition, changes in the general conditions of the employment market could affect
the ability of the Company to hire or retain staff at current wage levels. The occurrence of either of these events
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results
of operations.

In addition, there can be no assurance that some or all of the employees of the Company will not unionize
in the future. Such an occurrence could increase labour costs and thereby have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Absence of Operating History as a Public Company

Although Company Management has substantial experience in the broadline closeout retail industry, it has
limited experience operating the Company as a public entity. To operate effectively, the Company will be
required to continue to implement changes in certain aspects of its business, improve and expand its
management information systems and develop, manage and train management level and other employees to
comply with on-going public company requirements. Failure to take such actions, or delay in the implementation
thereof, could adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Dependence on External Funding Sources

The Company has historically relied on its reinvested earnings and loans from related parties to finance
expansion and on-going operations. Upon completion of the offering and the Acquisition, the Company, like
other public retailers, will rely significantly on external funding sources to finance its operations and growth.
Company Management currently believes that the Company’s cash flow from operations and funds available
under the Credit Facility will satisfy the Company’s capital requirements for the next 12 months. The Company’s
ability to obtain additional financing will be dependent upon its future operating performance, general economic
and competitive conditions and financial, business and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s
control.

Environmental Regulation

The Company leases, manages and operates stores and other properties that are subject to certain federal,
provincial and local laws and regulations relating to environmental protection, including those governing past or
present releases of hazardous materials. Certain of these laws and regulations may impose liability on certain
classes of persons for the costs of investigation or remediation of such contamination, regardless of fault or the
legality of the original disposal. These persons include the present or former owner or a person in care or
control of a contaminated property and companies that generated, disposed of or arranged for the disposal of
hazardous substances found at the property. As a result, the Company may incur costs to clean up contamination
present on, at or under its leased properties, even if such contamination was present prior to the commencement
of the Company’s operations at the site and was not caused by its activities, which could materially affect its
business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Uncertainties Arising From World Events

The Company’s business and results of operations is subject to uncertainties arising out of world events.
These uncertainties may include the potential worsening or extension of a global economic slowdown, changes in
consumer spending or travel, the outbreak of illnesses such as SARS and the economic consequences of military
action or additional terrorist activities. Any future events arising as a result of terrorist activity or other world
events may have a material impact on the Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition in
the future.
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Property Taxes

The facilities operated by the Company are subject to property taxes levied by local governments and there
can be no assurance that property taxes will remain at current levels. Significant increases in property taxes in
jurisdictions in which the Company owns or leases facilities could increase the amount of property tax payable in
respect of such facilities and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Risks Relating to the Structure of the Fund and the Offering
Dependence on XSCOT and the Company

Cash distributions to Unitholders will be entirely dependent on the ability of XSCOT to pay its interest
obligations under the XSCOT Notes, and to make distributions on the XSCOT Units. Payments by XSCOT will
depend, in turn, on the ability of the Company to satisfy its debt service obligations under the Credit Facility and
XS Cargo LP’s ability to pay distributions on the Ordinary LP Units.

Distributions to Unitholders will be entirely dependent on the ability of the Company to pay its operating
expenses and to pay distributions. The sole source of cash flow of the Company is the operation of the Company.
In the conduct of its business, the Company pays expenses and incurs debt and other obligations to third parties.
These expenses, debts and obligations could impact the Company’s ability to produce positive operating results.

The Company is entirely dependent upon the operations and assets of its stores to pay distributions to
XSCOT, and the Company’s ability to do so is subject to the risks encountered by the Company in the operation
of its business, including the risks relating to the retail industry referred to above, and the results of operations
and financial condition of the Company.

Absence of Prior Public Market for Units

Prior to the offering, there has been no public market for the Units. The offering price has been determined
by negotiation between the Fund and the Underwriters and may not reflect the price at which the Units will
trade following completion of the offering. In addition, there can be no assurance that an active trading market
will develop in the Units on an ongoing basis.

Unpredictability and Volatility of Unit Price

A publicly traded income trust will not necessarily trade at values determined by reference to the underlying
value of its business. The prices at which the Units will trade cannot be predicted. The market price of the Units
could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to variations in quarterly operating results and other
factors. The annual yield on the Units as compared to the annual yield on other financial instruments may also
influence the price of Units in the public trading markets. An increase in market interest rates will result in
higher yield on other financial instruments, which could adversely affect the market price of the Units.

In addition, the securities markets have experienced significant market wide and sectoral price and volume
fluctuations from time to time that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance
of particular issuers. Such fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of the Units.

Nature of Units

The Units are hybrid securities in that they share certain attributes common to both equity securities and
debt instruments. The Units do not represent a direct investment in XSCOT or the Company and should not be
viewed as securities of XSCOT or the Company. As holders of Units, Unitholders do not have the statutory
rights normally associated with ownership of shares of a corporation including, for example, the right to bring
“oppression” or “derivative” actions. In addition, the benefit of certain statutes applicable to corporations, such
as the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada), may not be applicable to the Fund. The Units represent
a fractional interest in the Fund. The Fund’s only assets will be XSCOT Notes and the XSCOT Units. The price
per Unit is a function of anticipated distributable cash of the Fund.
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The Units are not “deposits” within the meaning of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (Canada)
and are not insured under the provisions of that Act or any other legislation. Furthermore, the Fund is not a trust
company and, accordingly, is not registered under any trust and loan company legislation as it does not carry on
or intend to carry on the business of a trust company. In addition, although the Fund qualified on the Closing of
the offering as a “mutual fund trust” as defined by the Tax Act, the Fund is not a “mutual fund” as defined by
applicable securities legislation.

Cash Distributions

Although the Fund intends to distribute the cash it receives, less expenses and amounts, if any, paid by the
Fund in connection with the redemption of Units, there can be no assurance regarding the amounts of income to
be generated by XS Cargo LP and XSCOT and paid to the Fund. The actual amounts of distributions paid by
the Fund to the Unitholder will depend upon numerous factors, including profitability, debt covenants and
obligations, the availability and cost of acquisitions, fluctuations in working capital, the timing and amount of
capital expenditures, deductibility for tax purposes of interest payments on the XSCOT Notes applicable law and
other factors beyond the control of the Fund, XSCOT and the Company. Cash distributions are not guaranteed
and will fluctuate with the Company’s performance. The Company and XSCOT have the discretion to establish
cash reserves for the proper conduct of their business. Adding to these reserves in any year would reduce the
amount of cash available for distribution by the Fund in that year. There can be no assurance as to the levels of
cash distributions to be paid by the Fund, if any. The market value of the Units may deteriorate if the Fund is
unable to meet its cash distribution targets in the future, and such deterioration may be material.

Cash-on-Cash Yield

Cash-on-cash yield is a useful and widely used supplemental measure that provides investors with
information on cash actually distributed relative to trading price. Investors are cautioned that cash-on-cash yield
should not be construed as an alternate to net income as determined by GAAP. Investors are also cautioned that
cash-on-cash yield represents a blend of return of investors’ initial investment and a return on investors’ initial
investment and is not comparable to traditional yield on debt instruments where investors are entitled to full
return of the principal amount of debt on maturity in addition to a return on investment through interest

payments.

Structural Subordination of the Units

In the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization of the Company or any of the Fund’s other
subsidiaries, holders of certain of their indebtedness and certain trade creditors will generally be entitled to
payment of their claims from the assets of the Company and those subsidiaries before any assets are made
available for distribution to the Fund. The Units will be effectively subordinated to most of the indebtedness and
other liabilities of the Company and the Fund’s other subsidiaries, including the approximately $15 million
expected to be drawn down under the Credit Facility at the closing of the offering. Neither the Company nor any
of the Fund’s other subsidiaries will be limited in its ability to incur secured or unsecured indebtedness.

Ability to Recover from Vendor for Breaches of Acquisition Agreement

As described under “Principal Agreements — Acquisition Agreement”, the Vendor will provide certain
representations, warranties and related indemnities regarding the business of XS Cargo, the disclosure in this
prospectus and certain other matters. To support the Vendor’s obligations under the Acquisition Agreement, the
Vendor will place the Subordinated LP Units that it receives in escrow for two years, the period after which most
of the representations and warranties (other than representations relating to the disclosure in this prospectus
and certain tax representations) terminate. Following the completion of the transfer of the Purchased Assets to
the Company, the Subordinated LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units will be the Vendor’s only material
assets and it is not expected that the Vendor will have an active business. In the event that the Company or the
Fund suffers any loss as a result of a breach of the representations, warranties or any other term of the
Acquisition Agreement by the Vendor, the Company may not be able to recover the amount of its loss from the
Vendor. If it is able to recover the escrowed Subordinated LP Units from the Vendor, there can be no assurance
that the proceeds from such units will satisfy the Company’s loss. If the Company is not able to recover the
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Subordinated LP Units (for instance, if the escrow has expired), then the Vendor may not have sufficient
property to satisfy the Company’s or the Fund’s loss.

Leverage and Restrictive Covenants

The Company will have third party debt service obligations under the Credit Facility and any replacement
or other credit facilities. See “Credit Facility”. The degree to which the Company is leveraged could have
important consequences to the holders of the Units, including: (i) a portion of the Company’s cash flow from
operations will be dedicated to the payment of the principal of and interest on its indebtedness, thereby reducing
funds available for distribution to the Fund; (ii) certain of the Company’s borrowings will be at variable rates of
interest, which exposes the Company to the risk of increased interest rates. The Company’s ability to make
scheduled payments of principal and interest on, or to refinance, its indebtedness will depend on its future
operating performance and cash flow, which are subject to prevailing economic conditions, prevailing interest
rate levels, and financial, competitive, business and other factors, many of which are beyond its control.

The Credit Facility will contain certain customary operating covenants that limit the discretion of Company
Management with respect to certain business matters. These covenants will place restrictions on, among other
things, the ability of the Company to incur additional indebtedness, to create liens or other encumbrances, to
pay distributions or make certain other payments, investments, loans and guarantees and to sell or otherwise
dispose of assets and merge or consolidate with another entity. A failure to comply with the obligations in the
agreements in respect of the Credit Facility could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived,
could permit acceleration of the relevant indebtedness. If the indebtedness under the Credit Facility were to be
accelerated, there can be no assurance that the Company’s assets would be sufficient to repay in full that
indebtedness.

Restrictions on Potential Growth

The payout by the Company of substantially all of its operating cash flow will make additional capital and
operating expenditures dependent on increased cash flow or additional financing in the future. Lack of those
funds could limit the future growth of the Company and its cash flow.

Tax Related Risks

The income of the Company, XSCOT and the Fund must be computed and will be taxed in accordance with
Canadian tax laws, all of which may be changed in a manner that could adversely affect the amount of
distributable cash. There can be no assurance that Canadian federal income tax laws respecting the treatment of
mutual fund trusts will not be changed in a manner that adversely affects the holders of Units. If the Fund ceases
to qualify as a “mutual fund trust” under the Tax Act, the income tax considerations described under the heading
“Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations” would be materially and adversely different in certain
respects. Further, interest on the XSCOT Notes and other debt accrues at the Fund level for income tax
purposes whether or not actually paid. The Declaration of Trust provides that an amount equal to the taxable
income of the Fund will be distributed each year to Unitholders in order to eliminate the Fund’s taxable income
and provides that additional Units may be distributed to Unitholders in lieu of cash distributions. Unitholders
will generally be required to include an amount equal to the fair market value of those Units in their taxable
income, in circumstances when they do not directly receive a cash distribution.

If the Fund ceases to qualify as a “mutual fund trust” under the Tax Act, the Units will cease to be qualified
investments for Exempt Plans. The Fund will endeavour to ensure that the Units continue to be qualified
investments for Exempt Plans. The Tax Act imposes penalties for the acquisition or holding of non-qualified
investments in such plans and there is no assurance that the conditions prescribed for such qualified investments
will be adhered to at any particular time. If the Fund ceases to be a mutual fund trust for the purposes of the
Tax Act, the Units will be foreign property for Deferred Income Plans and other persons subject to Part XI of
the Tax Act.

Pursuant to the 2005 Federal Budget on February 23, 2005, the Minister of Finance (Canada) announced
that the limit in respect of foreign property that may be held by a taxpayer subject to Part XI of the Tax Act will
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be eliminated for 2005 and subsequent calendar years. There can be no assurance that such proposal will
be enacted.

Finally, if the Fund ceases to qualify as mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act, the Fund may be
required to pay tax under Part XIL.2 of the Tax Act. The payment of Part XII.2 tax by the Fund will affect the
amount of cash available for distribution by the Fund and may have adverse consequences for Unitholders. See
“Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations”.

On September 16, 2004, the Minister of Finance (Canada) released draft amendments to the Tax Act that, if
adopted, may cause the Fund to lose its status as a mutual fund trust in certain circumstances. Currently, a trust
will not be considered to be a mutual fund trust if it is established or maintained primarily for the benefit of
‘Non-residents unless all or substantially all of its property is property other than “taxable Canadian property” as
defined in the Tax Act. Based on a certificate from the Fund, the Fund will adopt mechanisms to ensure that the
Fund is not maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents. These draft amendments to the Tax Act
provide that a trust would lose its status as a mutual fund trust if the aggregate fair market value of all units
issued by the trust held by one or more Non-residents or Non-Canadian Partnerships (as defined herein) is more
than 50% of the aggregate fair market value of all the units issued by the trust where more than 10% (based on
fair market value) of the trust’s property is taxable Canadian property or certain other types of property. If the
draft amendments are enacted as proposed, and if, at any time, more than 50% of the aggregate fair market
value of Units of the Fund were held by Non-residents and Non-Canadian Partnerships, the Fund would
thereafter cease to be a mutual fund trust. The draft amendments do not currently provide any means of
rectifying a loss of mutual fund trust status. On December 6, 2004, the Minister of Finance (Canada) tabled a
Notice of Ways and Means Motion to implement certain measures proposed in September 16, 2004 draft
amendments. However, such Notice did not include the above-mentioned proposal concerning mutual funds
maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents. In addition, the Minister of Finance (Canada) announced
on December 6, 2004 and in the 2005 Federal Budget that further discussions will be pursued with the private
sector in this respect.

Trusts governed by registered pension plans, pension corporations and other “designated taxpayers” (but
not trusts governed by Exempt Plans) may be subject to penalty taxes in respect of the holding of Units under
the Proposed Amendments to the Tax Act announced in March 2004. However, in May 2004, the Minister of
Finance (Canada) announced that the implementation of these proposals is suspended pending further
consultation with interested parties, following which further legislative proposals will be announced. This was
reiterated by the Minister of Finance (Canada) in September 2004 and in the 2005 Federal Budget. Such
investors should consult their own tax advisors before purchasing Units.

Dilution and Future Sales of Units

The Declaration of Trust authorizes the Fund to issue an unlimited number of Units and Special Voting
Units for the consideration and on those terms and conditions as are established by the Trustees without the
approval of any Unitholders. Any further issuance of Units will dilute the interests of existing Unitholders. The
Unitholders will have no pre-emptive rights in connection with such future issuances.

Future Sales of Units by the Vendor

Upon the closing of this offering, the Vendor will hold approximately 49% of the outstanding Units
(assuming the exchange for Units of all of the Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units). If the
Vendor sells a substantial number of its Units in the public market, the market price of the Units could fall. The
perception among the public that such sales may occur could also result in a reduction in the market price of
the Units. In addition to sales of Units that the Vendor Group may make from time to time, XS Cargo LP may
also issue up to 58,665 additional Exchangeable LP Units and Subordinated LP Units to the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer, as described under “Executive Compensation — Employment Agreements”. Accordingly, the
Fund’s interest in the Company and its entitlement to distributions of cash from XS Cargo LP will be
proportionally reduced.
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Control of XS Cargo LP

Pursuant to the Securityholders Agreement, for so long as the Vendor owns, directly or indirectly, not less
than 20% of the Units (on a diluted basis), the Vendor will have certain limited veto rights with respect to
certain matters relating to XS Cargo LP and XSCOT, which will allow the Vendor to restrict certain transactions
that may be proposed by the Fund or its subsidiaries. These veto rights are not transferable except to members
of the Vendor Group. In particular, the Securityholders Agreement will provide that none of the Fund, XSCOT,
the GP or XS Cargo LP may take the following actions without the prior approval of the Vendor Group so long
as the Vendor Group holds or controls at least 20% of the Units (on a diluted basis) (other than in connection
with an internal reorganization): enter into any merger, amalgamation, consolidation or othei business
combination or joint venture (other than any such transaction where the holders of the outstanding voting
securities of the Fund, XSCOT, the GP or XS Cargo LP, as the case may be, immediately prior to such -
transaction hold at least a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving corporation or other
entity immediately after such transaction and no person or group of persons acting jointly or in concert (other
than persons who were the holders of voting securities of the Fund, XSCOT, the GP or XS Cargo LP
immediately prior to such transaction) holds 20% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving
corporation or other entity); issue voting securities representing 20% or more of the outstanding voting
securities to any person or group of persons acting jointly or in concert in one or more related transactions
(other than a distribution of securities to the public by way of a prospectus); sell, assign, convey or otherwise
dispose of 20% or more of the securities of any subsidiary entity; sell, assign, convey or otherwise dispose of a
material portion of the assets of the Fund on a consolidated basis, out of the ordinary course of business; adopt
any plan or proposal to liquidate, dissolve or reorganize or seek relief under bankruptcy or insolvency laws;
change the size of its board of directors or trustees, if any; or take or permit to be taken any action that would
prevent the business of the Company, as it exists on the Closing Date, from continuing on an ongoing basis. See
“Principal Agreements — Securityholders Agreement — Securityholder Approval for Certain Items”.

In addition, the Vendor will have consent rights respecting amendments to certain material agreements
entered into by XS Cargo LP and certain of its affiliates. See “Principal Agreements — Securityholders
Agreement”.

The Vendor will also initially have the right to appoint up to two members of the five person board of
directors of the GP and will initially hold 49% of the outstanding GP Common Shares and 49% of the
outstanding LP Units. The directors of the GP are required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the
best interests of the GP and the GP is required to act honestly and in good faith and in the best interests of
XS Cargo LP. However, directors appointed by a particular shareholder are entitled under the ABCA to give
special consideration to the interests of the shareholder that appointed them.

The interests of the Vendor may conflict with those of other Unitholders.

Conflicts of Interest

Certain directors of the GP are associated with other companies or entities, which may give rise to conflicts
of interest. In accordance with the ABCA, directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to
a material contract or proposed material contract with the GP are required, subject to certain exceptions, to
disclose that interest and abstain from voting on any resolution to approve that contract. In addition, the
directors are required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the GP.

Unitholder Limited Liability

The Declaration of Trust provides that no Unitholder, in its capacity as such, shall incur or be subject to any
liability in contract or in tort in connection with the Fund or its obligations or affairs and, in the event that a
court determines Unitholders are subject to any such liabilities, the liabilities will be enforceable only against,
and will be satisfied only out of the Fund’s assets. Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, the Fund will indemnify
and hold harmless each Unitholder from any cost, damages, liabilities, expenses, charges or losses suffered by a
Unitholder from or arising as a result of such Unitholder not having such limited liability. The Declaration of
Trust provides that all contracts signed by or on behalf of the Fund must contain a provision to the effect that
such obligation will not be binding upon Unitholders personally. Unitholders will also have the benefit of the
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Income Trusts Liability Act (Alberta) (the “ITLA”), which came into force on July 1, 2004. The ITLA protects
unitholders of Alberta income trusts such as the Fund by providing a statutory limitation on unitholders’ liability. .
Specifically, the ITLA provides that a unitholder will not be, as a beneficiary, liable for any act, default,
obligation or liability of the trustee of a trust. Although Company Management considers the risk that
Unitholders will have any personal liability for obligations of the Fund to be remote in the circumstances,
questions of unitholder liability have not been considered extensively in Canadian courts, and there is a risk that
a court could find Unitholders to be liable for the Fund’s obligations notwithstanding the ITLA and the
provisions of the Declaration of Trust described above.

Under limited partnership legislation, a limited partner taking part in the management of a limited
partnership is potentially responsible for partnership liabilities as a general partner. The investment of the Fund
in XS Cargo LP is held through XSCOT and accordingly, the possibility of any such liability attaching to
Unitholders is remote.

Distribution of Securities on Redemption or Termination of the Fund

Upon a redemption of Units or termination of the Fund, the Trustees may distribute XSCOT Notes directly
to Unitholders, subject to obtaining all required regulatory approvals. There is currently no market for the
XSCOT Notes. In addition, the XSCOT Notes are not freely tradable and are not currently listed on any stock
exchange. See “XS Cargo Income Fund — Redemption Right”. XSCOT Notes so distributed may not be
qualified investments for trusts governed by Exempt Plans, depending upon the circumstances at the time.

Restrictions on Certain Unitholders and Liquidity of Units

The Declaration of Trust imposes various restrictions on Unitholders. Non-resident Unitholders are
prohibited from beneficially owning more than 49% of the Units (on a non-diluted and a fully diluted basis).
These restrictions may limit (or inhibit the exercise of) the rights of certain persons, including non-residents of
Canada and U.S. persons, to acquire Units, to exercise their rights as Unitholders and to initiate and complete
take-over bids in respect of the Units. As a result, these restrictions may limit the demand for Units from certain
Unitholders and thereby adversely affect the liquidity and market value of the Units held by the public.

CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

In the opinion of Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLE, counsel to the Fund, and Blake, Cassels &
Graydon LLP, counsel to the Underwriters (collectively, “Counsel”), the following is a fair and adequate
summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations under the Tax Act of acquiring, holding
and disposing of Units acquired pursuant to this offering generally applicable to a purchaser who will hold the
Units as capital property for purposes of the Tax Act and who, at all material times, deals at arm’s length with,
and is not affiliated with the Fund for purposes of the Tax Act. Generally, the Units will be considered to be
capital property to a holder thereof unless they are held in the course of carrying on a business or in connection
with an adventure in the nature of trade. Certain holders resident in Canada whose Units might not otherwise
qualify as capital property may be entitled to make an irrevocable election in accordance with subsection 39(4)
of the Tax Act to have their Units and any other “Canadian security” as defined in the Tax Act treated as capital
property. Unitholders considering making such an election should consult their own tax advisors. This summary
is not applicable to a Unitholder that is a “specified financial institution” under the Tax Act or a “financial
institution” as defined in the Tax Act for purposes of the market-to-market rules, nor is it applicable to a holder
an interest in which would be a “tax shelter investment” under the Tax Act.

This summary is based upon the provisions of the Tax Act in force as of the date hereof, all specific
proposals to amend the Tax Act that have been publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance
(Canada) prior to the date hereof (the “Proposed Amendments”), Counsel’s understanding of the current
published administrative practices of the CRA and certificates of one or more members of Company
Management as to certain factual matters provided to Counsel.

This summary is not exhaustive of all possible Canadian federal income tax considerations applicable to the
acquisition, holding or disposition of Units and, except for the Proposed Amendments, does not take into account
or anticipate any changes in the law, whether by legislative, administrative or judicial decision or action. This
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summary does not take into account any provincial, territorial or foreign tax considerations, which may differ
significantly from those discussed herein.

This summary is of a general nature only and is not intended to be relied on as legal or tax advice or
representations to any particular Unitholders. Consequently, Unitholders are urged to seek independent tax
advice in respect of the consequences to them of an investment in Units having regard to their particular
circumstances.

Status of the Fund

At closing, it is assumed, and has been represented to Counsel that the Fund will qualify as a “unit trust”
and as‘a “mutual fund trust” as defined in the Tax Act on completion of the offering, and will thereafter
continuously qualify as a mutual fund trust. In order for the Fund to qualify as a mutual fund at a particular
time, in addition to being a unit trust resident in Canada, it must meet certain prescribed conditions (“minimum
distribution requirement”) relating to the number of Unitholders, the dispersal of ownership of Units and public
distribution of Units at such time; its only undertaking must be the investing of its funds in property (other than
real property); and it must not be established or'maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents. The sole
undertaking of the Fund as described in this prospectus is the investing of its funds in property (other than real
property) and this summary assumes that this will continue to be the case at all relevant times. This summary
assumes that the Fund will satisfy the minimum distribution requirement on the completion of the offering, so
that it may elect to be deemed to be a mutual fund trust from the date it was established until such time, and it
so elects, and that it will continuously satisfy the minimum distribution requirement thereafter. This summary
also assumes that the Fund is not established nor will it be maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents,
based on the restriction of ownership of Units by Non-residents, which is contained in the Declaration of Trust.
If the Fund were not to qualify as a mutual fund trust, the income tax considerations described below would, in
some respects, be materially different.

On September 16, 2004, the Minister of Finance (Canada) released draft amendments to the Tax Act
providing that a trust will cease to qualify as a mutual fund trust at the time trust units having more than 50% of
the fair market value of all issued trust units are held by one or more Non-residents or partnerships that are not
Canadian partnerships, as defined in the Tax Act (“Non-Canadian Partnerships”). If Non-residents and/or
Non-Canadian Partnerships acquire a substantial number of Units, the ability of the Fund to maintain its status
as a mutual fund trust may be dependent on its ability to determine the proportion of the Units held by
Non-residents and Non-Canadian Partnerships on an accurate and timely basis and to take effective steps to
prevent a majority of Units from being held by Non-residents and Non-Canadian Partnerships. The Fund would
not lose its status as a mutual fund trust, even if a majority of the Units were held by Non-residents and
Non-Canadian Partnerships, provided that substantially all the assets of the Fund were not “taxable Canadian
property” or certain other types of property at that time and thereafter. On December 6, 2004, the Minister of
Finance (Canada) tabled a Notice of Ways and Means Motion to implement certain. measures proposed in
September 16, 2004 draft amendments. However, such Notice did not include the above-mentioned proposal
concerning mutual fund trusts maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents. In addition, the Minister of
Finance (Canada) announced on December 6, 2004 and in the 2005 Federal Budget that further discussions will
be pursued with the private sector in this respect.

Should the Fund cease to qualify as a mutual fund trust, the income tax considerations, respecting the Fund
would be materially different from those described in this summary, and in particular the following adverse
income tax consequences may result:

« The Units would cease to be qualified investments for Exempt Plans with the result that an Exempt Plan
may become subject to a penalty tax, the beneficiary of such Exempt Plan may be deemed to have
received income therefrom or, in the case of an RESP, the RESP may have its tax exempt status revoked.

« If the repeal of the foreign property rule, as proposed in the February 23, 2005 Budget is not enacted,
then Units will become foreign property and Deferred Plans, may become subject to a penalty tax to the
extent they have holdings of foreign property in excess of limits prescribed by the Tax Act.

« The Fund will be required to pay a tax under Part XI1.2 of the Tax Act.
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* The Fund will cease to be eligible for the capital gains refund mechanism available to mutual fund trusts.

* Upon the loss of mutual fund trust status, the Units held by Non-resident would become taxable
Canadian property and become subject to Canadian income tax on their disposition.

Taxation of the Fund

The Fund is subject to tax in each taxation year on its income for the year, computed as though it were a
separate individual resident in Canada. The taxation year of the Fund will end on December 31 of each year.

The Fund will be required to include in its income for each taxation year: (i) all interest on XSCOT Notes
that accrues to, becomes receivable or is received by it before the end of the year, except to the extent that such
interest was included in computing its income for a preceding taxation year; (ii) all dividends received on the
shares of the GP unless appropriate designations are made by the Fund that will deem such dividends to have

~ been received by Unitholders and not to have been received by the Fund; and (iii) all net income from XSCOT

which is paid or payable to the Fund in the year.

In computing its income, the Fund will generally be entitled to deduct reasonable administrative expenses
incurred to earn income. The Fund will be entitled to deduct the costs incurred by it in connection with the
issuance of Units on a five-year, straight-line basis, subject to proration for short taxation years (including the
Fund’s initial taxation year). The Fund may also deduct amounts which are paid or become payable by it to
Unitholders in the year, to the extent that the Fund has net income for the year after the inclusions and
deductions outlined above. An amount will be considered to have become payable to a Unitholder in a taxation
year only if it is paid in the year by the Fund or the Unitholder is entitled in that year to enforce payment of the
amount. Under the Declaration of Trust, net income of the Fund for each year will be paid or made payable by
way of cash distributions to the Unitholders. The Declaration of Trust also contemplates other situations
(including the use of cash received on the XSCOT Notes or as XSCOT distributions to fund redemptions) in
which the Fund may not have sufficient cash to distribute all of its net income by way of such cash distributions.
In such circumstances, such net income will be payable to Unitholders in the form of additional Units
(“Reinvested Units™).

The Fund will be entitled for each taxation year to reduce (or receive a refund in respect of) its liability, if
any, for tax on its net taxable capital gains by an amount determined under the Tax Act based on the redemption
or retraction of Units during the year (the “Capital Gains Refund”). In certain circumstances, the Capital Gains
Refund for a particular taxation year may not completely offset the Fund’s tax liability on net realized capital
gains for such taxation year. Thus, the Declaration of Trust provides that any capital gains realized by the Fund
as a result of such redemptions may be allocated to the Unitholders redeeming their Units. The taxable portion
of such capital gain must be included in the income of the redeeming Unitholder.

For purposes of the Tax Act, the Fund generally intends to deduct, in computing its income and taxable
income, the full amount available for deduction in each year. As a result of such deductions and the Fund’s
entitlement to a Capital Gains Refund, it is expected that the Fund will not be liable for any material amount of
tax under the Tax Act. However, no assurance can be given in this regard.

Taxation of XSCOT

The taxation year of XSCOT is the calendar year. In each taxation year, XSCOT will be subject to tax under
Part I of the Tax Act on its income for the year, including its allocated share of the income of XS Cargo LP,
except to the extent such income is paid or payable or deemed to be paid or made payable in such year to its
unitholders, including the Fund, and is deducted by XSCOT in computing its income for tax purposes.

In computing its income for tax purposes, XSCOT will generally be entitled to deduct its expenses
(including interest that accrues, is payable or is paid on the XSCOT Notes) incurred to earn such income,
provided such expenses are reasonable and otherwise deductible, subject to the relevant provisions of the
Tax Act. Under the XSCOT Declaration of Trust, all of the income of XSCOT for each year, together with the
taxable and non-taxable portion of any capital gains realized by XSCOT in the year, will generally be paid or
made payable in the year to holders of XSCOT Units. For purposes of the Tax Act, XSCOT generally intends to
deduct in computing its income the full amount available for deduction in each year to the extent of its taxable
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income for the year otherwise determined. Counsel has been advised by the Fund that the Fund does not expect
XSCOT to be liable for any material amount of tax under Part I of the Tax Act. However, no assurance can be
given in this regard.

Taxation of XS Cargo LP

XS Cargo LP is not subject to tax under the Tax Act. Each partner of XS Cargo LP, including XSCOT, is
required to include in computing the partner’s income for a particular taxation year the partner’s share of the
income or loss of XS Cargo LP for its fiscal year ending in, or coincidentally with, the partner’s taxation year
end, whether or not any of that income is distributed to the partner in the taxation year. XS Cargo LP’s fiscal
period will be the calendar year. For this purpose, the income or loss of XS Cargo LP will be computed for each
fiscal year as if XS Cargo LP were a separate person resident in Canada. In computing the income or loss of
XS Cargo LP, deductions may be claimed in respect of capital cost allowance, reasonable administrative costs,
interest and other expenses incurred by XS Cargo LP for the purpose of earning income, subject to the relevant
provisions of the Tax Act. The income or loss of XS Cargo LP for a fiscal year will be allocated to the partners of
XS Cargo LP, including XSCOT, on the basis of their respective share of that income or loss as provided in the
partnership agreement for XS Cargo LP, subject to the detailed rules in the Tax Act in that regard.

If XS Cargo LP does incur losses for tax purposes, XSCOT will be entitled to deduct in the computation of
its income for tax purposes its share of any such losses for any fiscal year to the extent that XSCOT’s investment
is “at risk” within the meaning of the Tax Act. In general, the amount “at risk” for an investor in a limited
partnership for any taxation year will be the adjusted cost base of the investor’s partnership interest at the end of
the year (such adjusted cost base to be computed excluding any unpaid portion of the purchase price payable by
the investor for such partnership interest), plus any undistributed income allocated to the limited partner for the
year, less any amount owing by the limited partner (or a person with whom the limited partner does not deal at
arm’s length) to XS Cargo LP (or a person with whom it does not deal at arm’s length) and less the amount of
any benefit that a limited partner (or a person with whom the limited partner does not deal at arm’s length) is
entitled to receive or obtain for the purpose of reducing, in whole or in part, any loss of the limited partner from
the investment.

Residents of Canada

This portion of the summary is applicable to a Unitholder who, for purposes of the Tax Act and at all
relevant times, is, or is deemed to be, resident in Canada.

Taxation of Unitholders
Income from Units

The income of a Unitholder from the Units will be considered to be income from property for the purposes
of the Tax Act. Any deduction or loss of the Fund for the purposes of the Tax Act cannot be allocated to and
treated as a deduction or loss of a Unitholder. However, a loss of the Fund can be deducted by the Fund to the
extent and under the circumstances described under the Tax Act.

A Unitholder will generally be required to include in computing income for a particular taxation year of the
Unitholder the portion of the net income of the Fund for a taxation year, including taxable dividends and net
taxable capital gains, that is paid or becomes payable to the Unitholder in that particular taxation year, whether
such amount is payable in cash or in Reinvested Units. Reinvested Units issued to a Unitholder as a non-cash
distribution of income will have an acquisition cost equal to the amount of such income, and this acquisition cost
must be averaged with the adjusted cost base of all other Units held by the Unitholder as capital property in
order to determine the respective adjusted cost base of each Unit.

Provided that appropriate designations are made by the Fund, such portion of its net taxable capital gains
and taxable dividends from the GP as are paid or payable to a Unitholder will effectively retain their character
as taxable capital gains and taxable dividends, respectively, and will be treated as such in the hands of the
Unitholder for purposes of the Tax Act.
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Such dividends will be subject, inter alia, to the gross-up and dividend tax credit provisions in respect of
individuals, the refundable tax under Part IV of the Tax Act applicable to “private corporations” and “subject
corporations” (as defined under the Tax Act), and the deduction in computing taxable income in respect of
dividends received by taxable Canadian corporations.

The non-taxable portion of net capital gains of the Fund that is paid or becomes payable to a Unitholder in
a year will not be included in computing the Unitholder’s income for the year. Any other amount in excess of the
net income of the Fund that is paid or becomes payable by the Fund to a Unitholder in a year will generally not
be included in the Unitholder’s income for the year. However, a Unitholder is required to reduce the adjusted
cost base of the Units held by such Unitholder by each amount payable to the Unitholder otherwise than as
proceeds of disposition of Units (except to the extent that the amount either was included in the income of the
Unitholder or was the Unitholder’s share of the non-taxable portion of the net capital gains of the Fund, the
taxable portion of which was designated by the Fund in respect of the Unitholder). To the extent that the
adjusted cost base of a Unit is less than zero, the negative amount will be deemed to be a capital gain of a
Unitholder from the disposition of the Unit in the year in which the negative amount arises and will be added to
the holder’s adjusted cost base of the Unit.

A Unitholder that throughout the relevant taxation year is a “Canadian controlled private corporation”, as
defined in the Tax Act, may be liable to pay an additional refundable tax of 6%% on certain investment income,
including income that was received or became receivable from the Fund in the relevant taxation year.

Disposition of Units

" Upon the disposition or deemed disposition by a Unitholder of a Unit, the Unitholder will generally realize
a capital gain (or a capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition exceed (or are less
than) the aggregate of the Unitholder’s adjusted cost base of the Unit and any reasonable costs of disposition.

A redemption of Units in consideration for cash, XSCOT Notes or other securities distributed to the
Unitholder in satisfaction of the redemption price, as the case may be, will be a disposition of such Units for
proteeds of disposition equal to the aggregate of any cash and the fair market value of the XSCOT Notes or
other securities so distributed, as the case may be. Redeeming Unitholders will consequently realize a capital
gain (or capital loss), depending upon whether the proceeds of disposition received exceed (or are less than) the
adjusted cost base of the Units so redeemed and any reasonable costs of disposition. Where a Unitholder that is
a corporation or a trust (other than a mutual fund trust) disposes of a Unit, the Unitholder’s capital loss from
the disposition will generally be reduced by the amount of dividends from taxable Canadian corporations
previously designated by the Fund to the Unitholder except to the extent that a loss on a previous disposition of
a Unit has been reduced by such dividends. Similar rules apply where a corporation or trust (other than a mutual
fund trust) is a member of a partnership that disposes of Units.

Generally, one-half of any capital gain (a “taxable capital gain”) realized by a Unitholder in a taxation year
must be included in the income of the Unitholder for the year, and one-half of any capital loss (an “allowable
capital loss”) realized by a Unitholder in a taxation year is deducted from taxable capital gains realized by the
Unitholder in that year. Allowable capital losses for a taxation year in excess of taxable capital gains for that year
generally may be carried back and deducted in any of the three preceding taxation years or carried forward and
deducted in any subsequent taxation year against net capital gains realized in such years, to the extent and under
the circumstances described in the Tax Act.

A Unitholder that throughout the relevant taxation year is a “Canadian controlled private corporation”, as
defined in the Tax Act, may be liable to pay an additional refundable tax of 6%% on certain investment income,
including taxable capital gains. Capital gains realized by an individual may give rise to a liability for alternative
minimum tax.

The cost of any XSCOT Note distributed to a Unitholder by the Fund upon a redemption of Units will be
equal to the fair market value of the XSCOT Note, at the time of the distribution less any accrued interest
thereon. Such a Unitholder will be required to include in income interest on the XSCOT Note (including
interest that had accrued to the date of the acquisition of the XSCOT Note by a Unitholder) in accordance with
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the provisions of the Tax Act. To the extent that a Unitholder is required to include in income any interest that
had accrued to the date of the acquisition of the XSCOT Note, an offsetting deduction will be available.

Tax-Exempt Unitholders

Provided that the Fund qualifies as a “mutual fund trust” for purposes of the Tax Act at a particular time,
the Units will be qualified investments for trusts governed by Exempt Plans at such time. If the Fund ceases to
qualify as a mutual fund trust, the Units no longer will be qualified investments under the Tax Act for such
Exempt Plans. Where, at the end of a month, an Exempt Plan holds Units or other properties that are not
qualified investments, the Exempt Plan, in respect of that month, may be required to pay a tax under Part XI.1
of the Tax Act equal to 1% of the fair market value of the Units or other properties at the time such Units or
other properties were acquired by the Exempt Plan. In addition, where a trust governed by a registered
retirement savings plan (“RRSP”) or registered retirement income fund (“RRIF”) holds or acquires,
respectively, Units or other properties that are not qualified investments, the trust will become taxable on
income attributable to the Units or other properties while they are not qualified investments. Where a trust
‘governed by an RESP acquires or holds Units or other properties that are not qualified investments, the Exempt
Plan becomes revocable and its registration may be revoked by the CRA. Where a trust is governed by a
deferred profit sharing plan (“DPSP”) and acquires property that is not a qualified investment, the trust will be
required to pay a tax equal to the fair market value of the property at the time of its acquisition. Where a trust
governed by an RRSP or RRIF acquires property that is not a qualified investment, the annuitant under the
RRSP or RRIF will be required to include the fair market value of such property in income for tax purposes.

If such an Exempt Plan requests the redemption of Units, property received in payment may not be
qualified investments, with the result that the Exempt Plan may be taxable in the manner described above.
Exempt Plans that own Units should consult their own tax advisors before deciding to exercise their right to
redeem Units.

Provided that the Fund is a “mutual fund trust” and restricts its holdings of foreign property within the
limits provided under the Tax Act, the Units will not constitute foreign property for the foregoing Exempt Plans,
registered pension plans or other Persons subject to tax under Part XI of the Tax Act. RESPs are not subject to
Part XI of the Tax Act.

Pursuant to the 2005 Federal Budget on February 23, 2005, the Minister of Finance (Canada) announced
that the limit in respect of foreign property that may be held by a taxpayer subject to Part XI of the Tax Act will
be eliminated for 2005 and subsequent calendar years. There can be no assurance that such proposal will
be enacted.

Trusts governed by registered pension plans, pension corporations and other “designated taxpayers” (but
not trusts governed by Exempt Plans) may be subject to penalty taxes in respect of the holding of Units under
the Proposed Amendments to the Tax Act announced in March 2004. However, in May 2004, the Minister of
Finance (Canada) announced that the implementation of these proposals is suspended pending further
consultation with interested parties, following which further legislative proposals will be announced. This was
reiterated by the Minister of Finance (Canada) in September 2004 and in the 2005 Federal Budget. Such
investors should consult their own tax advisors before purchasing Units.

Non-Residents of Canada

This portion of the summary is applicable to a Unitholder who, for the purposes of the Tax Act and at all
relevant times, is not resident in Canada and is not deemed to be resident in Canada, and will not use or hold or
be deemed to use or hold the Units in, or in the course of, carrying on business in Canada, and is not an insurer
who carries on an insurance business in Canada and elsewhere (a “Non-Resident Holder”).

Distributions made by the Fund to a Non-Resident Holder will generally be subject to Canadian
withholding tax at the time such distribution is paid or credited at the rate of 25%, subject to reduction of such
rate under an applicable income tax convention. For example, a Non-Resident Holder who qualifies as a
resident of the United States under the Canada-United States Convention (the “Convention”) will be subject to
15% Canadian non-resident withholding tax rate on such distributions. It should be noted that it is the position
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of the CRA that United States limited liability companies generally do not qualify as residents of the
United States under the Convention.

A Non-Resident Holder will be subject to taxation in Canada in respect of a disposition of Units only to the
extent they constitute “taxable Canadian property” and the Non-Resident Holder is not afforded relief under an
applicable tax treaty.

Units will normally not be taxable Canadian property at a particular time provided that: (i) the
Non-Resident Holder, persons with whom the Non-Resident Holder does not deal at arm’s length (within the
meaning of the Tax Act), or the Non-Resident Holder together with such persons did not own 25% or more of
the issued Units at any time during the 60-month period preceding the particular time; (i) the Fund is a mutual
fund trust at the time of the disposition; and (iii) the Units are not otherwise deemed to be taxable Canadian
property.

In the event that a Non-Resident Holder’s Units constitute taxable Canadian property, the disposition
thereof will generally give rise to a capital gain (or capital loss) computed in the same manner as described
above under the heading “Residents of Canada”. In certain cases where a Non-Resident Holder realizes a
capital gain from the disposition of Units that constitute taxable Canadian property to such Non-Resident
Holder, it is possible that any such capital gain may be exempt from tax for the purposes of the Tax Act by virtue
of the provisions of an income tax convention between Canada and the country of residence of the
Non-Resident Holder. Conversely, the amount of any capital loss resulting from the disposition of Units may not
be deductible against capital gains of the Non-Resident Holder for the purposes of the Tax Act by virtue of the
provisions of such income tax convention. Non-Resident Holders are advised to consult with their tax advisors in
this regard.

A Non-Resident Holder is required to file a Canadian income tax return if such Non-Resident Holder
disposes of taxable Canadian property.

Interest paid or credited on notes to a Non-Resident Holder who receives XSCOT Notes on a redemption
of Units will be subject to Canadian withholding tax at a rate of 25%, unless such rate is reduced under the
provisions of an applicable tax treaty. A Non-Resident Holder in the United States who is entitled to claim
the benefit of the Convention generally will be entitled to have the rate of withholding reduced to 10% of the
amount of such interest.

Prospective investors who are resident or are otherwise subject to tax in jurisdictions other than Canada
should consult their tax advisors with respect to the tax implications of the investment in Units, including any
associated filing requirements, in such jurisdictions.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

In the opinion of Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP, counsel to the Fund, and Blake, Cassels &
Graydon LLP, counsel to the Underwriters the Units will, subject to the Fund satisfying the conditions for
qualification as a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act on a continuous basis, be qualified investments
for Exempt Plans and will not be foreign property for purposes of the tax imposed under Part XI of the Tax Act,
provided that (i) the Fund continues to qualify as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act, and (ii) the cost amount
of foreign property to the Fund, which includes the cost amount of the XSCOT Units, does not exceed 30% of
the cost amount of all of the Fund’s property. The Fund will invest 10% of the net proceeds from the offering in
XSCOT Units and 90% of such net proceeds in XSCOT Notes. Counsel are of the opinion that the Units will
not, as of the time of their issue constitute foreign property for Deferred Income Plans. RESPs are not subject to
the foreign property rules.

The foregoing opinion assumes that, prior to the closing of the offering, there will be no change in the
applicable legislation currently in effect.

Pursuant to the 2005 Federal Budget on February 23, 2005, the Minister of Finance (Canada) announced
that the limit in respect of foreign property that may be held by a taxpayer subject to Part XI of the Tax Act will
be climinated for 2005 and subsequent calendar years. There can be no assurance that such proposal will
be enacted. '
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following are the only material contracts, other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
business, entered into by the Fund or its subsidiaries during the past two years:

(a) the Declaration of Trust;

(b) the Acquisition Agreement;

(c) the Non-Competition Agreements;
(d) the Securityholders Agreement;
(e) the Exchange Agreement;

(f) the Limited Partnership Agreement;
(g) the XSCOT Declaration of Trust;
(h) the Note Indenture;

(i) the Administration Agreement;

() the Credit Agreement; and

(k) the Underwriting Agreement.

Copies of these agreements, when executed, may be inspected at the offices of Burnet, Duckworth &
Palmer LLP at First Canadian Place, 1400, 350 - 7th Avenue S.W,, Calgary, Alberta T2P 3N9 during normal
business hours during the period of distribution of the Units and for 30 days thereafter, or at any time after
closing of the offering on the SEDAR website at www.sedar.com.

PROMOTERS

The Vendor has taken the initiative in founding and organizing the Fund and may therefore be considered
to be a promoter of the Fund for the purposes of applicable securities legislation. See “Business of the
Company” and “Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions”.

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN TRANSACTIONS

Except as otherwise disclosed in this prospectus, none of the Trustees, directors of the GP and senior
officers of the GP and no associate or affiliate of any of them has a material interest in any transaction involving
the Fund or in any proposed transaction which has materially affected or will materially affect the Fund, except
for the following:

1. Mr. McKenna is the controlling shareholder of the Vendor, which is selling the Purchased Assets to
XS Cargo LP pursuant to the Acquisition. See “Funding, Acquisition and Related Transactions”; and

2. The Vendor will be party to a number of agreements with the Company and its affiliates on completion
of the offering and the Acquisition. See “Principal Agreements” and “Retained Interest and Exchange
Rights”. In addition, Mr. McKenna and the other shareholders of the Vendor will enter into the
Non-Competition Agreements with the Company. See “Principal Agreements”.

PRIOR ISSUANCES

On April 6, 2005, the Fund issued one Unit for a total subscription price of $10. This Unit will be
repurchased by the Fund concurrently with the completion of the offering for its issue price and cancelled.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for the Fund by
Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP and for the Underwriters by Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP. As at May 6,
2005, partners and associates of each of Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP and Blake Cassels & Graydon LLP
own beneficially, directly or indirectly, none of the outstanding Units.

AUDITORS, REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
The auditor of the Fund is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Edmonton, Alberta.

The registrar and transfer agent for the Units is Computershare Trust Company of Canada at its principal
office in Calgary, Alberta and Toronto, Ontario.

PURCHASERS’ STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces and territories of Canada provides purchasers with the right
to withdraw from an agreement to purchase securities within two business days after receipt or deemed receipt
of a prospectus and any amendment thereto. In several of the provinces and territories, securities legislation
further provides the purchaser with remedies for rescission or, in some jurisdictions, damages where the
prospectus or any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, provided that
such remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the
securities legislation of his or her province or territory. A purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of
the securities legislation of his or her province or territory for particulars of these rights or consult with a
legal advisor. '
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AUDITORS’ CONSENT

We have read the prospectus of XS Cargo Income Fund (the “Fund”) dated May 6, 2005 relating to the
issue and sale of trust units of the Fund. We have complied with Canadian generally accepted standards for an
auditor’s involvement with offering documents.

We consent to the use in the above-mentioned prospectus of our report to the Trustees of the Fund on the
balance sheet of the Fund as at April 6, 2005. Our report is dated April 7, 2005 (except as to note 3, which is as
of May 6, 2005).

Edmonton, Alberta (Signed) PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
May 6, 2005 Chartered Accountants



AUDITORS’ CONSENT

We have read the prospectus of XS Cargo Income Fund (the “Fund”) dated May 6, 2005 relating to the
issue and sale of trust units of the Fund. We have complied with Canadian generally accepted standards for an
auditor’s involvement with offering documents.

We consent to the use in the above mentioned prospectus of our report to the directors of Famous Brands
(Edmonton) Inc. on the balance sheets of the company as at October 31, 2004 and 2003 and the statements of
operations and retained earnings and cash flows for each of the three years ended October 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002. Our report on the financial statements is dated November 30, 2004 (except as to note 13 which is as of
May 6, 2005).

Edmonton, Alberta : (Signed) MEYERS NORRIS PENNY LLP
May 6, 2005 Chartered Accountants
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Trustees of XS Cargo Income Fund

We have audited the balance sheet of XS Cargo Income Fund as at April 6, 2005. This financial statement is
the responsibility of the Fund’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial
statement based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statement is free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statement. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, this financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Fund as at April 6, 2005 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Edmonton, Alberta (Signed) PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
April 7, 2005 Chartered Accountants
(except as to note 3, which is as of May 6, 2005)
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XS CARGO INCOME FUND
BALANCE SHEET
As at April 6, 2005

ASSETS

........................................................................

UNITHOLDER’S EQUITY
Unitholder’s equity (note 2)

.......................................................

Subsequent events (note 3)

On behalf of the Fund, by its attorney, XS Cargo GP Inc.:

(Signed) MICHAEL MCKENNA (Signed) JEFF ROOTMAN
Director Director




XS CARGO INCOME FUND
NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET
April 6, 2005

THE FUND

XS Cargo Income Fund (the “Fund”) is an unincorporated open-ended trust established under the laws of
the Province of Alberta pursuant to the Fund Declaration of Trust dated April 6, 2005. The Fund has been
created to invest in the broadline closeout retail business, through an indirect acquisition of the controlling
interest of XS Cargo Limited Partnership (“XS Cargo LP”) and its general partner, XS Cargo GP Inc.
(“GP”) (collectively the “Company”), and such other investments as the Trustees may determine. Income
tax obligations related to the distributions of the Fund are obligations of the Unitholder.

UNITHOLDER’S EQUITY AND NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

An unlimited number of Units and Special Voting Units may be created and issued pursuant to the
Declaration of Trust. Each Unit, not including Special Voting Units, is transferable and represents an equal
undivided beneficial interest in any distributions from the Fund, whether of net income, net realized capital
gains or other amounts and in the net assets of the Fund in the event of termination or winding up of the
Fund. Units and Special Voting Units entitle the holders thereof to one vote for each whole Unit or Special
Voting Unit held at all meetings of Voting Unitholders.

The Company will issue Subordinated LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units in connection with the
proposed transactions described in note 3. Exchangeable LP Units will be entitled to distributions
equivalent to those for Units of the Fund. The distributions on the Subordinated LP Units will be
subordinated in favour of the Units of the Fund and Exchangeable LP Units until certain performance and
distribution targets are met. The Subordinated LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units will be classified as a
non-controlling interest of the Fund. The Subordinated LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units will be
exchangeable for Units of the Fund and do not have any preferential rights to distributions.

The holders of Subordinated LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units will be issued Special Voting Units of
the Fund which entitle the holders thereof to vote in all votes of Voting Unitholders as if they were the
holders of the number of Units that they would receive if all their Subordinated LP Units and Exchangeable
LP Units were exchanged for Units.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Fund filed a prospectus dated May 6, 2005 relating to the initial public offering of Units of the Fund
(the “Offering”).

Concurrent with the closing of the Offering, the Fund will use the gross proceeds of the Offering of
$61,060,000 to capitalize the XS Cargo Operating Trust (the “Trust”) by subscribing for 54,954 Trust Notes
in the aggregate principal amount of $54,954,000 and 610,600 Trust Units for $6,106,000.

The Trust will use the proceeds from the issuance of the Trust Notes and the Trust Units to subscribe for
6,106,000 Ordinary LP Units of XS Cargo LP for $61,060,000 and for all of the common shares in GP for
nominal consideration.

The Company will use the proceeds of $61,060,000 from the issuance of Ordinary LP Units and common
shares and will draw down approximately $15,000,000 under a new credit facility to pay the expenses of the
Offering estimated to be $4,663,600 and to acquire substantially all of the assets and assume certain
liabilities of Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc. (the “Vendor”) (the “Acquisition”). As consideration for the
Acquisition, the Company will pay $71,396,400 in cash, and issue 2,394,480 Subordinated LP Units and
3,471,970 Exchangeable LP Units to the Vendor.



XS CARGO INCOME FUND

Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited — See Compilation Report)

January 31, 2005



COMPILATION REPORT

May 6, 2005

To the Trustees of
XS Cargo Income Fund

We have read the accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet of XS Cargo Income

Fund (the “Fund”) as at January 31, 2005 and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of operations
for the three months then ended and for the year ended October 31, 2004, and have performed the following
procedures:

1.

Compared the figures in the column in the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet captioned
«“Fund Historical” to the audited balance sheet of the Fund as at April 6, 2005 and found them to be in
agreement.

Compared the figures in the columns captioned “Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc.” (“Famous Brands”) to
the unaudited financial statements of Famous Brands as at January 31, 2005 and for the three months then
ended, and to the audited financial statements of Famous Brands for the year ended October 31, 2004,
respectively, and found them to be in agreement.

Made enquiries of certain officials of the Fund who have responsibility for financial and accounting matters
about:

(a) the basis for determination of the pro forma adjustments; and

(b) whether the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements comply as to form in all material
respects with the requirements of the various securities commissions and similar regulatory authorities
in Canada.

The officials:
(a) described to us the basis for determination of the pro forma adjustments, and

(b) stated that the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements comply as to form in all material
respects with the requirements of the various securities commissions and similar regulatory authorities
in Canada.

Read the notes to the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, and found them to be
consistent with the basis described to us for determination of the pro forma adjustments.

Recalculated the application of the pro forma adjustments to the aggregate of the amounts in the columns
captioned “Fund Historical” and “Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc” as at January 31, 2005 and to the
column captioned “Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc” for the three months then ended, and for the year
ended October 31, 2004 and found the amounts in the column captioned “XS Cargo Income Fund
Pro Forma Consolidated” to be arithmetically correct.

A pro forma financial statement is based on management assumptions and adjustments which are

inherently subjective. The foregoing procedures are substantially less than either an audit or a review, the
objective of which is the expression of assurance with respect to management’s assumptions, the pro forma
adjustments, and the application of the adjustments to the historical financial information. Accordingly, we
express no such assurance. The foregoing procedures would not necessarily reveal matters of significance to the
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, and we therefore make no representation about the
sufficiency of the procedures for the purposes of a reader of such statements.

(Signed) PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Edmonton, Alberta



XS CARGO INCOME FUND

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Unaudited — See Compilation Report)

As at January 31, 2005

ASSETS

Current
Cash.....cciiiiv e
Rebate and other receivables ... .......
INVentory .........coemeeuvevennenn
Prepaid expenses and deposits . ........
Deposits on inventory ...............

Property and equipment . ..............
Investment .. ........ccooeeeeeoeosos
Goodwill ......... 0.0t
Intangible assets . . .. ............... ..
Future income taxes . ...........cc....

LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .
Line of credit and interest payable to
Famous Brands Inc. ...............
Contributions payable to employee profit
sharingplan............ ... ...
Loan payable to employee profit sharing
plan ....... ... .o i
Class E redeemable, retractable preferred
shares . ....ccoii i

Long-termdebt. . ....................
Unamortized lease inducements. . ........
Non-controlling interest

XS Cargo LP Exchangeable LP Units .. ...
XS Cargo LP Subordinated LP Units. . . ...

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Fundunits .. ......... ..ot enn
Sharecapital .............c. it
Retained earnings . . . . ................

Fund Famous Brands

Historical (Edmonton) Inc. Pro Forma

April 6, January 31, Adjustments

2005 2005 {Note 3)

10 11,856,687  (11,800,594) (a)
— 1,605,125 (1,605,125) (e)
—_ 16,473,598 —_

— 388,987 —

— 2,310,642 —

10 32,635,039  (13,405,719)

— 1,369,741 500,000 (e)
— 209,000 (209,000) (e)
— — 103,386,855 (e)
- — 8,655,000 (e)
— 148,241 (148,241) (e)
_1_9 34,362,021 98,778,895

— 3,462,972 (382,956) (e)
— 3,550,600  (3,550,600) (e)
— 18,272,038  (18,272,038) (e)
— 2,996,045 (2,996,045) (€)
— 727,970 (727,970 (e)
— 29,009,625 (25,929,609)

— - 15,000,000 (d)
— 198,975 (198,975) (f) .
— — 34,719,700 (e)
— — 23,944,800 (e)
_ 29,208,600 47,535,916

10 — 56,396,400 (b), (c)
— 4,062,270 (4,062,270) (e)
— 1,091,151 (1,091,151) (e)
19 5,153,421 51,242,979

_1_9 34,362,021 98,778,895

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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XS Cargo
Income Fund
Pro Forma

Consolidated

56,103

16,473,598
388,987

2,310,642

19,229,330
1,869,741
103,386,855
8,655,000

133,140,926

3,080,016

3,080,016

15,000,000

34,719,700
23,944,800

76,744,516

56,396,410

56,396,410
133,140,926



XS CARGO INCOME FUND

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Gross Margin .. ........cceeccceenon

Expenses

Administrative and operating
Amortization of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Management salaries

Earnings from operations

Other income (expense)

Employee profit sharing plan contributions
Interest income . ...........00cennn

Foreign exchange loss

Finance charges .. ..........covevon
Interest €Xpense . . .. ..oove e
Interest on loan from employee profit sharing plan

Income (loss) before non-controlling interest and
income taxes . .......covcei oo '

Non-controlling interest

Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
FUtUIE . . ot i et it et ee e teae s anns

Net income (J0SS) . ........ccovuenns

Net income per Unit .................

(Unaudited — See Compilation Report)
For the three month period ended January 31, 2005

.............

.............

.............

......................

..............

....................

.............................

..........................

............
.............
............................

.............

............................

.............

.............

Pro Forma
Famous Brands  Adjustments
(Edmonton) Inc. (Note 4)
29,447,410 _
18,855,049 —_
10,592,361
4,690,850 —
135,460 33,000
— 298,000
133,446 —_
4,959,756 331,000
5,632,605 (331,000)
(5,561,000) 5,561,000
40,422 (40,422)
(55,977) —
(136,250) 136,250
—  (193,333)
(16,719) 16,719
(5,729,524) 5,480,214
(96,919) 5,149,214
— 2,475,625
(32,064) 32,064
(64,855) 2,641,525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(9
©)

(d)
®

(2)

(b)
(@)

(8)
(e)

XS Cargo
Income Fund
Pro Forma

Consolidated

29,447,410
18,855,049

10,592,361

4,690,850
168,460
298,000
133,446

5,290,756
5,301,605

(55,977)

(193,333)

(249,310)

5,052,295
2,475,625

2,576,670
0.42



XS CARGO INCOME FUND

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited — See Compilation Report)
For the year ended October 31, 2004

Sales

.........................................

Expenses
Administrative and operating
Amortization of property and equipment..............
Amortization of intangible assets
Management salaries .. .............. ... .........

......................

...................

Earnings from operations

..........................

Other income (expense)
Employee profit sharing plan contributions ............
Interestincome .. ..... ... ... ... .. .
Foreign exchange loss
Financecharges............ ... i,
Interest €Xpense. . .. ... oot ittt e,
Interest on loan from employee profit sharing plan

...........................

......

Income (loss) before non-controlling interest and income
L T

Future. ... o i i e e

................................

XS Cargo
Pro Forma Income Fund
Famous Brands  Adjustments Pro Forma
(Edmonton) Inc. (Note 4) E)_x_ngli_dzﬂ
73,752,794 — 73,752,794
46,887,580 — 46,887,580
26,865,214 28,865,214
12,804,595 — 12,804,595
451,927 100,600 (c) 551,927
— 1,192,000 (c) 1,192,000
538,303 — 538,303
13,794,825 1,292,000 15,086,825
13,070,389 (1,292,000) 11,778,389
(12,711,038) 12,711,038 (d) —
137,547 (137,547) (f) —
(11,621) — (11,621)
(552,500) 552,500 (a) —

— (773,333) (b)  (773,333)
(93,891) 93,801 (a) —
(13,231,503) 12,446,549 (784,954)

(161,114) 11,154,549 10,993,435
— 5,386,783 (g) 5,386,783
(45,919) 45919 (e) —

(115,195) 5,721,847 5,606,652

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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XS CARGO INCOME FUND

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited — See Compilation Report)
January 31, 2005

THE FUND

XS Cargo Income Fund (the “Fund”) is an unincorporated open-ended trust established under the laws of
the Province of Alberta pursuant to the Fund Declaration of Trust dated April 6, 2005. The Fund has been
created to invest in the broadline closeout retail business, through an indirect acquisition of the controlling
interest of XS Cargo Limited Partnership (“XS Cargo LP”’) and its general partner (“GP”) (collectively the
“Company”’), and such other investments as the Trustees may determine. Income tax obligations related to
the distributions of the Fund are obligations of the Unitholder.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS

The accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and unaudited pro forma consolidated
statements of operations of the Fund (collectively the “pro forma consolidated financial statements”) have
been prepared by management of the Fund using the accounting principles disclosed in the financial
statements of Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc. (operating as XS Cargo).

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements may not be indicative of the financial position
and results of operations that would have occurred if the transactions had taken place on the dates
indicated or of the financial position or results of operations which may be obtained in the future. The
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are not a forecast or projection of future results.
The actual financial position and results of operations of the Fund for any period following the closing of
the transactions contemplated by this prospectus will likely vary from the amounts set forth in the unaudited
pro forma consolidated financial statements and such variation may be material.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated balance sheet of the Fund as at April 6, 2005 and the audited financial statements of Famous
Brands (Edmonton) Inc. (operating as XS Cargo) for the year ended October 31, 2004.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet of the Fund as at January 31, 2005 has been prepared
from information derived from the audited consolidated balance sheet of the Fund as at April 6, 2005, the
unaudited interim balance sheet of Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc. (operating as XS Cargo) as at
January 31, 2005, and the adjustments and assumptions outlined below. The unaudited pro form statements
of operations of the Fund for the three-month period ended January 31, 2005 and year ended October 31,
2004 have been prepared using the adjustments and assumptions outlined below.

The Fund has filed a prospectus for an initial public offering of its units (the “Offering”). Concurrent with
the closing of the Offering, the Fund will use the gross proceeds of the Offering to capitalize the XS Cargo
Operating Trust (the “Trust”) which will then acquire all of the Ordinary LP Units in XS Cargo LP and all
of the common shares in GP. The Company will use the proceeds from the issuance of its Ordinary LP Units
and common shares, and will draw down approximately $15,000,000 under a new credit facility to pay the
expenses of the Offering and to acquire certain assets and assume certain liabilities of Famous Brands
(Edmonton) Inc. (the “Vendor”) (the “Acquisition”). As consideration of the Acquisition, the Company will
pay cash and issue Subordinated LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units to the Vendor.

A Canadian chartered bank has agreed to provide new credit facilities to the Company, which include a
$7,500,000 demand revolving loan (the “Operating Loan”) and a $15,000,000 non-revolving loan (the “Term
Loan”) (collectively the “Credit Facility””). The Operating Loan will be to assist in financing the day-to-day
operating requirements of the Company and the Term Loan will be for the financing of capital assets and
the Acquisition. Collateral for the Credit Facility will be a first security interest in all present and after
acquired personal property of the Company, an assignment of inventory, and an assignment of the
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2.

XS CARGO INCOME FUND

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Unaudited -— See Compilation Report)
January 31, 2005

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Company’s insurance. Interest on the Operating Loan will vary, depending on the Company’s ratio of senior
debt to EBITDA, between the lenders’ prime rate and the lendors’ prime rate plus 0.25%. Interest on the
Term Loan will vary, depending on the Company’s ratio of senior debt to EBITDA, between the lendors’
prime rate plus 0.25% and 0.75% or between the banker’s acceptance rate plus 1.75% and 2.25%.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET OF THE FUND

The following assumptions and adjustments have been made to reflect the proposed transactions described
in note 2 as if the transactions had occurred on January 31, 2005:

(a) Cash received and paid in connection with the transactions in (b), (c), (d), and (e).

(b) The issuance of 6,106,000 Units for total proceeds of $61,060,000 on closing of the Offering-
(¢) The payment of the underwriters fee and other costs of the Offering, estimated to be 4,663,600.
(d) $15,000,000 drawings on the Term Loan as described in note 2.

(e) Purchase accounting

The Acquisition will be accounted for using the purchase method with the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed recorded at their preliminary estimates of fair value. The final allocation of the
purchase price will be based on the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the effective dates of the
Acquisition based upon internal and/or independent asset valuations. A preliminary allocation of the
consideration is as follows:

Net assets acquired

Net working €apital « . ..o vv e et e $ 16,149,304
Property and €qUIPMENt . . . oo v v v vvtren o 1,869,741
Intangible @SSELS . ... oo v v vt 8,655,000
GOOAWIIL .+ v et ettt e e i 103,386,855
Consideration
Cash from the Offering and Credit Facility . ... .......vvveraeerneneens 71,396,400
XS Cargo LP Exchangeable LP UDIES o o o oot e enensaessoeananaonsasans 34,719,700
XS Cargo LP Subordinated LP UNIS &t oot s teienevsssaennanenoasnsos 23,944,800

As a result of the Acquisition, amortization expense related to property and equipment would increase
by $33,000 for the three months ended January 31, 2005 and by $100,000 for the year ended
October 31, 2004, and amortization expense related to intangible assets would increase by $298,000 for
the three months ended January 31, 2005 and $1,192,000 for the year ended October 31, 2004.

Net working capital acquired on the Acquisition includes cash floats, inventory, prepaid expenses and
deposits, deposits on inventory, and trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities, the carrying value of
which approximate their fair values.

(f) Removal of leasehold inducement liabilities related to rent-free periods received prior to the
Acquisition.
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XS CARGO INCOME FUND

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Unaudited — See Compilation Report)
January 31, 2005

4. UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS OF THE FUND

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of operations of the Fund for the three month period
ended January 31, 2005 and the year ended October 31, 2004 have been prepared assuming that the Fund
was in operation during the periods and as if the proposed transactions described in note 2 had occurred on
November 1, 2003. The unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of operations of the Fund reflect the
following assumptions and adjustments to the expenses of the Fund:

(a) The reduction of finance charges and interest on employee profit sharing plan loan to reflect that the
line of credit from Famous Brands Inc. and employee profit sharing plan loan will not be assumed by
the Company.

(b) The increase in interest expense.to reflect interest at 5.0% per annum on the Term Loan as if the loan
described in note 3(d) had been drawn at November 1, 2003. Included in interest expense is a bank
administration fee.

(c) Additional amortization of property and equipment and intangible assets as described in note 3(e).

(d) The reversal of employee profit sharing plan contributions relating to management compensation
arrangements that will not be carried on by the Fund.

(e) The reversal of income taxes reflecting that income tax obligations related to the distributions of
~ XS Cargo LP and the Fund are obligations of the ultimate Unitholders. It is assumed that income tax
obligations of GP will be minimal.

(f) The reversal of interest income on cash and investments that will not be included in the Acquisition.

(g) The proportion of earnings related to the retained interest of the Vendor.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.

Operating as XS Cargo
Interim Financial Statements

January 31, 2005
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current

Short-term INVESHMENES . . v v v ve et oate i tn e saaoe s oo ensoanss s
Rebate and other receivables . . ... ... o vt i i
0\ 231120 ] s AR R
Prepaid expenses and deposits .. .. ... it
Deposits ON IMVENMIOTY . ..o v v vt et v erae e

Property and equipment (Nofe 3) . ...........oiuiicniiiiiinee
Investment (NOf€ 4) . ..o v v ittt
Future income taxes (NOE 5) .. ...ttt otrroanasrtsnaaenns

LIABILITIES

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .. ...... ... .
Line of credit and interest payable to Famous Brands Inc. (Note 9) ..........
Contributions payable to employee profit sharing plan (Note 9) .............
Loan payable to employee profit sharing plan (Note 9) . ............ ...
Class E redeemable, retractable preferred shares (Note 7) .. ...............

Unamortized lease inducements (Note 6) ... ...... oot ienerannnanen

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital (NOT€ 7) .. ... ovivr ittt
Retained earmings . . . . . . .o oo ir et c it n e

Approved on behalf of the board

(Signed) MICHAEL MCKENNA
Director

January 31, October 31,
2005 2004
(Unaudited)
11,856,687 1,779,726
— 5,283,664
1,605,125 1,334,200
16,473,598 19,150,193
388,987 207,480
2,310,642 1,815,106
32,635,039 29,570,369
1,369,741 1,217,794
209,000 209,000
148,241 ' 116,177
34,362,021 31,113,340
3,462,972 3,970,058
3,550,600 3,638,873
18,272,038 12,711,038
2,996,045 3,701,534
727,970 727,970
29,009,625 24,749,473
198,975 145,591
29,208,600 24,895,064
4,062,270 5,062,270
1,091,151 1,156,006
5,153,421 6,218,276
34,362,021 31,113,340

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

For the Three Months Ended

oY 3 O
COoSt OF SALES . . .. o i it i i i i ettt e e e e

GroSS MATEil . . ..o oottt it e e ea et

Expenses
Administrative and operating . . ... .. .. i i e
Amortization of property and equipment . ........ ... i it
Management Salaries . . .. ... it i e

Earnings from operations . ... ... ... .. ... ittt

Other income (expense)
Employee profit sharing plan contributions (Note 9) .....................
Interest income . . .......... e e e e e e
Foreign exchange loSs .. ... ... ..ot
Finance charges (NOte 9) . ..o oottt i
Interest on loan from employee profit sharing plan (Note 9) . ..............

Loss before income taXeS . . .. ... ...t tieveenneeeeonnoenanennansonsss

Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
Future (NOtE 5) . o oo ottt e ettt iaes s et e

NEE JOSS .« o vt vt ettt it ettt et ea s en s eaeae e
Retained earnings, beginning of period .. ............. ... ... . i,

Retained earnings,end of period . . .. .......... ... . i

January 31, January 31,
2005 2004
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
29,447410 23,527,255
18,855,049 14,894,368
10,592,361 8,632,887
4,690,850 3,628,495
135,460 103,827
133,446 133,420
4,959,756 3,865,742
5,632,605 4,767,145
(5,561,000) (4,748,000)
40,422 26,488
(55,977) (2,610)
(136,250)  (97,593)
(16,719)  (20,244)
(5,729,524) (4,841,959)
(96,919)  (74,814)
(32,064)  (27,917)
(64,855)  (46,897)
1,156,006 1,271,201
1,091,151 1,224,304

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Three Months Ended

January 31,
2004

(Unaudited)

23,614,038
(18,576,869)

26,488
(192,316)

4,871,341

(1,000,000)
(868,563)

(1,868,563)

(86,506)

(22,007)

January 31,
2005
(Unaudited)
Cash provided by (use_d for) the following activities
Operating activities
Cash received from CUSTOMETS . . . . vt vttt et e et e e e e e et ee e 29,545,113
Cash paid to suppliers and employees . ...............c.cuviiune.n.. (22,594,754)
Interest received . . . ..ottt e e e 40,422
Interest paid . . . ... ... e e e (241,242)
6,749,539
Financing activities
Redemption of preferred shares. . ........... ... .. ... .. i, (1,000,000)
" Repayments of loan from employee profit sharing plan.................. (705,489)
(1,705,489)
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment. . . ........... .. .0t (287,407)
Net effect of translation on foreign currency cash ....................... 36,654
Increase in cash and cash equivalents . . .. ............................ 4,793,297
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . . .. ..................... 7,063,390

2,894,265
5,238,572

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ............................. 11,856,687

8,132,837

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

January 31, 2005
(All amounts as at and for the Three-month Periods Ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 are Unaudited)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The company commenced operations on November 15, 1997 as a result of an amalgamation of
Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc. and a predecessor company. The company operates 19 (as at October 31,
2004 — 17; as at January 31, 2004 — 15) retail stores under the name XS Cargo.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles for interim financial statements and may not include all necessary disclosures required by
generally accepted accounting principles for annual financial statements. The financial statements include
the following significant accounting policies:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks and short-term investments with maturities of three
months or less at acquisition.

Short-term investments

Short-term investments are carried at the lower of cost and market value.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, determined using the average cost basis, and net realizable value.

Vendor volume rebate

The company receives a volume rebate from a particular vendor, which is accrued based on purchases from
that vendor and included in rebate and other receivables. The portion of the rebate related to goods that
the company has subsequently sold is recorded as a reduction of cost of sales and the portion related to
goods that remain in inventory is recorded as a reduction of inventory costs.

Deposits on inventory

On certain purchases the company pays either a deposit or the balance in full prior to taking possession of
the goods. Such payments are recorded as deposits on inventory until the company takes possession of the
goods, at which time the balance is transferred to inventory.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided using methods and rates intended
to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives.

Method Rate
Leasehold improvements ..................... straight-line  Shorter of lease term and 5 years
Office, computer and mobile equipment .......... straight-line 20%
L3 T4 1T straight-line 20%
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

January 31, 2005
(All amounts as at and for the Three-month Periods Ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 are Unaudited)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments

Portfolio investments are recorded at cost. If the market value of investments is lower than cost, and the
decline in market value is other than temporary, the investments are written down to market value.

Future income taxes

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for future income taxes. Under this
method, future income tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of balance sheet items and their corresponding tax bases. In addition, the future benefits of
income tax assets, including unused tax losses, are recognized, subject to a valuation allowance, to the extent
that it is more likely than not that such future benefits will ultimately be realized. Future income tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply when the tax liabilities or
assets are to be either settled or realized.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from retail sales is recognized at the point of sale.

Leasehold inducements

Leasehold inducements are received from certain of the company’s landlords, primarily in the form of
rent-free periods. Leasehold inducements are recorded as a liability when received and are amortized as a
reduction of rent expense over the terms of the related leases.

Foreign currency translation

Transaction amounts denominated in foreign currencies are translated into their Canadian dollar
equivalents at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Carrying values of monetary assets and
liabilities reflect the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Translation gains and losses are included in
current earnings.

Variable interest entities

During the period, the company adopted new guidance issued by the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants relating to the consolidation of variable interest entities. Under this guidance, the company
must identify entities in which it has a variable interest by either contract, ownership or other pecuniary
interests. Where the company is the primary beneficiary of an entity in which it has a variable interest, that
entity is consolidated. As disclosed in note 12, the company has a variable interest in one company, but has
determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of that entity.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. For example, amortization is
based on the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and inventory is recorded after an evaluation
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2.

FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

January 31, 2005
(All amounts as at and for the Three-month Periods Ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 are Unaudited)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

as to the net realizable value and is appropriately reduced if net realizable value is estimated to be below
cost. As well, freight costs are allocated to inventory based on a percentage of the freight paid in the year
in comparison to the total purchases made in the year. This percentage is then applied to the ending
inventory balance.

These estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
earnings in the periods in which they become known.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

January 31, October 31,
Accumulated 2005 Net Accumulated 2004 Net

Cost Amortization  Book Value Cost Amortization  Book Value
Leasehold improvements .. .. 487,201 299,295 187,906 450,678 275,247 175,431

Office, computer and mobile
equipment .. ........... 2,109,853 1,023,462 1,086,391 1,871,419 921,968 949,451
Signs. ..., 198,375 102,931 95,444 185,925 93,013 92912
2,795,429 1,425,688 1,369,741 2,508,022 1,290,228 1,217,794

INVESTMENT

Investment consists of a guaranteed investment certificate with a Canadian chartered bank. The company
has an agreement with that financial institution that allows it to enter into foreign exchange forward
contracts and the investment is restricted and pledged as collateral under the agreement. No contracts were
outstanding during the current or comparative periods.

FUTURE INCOME TAXES

The nature and tax effect of items that give rise to the company’s future income tax asset are as follows:

January 31, October 31,
2005

2004
Property and €qUIPMENE . . ..ottt 66,202 52,054
Leaschold INdUCEMENTS . . . v v v vt v i it ee e v e noata e aaasossosoennns 73,621 55,324
(01 1 T=; PR g 8,418 8,799

148,241 116,177
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‘5.

FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

January 31, 2005
(All amounts as at and for the Three-month Periods Ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 are Unaudited)

FUTURE INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The provision for income taxes is at an effective tax rate which differs from enacted corporate tax rates for
the following reasons:

January 31, January 31,
2004

2005

Net loss before income taxes . . .. ..ot ie ittt e e (96,919)  (74,814)
Substantially enacted federal and provincial corporate income tax rates ....... 36.0% 37.5%
Expected tax provision . ... ... ... e (34,891)  (28,055)
Adjustments

Non-deductible items . . . ... ... ..ot i e 673 226

Other . ..o e e e 2,154 (88)
Recoveryof income taxes . ...........oiuuntiniirininnnnnnnnns (32,064)  (27,917)

January 31, October 31,

2005 2004
0 417,905 345,712
Accumulated amortization . . . ... ... e e . (218,930)  (200,121)

198,975 145,591

Lease inducements received are non-cash transactions in the form of rent-free periods and, as such, have
been excluded from the statement of cash flows.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

January 31, 2005
(All amounts as at and for the Three-month Periods Ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 are Unaudited)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

January 31, October 31,
2005 2004

Authorized
Class A common voting shares
Class B common voting shares
Class C common non-voting shares
Class D common non-voting shares
Class E redeemable, retractable, non-voting preferred shares
Class F redeemable, non-voting preferred shares
All unlimited in number

Issued
Classified as shareholders’ equity:
200 Class A SHares . . oo vv et ii ittt e e 100 100
100 Class CShares .. ..o oo i ittt it it e et 100 100
40,621 (October 31, 2004 — 50,621) Class F shares, redeemable at
$I00 PErshare ... ....ovviiinrvneenenn e ntneensanannsnes 4,062,070 5,062,070

4,062,270 5,062,270

Classified as liabilities:
765 Class E shares, redeemable at $951.59 per share ................. 727,970 727,970

Class F preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the company at any time and are not retractable at
the option of the holder. Redemption of Class F preferred shares is only mandatory in the event of death or
termination of employment of the holder. Class F preferred share transactions from the period
November 1, 2003 to January 31, 2005 are summarized below:

Number Amount

Balance, October 31,2003 . .. ... ...t e 24,939 2,493,892
ShareS ISSUEA + v o vttt et e it e e e 41,882 4,188,178
Shares redeemed . ... vttt ittt i e e et e e e (16,200) (1,620,000)
Balance, October 31,2004 . . . . ... .. ittt e 50,621 5,062,070
Shares redeemed . . ..o i ittt it it e ettt e (10,000) (1,000,000)
Balance, January 31,2005 . . . ... .. ... e e 40,621 4,062,070

The company is committed to issuing approximately 79,245 Class F shares for consideration of $100 per
share in 2005.

Class E preferred shares are retractable by the holder and therefore have the properties of a liability. The
Class E preferred shares are classified as a current liability on the balance sheet at their redemption
amount. During 2002 the company redeemed 39 Class E shares for cash consideration of $37,112. The
redemption amount of Class E preferred shares is $951.59 per share and the stated capital amount is
$634.39 per share.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
January 31, 2005

(All amounts as at and for the Three-month Periods Ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 are Unaudited)

COMMITMENTS

The company occupies the premises of its stores, warehouse and office under lease agreements requiring
basic monthly rents for the periods indicated and in aggregate as follows:

Remaining 9 months ending October 31,2005 ..................... 1,265,204
Years ending October 31,
2006 ...t e et e e e e e e e e 1,505,562
2007 e e e e et e e et i e 1,046,788
2008 . e e e et e et e e e e 616,949
2000 .. e e e e e e e 496,947
1 3 361,201
Thereafter .. oo o ittt e e e e e e e M
Total ..o e e e e e e 5,874,563

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions were conducted in the normal course of operations and measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

(2)

®

(©)

Advances from Famous Brands Inc.

An inventory line of credit not to exceed $3,500,000 has been made available to the company by
Famous Brands Inc., which is wholly owned by the controlling shareholder of the company. The
company pays interest to Famous Brands Inc. at a rate equal to the greater of the prime lending rate
charged by the Royal Bank of Canada plus 5% per annum or 12% per annum. In addition, in any fiscal
year where the company’s earnings before management bonuses, contributions to the employee profit
sharing plan and taxes exceed $600,000, an interest participation payment shall be paid to Famous
Brands Inc. equal to the lesser of 5% of the outstanding principal amount or the amount by which the
company’s earnings before management bonuses, employee profit sharing plan contributions and taxes
exceed $600,000. During the three months ended January 31, 2005, such financing charges amounted
to $136,250 (2004 — $97,593).

The company has signed a general security agreement as collateral on term loans due on demand from
Famous Brands Inc.

Accounts payable

Included in accounts payable is $147,043 (October 31, 2004 — $412,035) due to shareholders for
reimbursement of expenses paid and property and equipment purchased by shareholders on behalf of
the company. Amounts payable to shareholders are non-interest bearing and are due within the next
fiscal year.

Contributions and loan payable to employee profit sharing plan

The Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc. employee profit sharing plan (the “Plan”) is a trust established
to administer and distribute profits of the company to certain employees. The controlling shareholder
of the company is the trustee of the Plan.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

January 31, 2005
(All amounts as at and for the Three-month Periods Ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 are Unaudited)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Contributions payable to the employee profit sharing plan represent accruals of current year taxable
earnings to the Plan and will be paid to the Plan within 120 days of the year-end.

Loan payable to employee profit sharing plan represents amounts that have been loaned back to the
company from the Plan. The loan bears interest at 2% per annum and is due within the next fiscal year.
During the three months ended January 31, 2005, interest of $16,719 (2004 — $20,244) was recorded
on the loan.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Foreign currency risk

The company purchases a significant amount of its inventory from suppliers in the United States.
Consequently, the company’s gross margin is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations. This exposure is
limited because the company does not enter into significant future purchase commitments, but wires funds
in advance upon placing orders with United States suppliers.

Interest rate risk

The company pays interest on advances from Famous Brands Inc. based on the Royal Bank of Canada
prime lending rate, thus exposing the company to interest rate fluctuations, if interest rates go above 7%
(see note 9(a)).

Fair value of financial instruments

The company’s financial instruments consist of cash, short-term investments, rebate and other receivables,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, investment, contributions and loans payable to employee profit
sharing plan, the line of credit from Famous Brands Inc., and Class E preferred shares. The amount of
short-term investments, rebate and other receivables, accounts payable and accruals, contributions and loan
to employee profit sharing plan and Class E preferred shares approximate their fair values due to either
their demand nature or relatively short terms to maturity. The carrying values of the investment and line of
credit approximate fair values since the interest rates fluctuate with the prime rate.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.

VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY

During the year ended October 31, 2004 the company entered into a vendor supply and volume rebate
agreement with Samra Imports Ltd., (“Samra™). Samra imports products from China which it sells to the
company and other customers. Samra is the company’s largest supplier accounting for approximately 19.2%
of the company’s purchases since the commencement of the agreement and the company is Samra’s largest
customer. The purpose of the agreement is to outline the supply terms and to provide the company with a
rebate based on its significant volume of purchases from Samra. The company has determined that Samra is
a variable interest entity and that the supply and rebate agreement represents a variable interest of the
company in Samra. The company has determined, however, that it is not the primary beneficiary under the
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

January 31, 2005
(All amounts as at and for the Three-month Periods Ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 are Unaudited)

VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY (Continued)

supply and rebate agreement since the company is not entitled to receive a majority of Samra’s expected
residual returns or absorb a majority of its expected losses.

During the three months ended January 31, 2005, the company purchased approximately $2,000,000 of
inventory from Samra, and as at January 31, 2005 the company had made deposits of $698,214 for inventory
that had not yet been delivered. Samra issued the company a volume rebate for purchases made from the
period November 1, 2004 to January 31, 2005 in the amount of $368,628, which is included in rebate and
other receivables as at January 31, 2005. The rebate receivable for the year ended October 31, 2004, which
was outstanding as at January 31, 2005 is $1,236,497.

SEASONAL NATURE OF THE BUSINESS

The company’s results for the period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for
the full year due to seasonal variations in sales levels. The company historically experiences a higher level of
sales in the first quarter due to seasonal shopping patterns. Occupancy-related expenses, certain
administrative and operating expenses, amortization, and interest expense remain relatively steady
throughout the year.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Each store constitutes an operating segment in that its performance is monitored by senior management
and discreet financial information is available. Since each store sells the same products to the same types of
customers and uses similar distribution and sales processes, they have been aggregated for reporting
purposes into one segment.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 6, 2005, XS Cargo Income Fund (the “Fund”) filed a prospectus relating to the initial public
offering of units of the Fund (the “Offering”). The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust established
under the laws of the Province of Alberta pursuant to the Fund Declaration of Trust dated April 6, 2005.
The Fund has been created to invest in the discount retail business, through an indirect acquisition of the
controlling interest of XS Cargo Limited Partnership and its general partner XS Cargo GP Inc. Concurrent
with the closing of the Offering, XS Cargo Limited Partnership will acquire substantially all of the assets
and assume some of the liabilities of the company.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the company has entered into lease agreements for new warehouse
and distribution facilities and for four new store locations.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Director of Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc.:

We have audited the balance sheets of Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc. as at October 31, 2004 and 2003
and the statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for each of the three years ended
October 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
company as at October 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years ended October 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

Edmonton, Alberta (Signed) MEYERS NORRIS PENNY LLP
November 30, 2004 (except as to note 13, Chartered Accountants
which is as of May 6, 2005)
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

BALANCE SHEETS
As at October 31

ASSETS
Current

Short-term INVEStMENts . ... ... iv ittt titne et enneraonenoeaseanss
Rebate and otherreceivables . . .. ... it i i e
1A 117) o R T T ISP
Prepaid expenses and deposits . ...... .. . i i i
Deposits On INVENTOTY .. vt vttt e e iie e n oo snnaeeon

Property and equipment (Note 3) ........ ...,
Investment (NOte 4) . ... v ittt i it ttinee s en e
Future income taxes (Note 5) ............... et

LIABILITIES

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .. .................. .. .00
Line of credit and interest payable to Famous Brands Inc. (Note 9) ..........
Contributions payable to employee profit sharing plan (Note 9) .............
Loan payable to employee profit sharing plan (Note 9) .. .................
Class E redeemable, retractable preferred shares (Note 7) .. ...............

Unamortized lease inducements (Note 6) . ... .......coi i ennensnn

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital (Note 7) .. ... i i e it
Retained earnmings. . .. ... ..ottt ittt

Approved on behalf of the board

(Signed) MICHAEL MCKENNA
Director

2004 2003
1,779,726 238,329
5,283,664 5,000,243
1,334,200 86,783

19,150,193 10,708,814

207,480 194,842

1,815,106 2,731,953

29,570,369 18,960,964
1,217,794 1,233,247
209,000 209,000
116,177 70,258
31,113,340 20,473,469
3,970,058 2,990,714
3,638,873 2,599,479
12,711,038 5,296,000
3,701,534 4,943,990
727,970 727,970
24,749,473 16,558,153
145,591 150,023
24,895,064 16,708,176
5,062,270 2,494,092
1,156,006 1,271,201
6,218,276 3,765,293
31,113,340 20,473,469

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sales
Cost of sales

Gross margin

Expenses

Administrative and operating
Amortization of property and equipment

FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

For the Years Ended October 31

.........................................

.........................................

.........................................

............................

Management salaries . . .. ... .. ..o e

Earnings from operations

................................

Other income (expense)

Employee profit sharing plan contributions (Note 9)

INterest IMCOIME « « « v v v o v v ot e ee v cesanesoasoonsnsennsss

Foreign exchange loss
Finance charges (Note 9)
Employee profit sharing plan interest (Note 9)

Loss before income taxes

.................................

...............................

................

................................

Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
Future (NOIE 5) . o v o i oo ettt e e

Net loss

Retained earnings, beginning of year

Retained earnings, end of year

.........................................

........................

............................

2004 2003 2002
73,752,794 59,111,799 54,790,571
46,887,580 41,314276 38,208,763
26,865,214 17,797,523 16,581,808
12,804,595 11,204,830 9,438,277
451,927 313213 228,263

538303 583,435 721,888
13,794,825 12,101,478 10,388,428
13,070,389 5,696,045 6,193,380
(12,711,038) (5,296,000) (5,800,000)

137,547 146,292 65,149

(11,621)  (92,987)  (62,397)
(552,500)  (425,000)  (425,000)

(93,891)  (120,341)  (57,333)
(13,231,503) (5,788,036) (6,279,581)
(161,114)  (91,991)  (86,201)

(45,919)  (20,342)  (11,000)
(115,195)  (71,649)  (75,201)
1,271,201 1,342,850 1,418,051
1,156,006 1,271,201 1,342,850

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended October 31

2004 2003 2002
Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating activities
Cash received from customers . . .. .....c.ov e eevnnn e 73,741,874 59,116,043 54,772,670
Cash paid to suppliers and employees . ........ ... iveene (67,921,610) (53,300,318) (52,075,816)
Cash paid to employee profit sharing plan . ................ (5,296,000)  (5,830,000) (4,302,225)
Interest received . . o v v v vt v oot e ittt e e 137,547 146,292 65,149
Interest Paid . .. ...vveiieni i (646,391) (568,015) (477,234)
Income taxes Paid. . . oo envnen i n i (6,276) 29,988 (8,455)
9,144 (406,010)  (2,025,911)
Financing activities
Issue of preferred shares. . . .....coovivinenin e 4,188,178 2,593,892 —
Redemption of preferred shares ................ovnnnn - (1,620,000) (543,172) (512,373)
Line of credit advances . . . v v v vt i ittt 1,000,000 — —
Loan from employee p_rofit sharing plan ........... e 5,296,000 5,800,000 4,300,000
Repayments of loan from employee profit sharing plan........ (6,538,456)  (5,163,177) —
2,325,722 2,687,543 3,787,627
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment .. ............ ... (436,474) (533,376) (467,362)
Net effect of translation on foreign currency cash ........ e (73,574) (160,407) . (48,306)
Increase in cash reSOUICES . . .. .. .o v oo ernesnnonnonocsns 1,824,818 1,587,750 1,246,048
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ................ 5,238,572 3,650,822 2,404,774
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . . ........... .o 7,063,390 5,238,572 3,650,822
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of:
o U R 1,779,726 238,329 3,650,822
Short-term INVESEMENtS . . « v v v v e vt vvvomneaosassoonsoenes 5,283,664 5,000,243 _
7,063,390 5,238,572 3,650,822

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘October 31, 2004

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The company commenced operations on November 15, 1997 as a result of an amalgamation of Famous
Brands (Edmonton) Inc. and a predecessor company. The company operates 17 (as at October 31, 2003 —
15) retail stores under the name XS Cargo and also holds weekend sales events during the year in various
temporary locations throughout Canada.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles and include the following significant accounting policies:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks and short-term investments with maturities of three
months or less at acquisition.

Short-term investments

Short-term investments are carried at the lower of cost and market value.

Vendor volume rebate

The company receives a volume rebate from a particular vendor, which is accrued based on purchases from
that vendor and included in rebate and other receivables. The portion of the rebate related to goods that
the company has subsequently sold is recorded as a reduction of cost of sales and the portion related to
goods that remain in inventory is recorded as a reduction of inventory costs.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, determined using the average cost basis, and net realizable value.

Deposits on inventory

On certain purchases the company pays either a deposit or the balance in full prior to taking possession of
the goods. Such payments are recorded as deposits on inventory until the company takes possession of the
goods, at which time the balance is transferred to inventory.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided using methods and rates intended
to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives.

Method Rate
Leasehold improvements ...............veeenn straight-line  Shorter of lease term and 5 years
Office, computer and mobile equipment .......... straight-line 20%
SIgNS . .o e e s straight-line 20%
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
October 31, 2004

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments

Portfolio investments are recorded at cost. If the market value of investments is lower than cost, and the
decline in market value is other than temporary, the investments are written down to market value.

Future income taxes

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for future income taxes. Under this
method, future income tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of balance sheet items and their corresponding tax bases. In addition, the future benefits of
income tax assets, including unused tax losses, are recognized, subject to a valuation allowance, to the extent
that it is more likely than not that such future benefits will ultimately be realized. Future income tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply when the tax liabilities or
assets are to be either settled or realized.

Leasehold inducements

Leasehold inducements are received from certain of the company’s landlords, primarily in the form of
rent-free periods. Leasehold inducements are recorded as a liability when received and are amortized as a
reduction of rent expense over the terms of the related leases.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from retail sales is recognized at the point of sale.

Foreign currency translation

Transaction amounts denominated in foreign currencies are translated into their Canadian dollar
equivalents at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Carrying values of monetary assets and
liabilities reflect the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Translation gains and losses are included in
current earnings.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. For example, amortization is
based on the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and inventory is recorded after an evaluation
as to the net realizable value and is appropriately reduced if net realizable value is estimated to be below
cost. As well, freight costs are allocated to inventory based on a percentage of the freight paid in the year in
comparison to the total purchases made in the year. This percentage is then applied to the ending
inventory balance.

These estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
earnings in the periods in which they become known.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

October 31, 2004
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Accumulated 2004 Net Accumulated 2003 Net
Cost Amortization  Book Value Cost Amortization  Book Value
Leasehold improvements .. .. 450,678 275,247 175,431 384,677 191,464 193,213
Office, computer and mobile
equipment ............. 1,871,419 921,968 949,451 1,545,859 600,364 945,495
Signs ...t 185,925 93,013 92,912 155,907 61,368 94,539
2,508,022 1,290,228 1,217,794 2,086,443 853,196 1,233,247
INVESTMENT

Investment consists of a guaranteed investment certificate with a Canadian chartered bank. The company
has an agreement with that financial institution that allows it to enter into foreign exchange forward
contracts and the investment is restricted and pledged as collateral under the agreement. No contracts were
outstanding as at or during the year ended October 31, 2004.

FUTURE INCOME TAXES

The nature and tax effect of items that give rise to the company’s future income tax asset are as follows:

2004 2003
Property and eqUIPMENt . . .« oot vttt 52,054 3,787
Leaschold indUCEMENES . . o v oo e ee v imneonansereeannaosseuansseneer s 55,324 57,009
(0T S R R I 8,799 9,462

116,177 70,258

The provision for income taxes is at an effective tax rate which differs from substantially enacted corporate
tax rates for the following reasons:

2004 2003 2002

Net 10ss before inCOmMeE taxes . . ..« oo v veveoreeesaeaeesssssenns (161,114) (91,991) (86,201)
Substantially enacted federal and provincial corporate income tax rates .. 36.0% 375% 39.6%
Expected tax Provision . ........eeeeeaeeectiiiiiiaae e (58,001) (34,497) (34,136)
Adjustments

Non-deductible ftems . . v v oo v e e iiieieneee e ennen 7,557 8,438 18,186

Changes in future tax Tates. . .. ..o ovvveeneve e 4,525 2,588 —

(03T T I — 3,129 4,950
Recovery of income taxes ............c.coonn e (45,919) (20,342) (11,000)
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
October 31, 2004

UNAMORTIZED LEASE INDUCEMENTS

2004 2003
(@73 S O 345,712 291,314
Accumulated amOrtiZation . . ..o i ittt ittt e e e e e s (200,121) (141,291)

145,591 150,023

Lease inducements received are non-cash transactions in the form of rent-free periods and, as such, have
been excluded from the statement of cash flows.

SHARE CAPITAL

2004 2003

Authorized
Class A common voting shares
Class B common voting shares
Class C common non-voting shares
Class D common non-voting shares
Class E redeemable, retractable, non-voting preferred shares
Class F redeemable preferred shares
All unlimited in number

Issued
Classified as sharcholders’ equity:
200 Class A SBAres . . ... cov ittt it iiin et eiane e 100 100
100 Class Cshares . ... ..ciiiie ittt aanan 100 100
50,621 (2003 — 24,939) Class F shares, redeemable at $100 per share .. ... 5,062,070 2,493,892

5,062,270 2,494,092

Classified as liabilities:
765 (2003 — 765) Class E preferred shares, redeemable at $951.59 per share.. 727,970 727,970

Class F preferred share transactions from the period November 1, 2001 to October 31, 2004 are
summarized below:

Number Amount

Balance, November 1, 2001 ... ... ... .0ttt innaennnns 9,185 918,433
Shares redeemed ..........co ittt it (4,753)  (475,261)
Balance, October 31,2002 . ... ..... ... ...ttt rnnnennnnnenns 4,432 443172
Shares iSSUEA . v v v vttt ittt ettt eee e naeeeaen oot 25,939 2,593,892
Shares redeemed ............. e e e e et e e (5,432) (543,172)
Balance, October 31,2003 . . ... ... .. .. .0ttt 24,939 2,493,892
SRATES ISSUEA & o v v oot e e e e e 41,882 4,188,178
Shares redeemed .. ...ttt i it i i e i et e s (16,200) (1,620,000)
Balance, October 31,2004 . . . ... .. .. 0ttt ittt 50,621 5,062,070
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
October 31, 2004

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Class F preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the company at any time and are not retractable at
the option of the holder. Redemption of Class F preferred shares is only mandatory in the event of death or
termination of employment of the holder.

The company is committed to issuing approximately 79,245 Class F shares for consideration of $100 per
share in 2005. :

Class E preferred shares are retractable by the holder and therefore have the properties of a liability. The
Class E preferred shares have been classified as a current liability on the balance sheet at their redemption
amount. During 2002 the company redeemed 39 Class E shares for cash consideration of $37,112. The
redemption amount of Class E preferred shares is $951.59 per share and the stated capital amount is
$634.39 per share.

COMMITMENTS

The company occupies the premises of its stores, warehouse and office under lease agreements requiring
basic monthly rents over the next five years and thereafter estimated as follows:

1 S 1,708,025
210 S 1,505,562
410y 2 R R 1,046,788
10 - R 616,949
1L O 496,947
VTS Y i) O I 943,113

6,317,384

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions were conducted in the normal course of operations and measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

(a) Advances from Famous Brands Inc.

An inventory line of credit not to exceed $3,500,000 (2003 — $2,500,000) has been made available to
the company by Famous Brands Inc., which is wholly owned by the controlling shareholder of the
company. The company pays interest to Famous Brands Inc. at a rate equal to the greater of the prime
lending rate charged by the Royal Bank of Canada plus 5% per annum or 12% per annum. In addition,
in any fiscal year where the company’s earnings before management bonuses, contributions to the
employee profit sharing plan and taxes exceed $600,000, an interest participation payment shall be paid
to Famous Brands Inc. equal to the lesser of 5% of the outstanding principal amount or the amount by
which the company’s earnings before management bonuses, employee profit sharing plan contributions
and taxes exceed $600,000. During the year, such financing charges amounted to $552,500 (2003 —
$425,000; 2002 — $425,000).

The company has signed a general security agreement as collateral on term loans due on demand from
Famous Brands Inc.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
October 31, 2004

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Accounts payable

Included in accounts payable is $412,035 (2003 — $327,680) due to shareholders for reimbursement of
expenses paid and property and equipment purchased by shareholders on behalf of the company.
Amounts payable to shareholders are non-interest bearing and are due within the next fiscal year.

(c) Contributions and loan payable to employee profit sharing plan

The Famous Brands (Edmonton) Inc. employee profit sharing plan (the “Plan”) is a trust established
to administer and distribute profits of the company to certain employees. The controlling shareholder
of the company is the trustee of the Plan.

Contributions payable to the employee profit sharing plan represent accruals of current year taxable
earnings to the Plan and will be paid to the Plan within 120 days of the year-end.

Loan payable to employee profit sharing plan represents amounts that have been loaned back to the
company from the Plan. The loan bears interest at 2% per annum and is due within the next fiscal year.
During the year, interest of $93,891 (2003 — $120,341; 2002 — $57,333) was paid on the loan.

FINANCIJAL INSTRUMENTS

Foreign currency risk

The company purchases a significant amount of its inventory from suppliers in the United States.
Consequently, the company’s gross margin is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations. This exposure is
limited because the company does not enter into significant future purchase commitments, but wires funds
in advance upon placing orders with United States suppliers.

Interest rate risk

The company pays interest on advances from Famous Brands Inc. based on the Royal Bank of Canada
prime lending rate, thus exposing the company to interest rate fluctuations, if interest rates go above 7%
(see note 9a).

Fair value of financial instruments

The company’s financial instruments consist of cash, short-term investments, rebate and other receivables,
investment, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, contributions and loans payable to employee profit

-sharing plan, the line of credit from Famous Brands Inc., and Class E redeemable, retractable preferred

shares. The amount of short-term investments, rebate and other receivables, accounts payable and accruals,
contributions and loan to employee profit sharing plan and Class E preferred shares approximate their fair
values due to either their demand nature or their relatively short terms to maturity. The carrying values of
the investment and line of credit approximate fair values since the interest rates fluctuate with the
prime rate.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.
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FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.
OPERATING AS XS CARGO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
October 31, 2004

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Each store constitutes an operating segment in that its performance is separately monitored by senior
management and discreet financial information is available. Since each store sells the same products to the
same types of customers and uses similar distribution and sales processes, they have been aggregated for
reporting purposes into one segment.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 6, 2005, XS Cargo Income Fund (the “Fund”) filed a prospectus relating to the initial public
offering of units of the Fund (the “Offering”). The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust established
under the laws of the Province of Alberta pursuant to the Fund Declaration of Trust dated April 6, 2005.
The Fund has been created to invest in the discount retail business, through an indirect acquisition of the
controlling interest of XS Cargo Limited Partnership and its general partner XS Cargo GP Inc. Concurrent
with the closing of the Offering, XS Cargo Limited Partnership will acquire substantially all of the assets
and assume some of the liabilities of the company.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the company has entered into lease agreements for new warehouse
and distribution facilities and for four new store locations.
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CERTIFICATES OF THE FUND AND THE PROMOTERS

Dated: May 6, 2005

. The foregoing constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered
by this Prospectus as required by Part 9 of the Securities Act (British Columbia), by Part 9 of the Securities Act
(Alberta), by Part XI of The Securities Act, 1988 (Saskatchewan), by Part VII of The Securities Act (Manitoba), by
Part XV of the Securities Act (Ontario), by Part II of the Securities Act (Prince Edward Island), by Section 63 of
the Securities Act (Nova Scotia), by Section 13 of the Security Frauds Prevention Act (New Brunswick), by
Part XIV of the Securities Act (Newfoundland), and the respective regulations thereunder. This prospectus, as
required by the Securities Act (Québec) and the regulations’thereunder, does not contain any misrepresentation
that is likely to affect the value or the market price of the securities to be distributed.

XS CARGO INCOME FUND
by its attorney
XS Cargo GP Inc.

By: (Signed) MICHAEL MCKENNA By: (Signed) JEFF ROOTMAN
President and Chief Executive Officer Vice-President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

On behalf of the Board of Directors

By: (Signed) JONATHAN LEGG By: (Signed) DAVID MARGOLUS
Director Director

On behalf of the Promoter

FAMOUS BRANDS (EDMONTON) INC.

By: (Signed) MICHAEL MCKENNA
President



CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITERS

Dated: May 6, 2005

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, the foregoing constitutes full, true and plain
disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this prospectus as required by Part 9 of the
Securities Act (British Columbia), by Part 9 of the Securities Act (Alberta), by Part XI of The Securities Act, 1988
(Saskatchewan), by Part VII of The Securities Act (Manitoba), by Part XV of the Securities Act (Ontario), by
Part II of the Securities Act (Prince Edward Island), by Section 64 of the Securities Act (Nova Scotia), by
Section 13 of the Security Frauds Prevention Act (New Brunswick), by Part XIV of the Securities Act
(Newfoundland), and the respective regulations thereunder. To our knowledge, this prospectus, as required by
the Securities Act (Québec) and the regulations thereunder, does not contain any misrepresentation that is likely
to affect the value or the market price of the securities to be distributed.

CIBC WORLD MARKETS INC.

By: (Signed) T. TIMOTHY KITCHEN

RBC DOMINION SECURITIES INC.

By: (Signed) J. CRAIG DUDRA

NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL INC.

By: (Signed) RONALD A. MACMICKEN

CANACCORD CAPITAL CORPORATION

By: (Signed) RONALD A. RIMER

SPROTT SECURITIES INC.

By: (Signed) BRIAN K. PETERSEN
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